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ABOUT THE COVER

Thisyear’s cover for Enterprise Bank’s 48th Anniversary Report embodies the spirit of
purpose-driven progress. Set against a twilight sky, it features a lone Filipino figure
clad in a Barong Tagalog and salakot, steadily ascending a mountain via a glowing
staircase. The steps begin small—symbolizing humble beginnings—and gradually
expand, reflecting the Bank’s steady growth, bold vision, and increasing impact.

The mountain remains a powerful metaphor: unwavering, resilient, and deeply
rooted—much like Enterprise Bank’s nearly five decades of service to rural
communities. The upward path honors both the challenges overcome and the
milestones reached. Each step taken by the figure is a tribute to the collective effort
of the Bank, its people, and the communities it serves.

The use of our corporate colors—deep blue and vibrant orange—illustrates balance
and determination: blue for trust and stability, orange for energy and innovation. At
the summit stands a flag, not just a marker of achievement, but a call to keep
climbing—to keep going above and beyond.

This cover tells a story of who we are and who we are becoming: a Bank grounded in
tradition, yet unafraid to embrace transformation. It is a visual reminder that our
journey is not done—we are still ascending, with purpose, alongside every Filipino
we serve.

ABOVE AND BEYOND
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VISION

To be a strong regional bank within greater Mindanao and Visayas that leads
in the delivery of high financial products and services that promote, support,
and encourage entrepreneurship in the countryside.

MISSION

Provide innivative financial products and services to small and medium
sized enterprises, entrepreneurs, especially women and to members of
low income groups and to ensure that credit is utilized appropriately to
improve their well-being,.

Promote savings consciousness as a means of attaining self-sufficiency
and self-reliance.

Strive to offer the highest quality servicee and customer value by
investing in human resource development.

Provide a work environment that will stimulate the employees to be
innovative and enable them to realize their professional objectives.

Make certain that each employee will be given the opportunity for
professional advancement as merited and have the right to economic
security and stability.

Guarantee that shareholder’s value is enhanced through prudent
investment undertakings and efficient operations.

Abide by the laws of the Philippines to which itis subject and adhere to
international standards within its core operations.

o
|

@



w M 2024 Annual Report

A Korsl Baak

OUR CORPORATE POLICY

Enterprise Bank, Inc. ("EBI”, “Enterprise Bank”, “the Bank”) is guided by its
mission and vision in definig its direction for the future. EBI aims to broaden
its reach while remaining committed to serve small entrepreneurs, thus
contributing to the development of the economy. Moreover, EBI is taking
advantage of technology to enhance its operations, optimize human and
capital resources, enhance customer experience and comply with
government regulation.

OUR BRAND

Our brand is dedicated to empowering local small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs) with personalized financial solutions tailored to their
unique needs. We have deep roots in the rural communities we serve,
fostering trust and understanding with our customers and advocating
financial inclusion for all. Our commitment to fostering economic growth in
rural areas sets us apart, offering not just financial services but also
community development initiatives to support thriving SME ecosystems.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

« COMMUNITY BASED. Establishing physical branches in strategically
located rural areas to establish close-knit relationships with SMEs.

o PERSONALIZED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES. Our community-based
financial centers offer personalized financial services.

« DIGITAL FINANCIAL INCLUSION PLATFORMS. We are moving towards
leveraging on technology to operate a user-friendly digital platform
tailored to the rural environment.

O
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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT/CEOQ

For the year 2024, | am proud to report that this momentum
culminated in a banner year for EBI as we recorded the
highest increase in total profit before tax at 25% signaling the
success of our strategic direction. Our net income surged by
167% to 71.1 million, driven by strong net interest income,
prudent expense management, and reduced credit
provisions. These results affirm that our long-term initiatives
are taking hold, placing us firmly on a path toward becoming
one of the industry’s top-performing banks.

Return on equity jumped to 23.77%, more than double the
previous year, reflecting the Bank’s enhanced profitability.
Net interest income rose by 9% to £278.81 million,
comprising 73% of total operating income. This was made
¥ - possible by a 12% increase in interest income, stemming
RUBERTU F SALAZAR | fro.m. hi.gher-yieldihg l.oans afnd invgstments. Fundir\g

PRESIDENfANDCE[l gfﬁaenges were llkeW|sg achleve_d, with CASA depos.lts
- — increasing by 5%, supporting sustainable and cost-effective
. growth.

A

We also saw growth in other key revenue streams: application fee income increased by 14% due to greater
loan disbursement volume, while interest income from loans rose by 4%. Meanwhile, the disposal of
foreclosed assets generated an additional #9.2 million, contributing to our strong bottom line. On the
expense side, we effectively contained costs—operating expenses went up by only 0.69% to £302.74
million —demonstrating operational discipline.

As of end-2024, our total assets stood at £3.6 billion, an 11% increase year-on-year, reflecting robust loan
growth and a stronger investment portfolio. This performance lifted our total equity to #334.72 million, a
27% increase from 2023. Our Capital Adequacy Ratio is 10.93%, well above regulatory
requirements—highlighting our financial strength and stability.

These accomplishments are a testament to the hard work, unity, and dedication of the entire Enterprise
Bank team. Our solid core income remains the primary engine of growth, allowing us to deliver results
that matter to our stakeholders.

We also focused on operational excellence in 2024 by automating our key processes. We developed and
implemented the Automated Paperless Approval System (APAS), Business Loan Application System, and
Auto Loan Approval System. These digital tools improve customer experience and enhance our internal
efficiency. Through this, we reaffirmed our commitment to delivering secure, relevant, and accessible
financial solutions powered by technology.

O
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In terms of strategic direction, we adjusted our loan mix in response to heightened risks in the salary
loan segment. We pivoted towards more secured and collateral-backed lending. This risk-mitigation
move positions us for healthier asset quality and long-term sustainability. Our enterprise loan
portfolio, on the other hand, expanded by 41%, driven by improved sales productivity, refined credit
policies, and targeted customer engagement.

Our rebranding efforts, which began three years ago, came full circle in 2024. These efforts translated
into real trust and loyalty from our clients, as evidenced by a consistent 11% average annual growth in
deposit liabilities from 2022 to 2024. Branches were relocated to more strategic locations, redesigned
with updated interiors and furnishings, and equipped with unified signage to project a consistent,
modern brand image across our network.

Looking ahead, our strategic priorities are clear:

« Pursue disciplined loan growth in key sectors while maintaining a balanced risk profile.

« Optimize our deposit mix and explore new revenue streams to support sustainable
profitability.

« Strengthen our capital base and risk management practices to ensure resilience in a
dynamic economic and regulatory environment.

« Invest in technology and innovation—including continuous upgrades to hardware and
software—to deliver secure, personalized, and efficient banking experiences.

« Improve operational efficiency and cost-effectiveness without compromising service
quality.

« Invest in our people—our most valuable asset—by fostering a culture of collaboration,
innovation, and continuous learning.

To our valued stockholders, thank you for your continued trust and unwavering support. To our Board
of Directors, thank you for your steady guidance and strategic leadership. And to every member of the

Enterprise Bank family—your hard work, passion, and dedication are the foundation of our success.

By staying true to our mission, we will continue to deliver meaningful value to our stakeholders,
empower our customers, and make a positive impact in the communities we serve.

Together, we are building a Bank that is financially strong, technologically forward, and socially
responsible.

Daghang Salamat and Mabuhay ang Enterprise Bank!

MR. ROBERTO F. SALAZAR

PRESIDENT AND CEO
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

PROFITABILITY

Cwiommcerorcreomiosses | maesz |

SELECT BALANCE SHEET DATA

SELECTED RATIOS

RETURN ON EQUITY 23.77% 10.97%
RETURN ON ASSETS 2.04% 0.86%
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 10.93% 10.19%

NET INCOME PER SHARE:

BASIC P17.78 P6.67
DILUTED P17.78 P6.67

OTHERS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANGE

In 2024, the Philippine banking sector delivered a robust financial performance, marked by
record-breaking profitability fueled by loan expansion and strengthened financial positions. The
cumulative net income of Philippine banks rose to £391.28 billion—an increase of 9.76% from
2023—underscoring the industry’s continued recovery and resilience.

In line with this positive trajectory, Enterprise
2024 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bank also posted stror:g financial results for
the year. The Bank’s performance was
* 9% INCREASE IN TOTAL DEPOSITS bolstered by the effective sales strategies of its

=  FROM $£2.72 TO£2.96 BILLION Retail Banking Operations, resulting in a 9%

CASA DEPOSITS UP BY 5% growth in total deposits. This reflects
«  REACHING #1.1BILLION heightened customer confidence and loyalty,

bringing the Bank closer to its 3 billion
deposit milestone.

TIME DEPOSITS UP BY 12%
ENTERPRISE LOAN PORTFOLIO UP BY

41% Current Account/Savings Account (CASA)
= FROM P413 TO#582 MILLION deposits grew by 5%, reaching £1.1 billion in
CONSUMER LOAN PORTFOLIO 2024. Time Deposits also experienced
MAINTAINED substantial growth of 12%, further
TOTAL ASSETS UP BY 11% strengthening the Bank’s funding base.

= FROM $£3.30 TO®3.67 BILLION . . .
As the broader business environment in the
NET INCOME (AFTER TAX): P71 MILLION Philippines gradually regained operational

momentum, Enterprise Bank proactively
supported the recovery of the business sector

by extending much-needed financial assistance.

Aligned with the Bank’s strategic shift toward collateralized lending to better manage credit risk, the
consumer loan portfolio was prudently maintained at #1.72 billion. This measured approach helped
balance the Bank’s risk exposure at optimal levels.

The Bank’s total assets expanded by 11%, from £3.30 billion in 2023 to #3.67 billion in 2024. Total
deposits likewise increased by 9%, from £2.72 billion to £2.96 billion, driven by enhanced brand visibility
and strengthened customer trust. Operational efficiencies further contributed to a solid bottom line,
with the Bank registering a net income of #71 million for the year.

Enterprise Bank remains steadfast in its mission to become a strong regional bank, committed to
delivering high-quality financial products and services. It continues to play an active role in promoting
entrepreneurship and improving the economic well-being of communities in the countryside.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

ENTERPRISE LOAN

The Bank’s strategic shift toward collateralized lending has yielded significant growth in its enterprise
loan portfolio while maintaining the level of unsecured consumer

(14 loans. In 2024, enterprise loans rose by 41%, increasing from P413
By empowering SMES, the million in 2023 to #582 million. This substantial growth was driven by
Bank not only stimulates enhanced sales productivity through targeted customer selection,
business growth but also strengthened by refinements in credit policies and lending practices.
contributes significantly to
uplifting socio-economic A key contributor to this success was the deployment of seasoned

conditions in rural areas.

Account Officers to strategically selected branches in major cities
across the Visayas and Mindanao regions. Their expertise and local
engagement significantly bolstered the Bank’s outreach to small and medium enterprises, resultingin a
stronger and more diversified loan portfolio.

Furthermore, the Bank prioritized operational efficiency by introducing automation across key business
processes. These enhancements significantly improved turnaround times and optimized the overall
performance of enterprise loan operations.

The notable increase in the Bank’s secured loan portfolio underscores its prudent risk management
strategy, focused on secured lending to ensure balanced and sustainable risk exposure.

Enterprise Bank remains steadfast in its belief that SMEs are vital to national economic development.
Aligned with its vision to promote, support, and encourage entrepreneurship in the countryside, the
Bank continues to extend accessible financial solutions tailored to the needs of the SME sector. This
strategic direction has become the foundation of the Bank’s enterprise lending program and supports its
goal of expanding the enterprise loan portfolio to 1 billion by 2025.

By empowering SMEs, the Bank not only stimulates business growth but also contributes significantly to
uplifting socio-economic conditions in rural areas—fostering inclusive and sustainable development
throughout the regions it serves.

CONSUMER LOANS

. . . 2024 CONSUMER
In 2024, Enterprise Bank strategically managed its consumer LOAN HIGHLIGHTS
loan Portfolio, m;.:\int.aining it at ?1:7.billion. This f:\ligns wit.h the 1.7 BILLION TOTAL CONSUMER
Bank’s overall objective of emphasizing collateralized lending to LOAN PORTFOLIO (MAINTAINED)
achieve a more balanced risk profile and to strengthen asset APDS LOANS UP FROM P692
quality. MILLION TO £716 MILLION

NON-APDS LOANS AT $#940
MILLION

Within this portfolio, the Automatic Payroll Deduction System
(APDS) loans grew from £692 million in 2023 to #716 million in
2024, reflecting continued demand and stability in this secured lending segment. Meanwhile, Non-APDS

loans stood at #940 million.



ENTERPRISE Gank 2024 Annual Report

A Koral Baak

DEPOSIT TAKING

In 2024, the Bank placed strategic emphasis on strengthening its corporate branding by enhancing the
visual identity of its branches and expanding its digital marketing efforts. These initiatives aimed to
reinforce brand presence, build stronger customer engagement, and increase market visibility.

Backed by the continued trust and confidence of its
2024 DEPOSIT clientele, the Bank grew its total deposits to £2.95 billion in
2024, up from P2.70 billion in 2023. This growth was
TAKING HIGHLIGHTS accompanied by an increase in the number of deposit
INCREASE IN TOTAL DEPOSITS accounts, which rose to 124,275 in 2024 from 120,298 in the
«  FROMP2.72 TO P2.96 BILLION previous year. The Bank also expanded its merchant
INCREASE IN DEPOSIT services, with the number of deployed POS terminals
ACCOUNTS increasing from 149 in 2023 to 168 in 2024—contributing to
*  FROM 120,298 TO 124,275 the improved performance of its CASA (Current
INCREASE POS TERMINALS Account/Savings Account) portfolio.
DEPLOYED
* FROM149TO 168 Looking ahead, Enterprise Bank plans to open 10 new
PLANNED EXPANSION OF 10 branches over the next three years, focusing on underserved
BRANCHES areas in Luzon and Mindanao. This expansion is part of the
1 FORSBEE FORATIONS SHAONE Bank’s mission to promote financial inclusion by extending
OTHER PARTS OF MINDANAO
access to banking services in unbanked and underserved
communities.

The Bank remains committed to fostering a culture of savings while delivering innovative financial
products tailored to the needs of small and medium enterprises. Through these efforts, Enterprise Bank
aims to empower local entrepreneurs, uplift community livelihoods, and stimulate sustained economic
growth and development in the regions it serves.
. : : (13
Furthermore, EBI will sharpen its focus on generating low-cost CASA . .
deposits to reduce overall funding costs, allowing the Bank to offer loan [GUGLEEEILSCIEIIE
. . . committed to fostering a
products at more competitive rates aligned with market benchmarks. To culture of savings while

achieve this objective, the Bank will implement targeted promotional delivering innovative
; i . financial products
campaigns, enhance digital engagement, and strengthen partnerships tailored to the needs of
within local communities. These initiatives are expected to bolster the small and medium
Bank’s deposit base and effectively support its planned loan growth and enterprises.

broader strategic goals.

MANPOWER AND ORGANIZATION

In 2024, the total workforce of Enterprise Bank increased to 280, up from 271 in 2023. This growth was
primarily driven by the hiring of additional operational staff—particularly tellers and account officers—to
improve branch efficiency and support the Bank’s continued financial growth.

However, recruitment and timely filling of vacancies remained a challenge due to the evolving
employment landscape and the rising popularity of remote work opportunities. The Bank’s unique
operational structure also requires specific skill sets that are not commonly available in the general job

market.
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In response, EBI broadened its talent acquisition strategy by
accrediting more partner schools under its On-the-Job
2024 EMPLOYMENT Training (OJT) program. This initiative has enabled the Bank
HIGHLIGHTS to build a pool of prospective employees who can be readily
tapped to fill key positions as they become available.

TOTAL WORKFORCE: 280
EMPLOYEES (UP FROM 271 IN

2023) Recognizing that many of these recruits may lack prior
BROADENED TALENT POOL VIA banking experience or the specialized skills required in a
OJT PARTNER SCHOOL regulated financial environment, the Bank has significantly
EXPANSION . ted i hensi traini d devel t
SUSTAINED ANNUAL PHYSICAL invested in comprehensive training and developmen

EXAMS AND EXPANDED programs. These initiatives are designed to equip new hires
WELLNESS INITIATIVES with the technical knowledge and competencies needed to

meet regulatory standards and contribute effectively to the
Bank’s strategic goals.

At the same time, Enterprise Bank reaffirmed its commitment to kE

employee well-being by sustaining its annual physical examination By investing in both talent and
program and expanding wellness initiatives. These efforts reflect the well-being, we’re shaping a
Bank’s holistic approach to workforce management—promoting a workforce that is resilient,
healthy, positive, and productive work environment. Through these skilled, and ready to drive

programs, the Bank aims to boost creativity, reduce absenteeism, Enterprise Bank’s mission
foster a culture of care, and help employees maintain a strong forward.
work-life balance.

VISION FOR THE FUTURE

¢C Enterprise Bank envisions becoming one of the Top 15 Rural Banks in the
Enterprise Bank Philippines within the next five years. To realize this vision, the Bank has
envisions becoming one laid out a comprehensive strategy focused on branch expansion, digital
of the Top 15 Rural transformation, business process automation, and growth in secured and

Banks in the Philippines collateralized lending.
within the next five

S STRATEGIC EXPANSION PLAN

EBI is poised to expand its branch network over the next five years, with a strong emphasis on increasing
its presence in Luzon. The Bank plans to open four (4) new branches in Luzon, three (3) in Visayas, and
three (3) in Mindanao. This strategic expansion aims to extend the Bank’s reach, enhance accessibility to
its financial services, and drive revenue growth by capturing untapped and underserved markets.

EMBRACING DIGITALIZATION

In alignment with the ongoing digital transformation within the Philippine banking industry, EBI will
venture into online and mobile banking services over the next two years. Starting next year, the Bank will
begin exploring and adopting digital technologies such as Unified Payment Interfaces (UPI), internet
banking, and mobile banking applications. These innovations are expected to significantly improve
customer access and convenience, while enhancing operational productivity and competitiveness.

O
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PROCESS AUTOMATION FOR EFFICIENCY

Operational efficiency and cost-effectiveness remain central to EBI’s
long-term financial sustainability. The Bank is committed to the
secured lending as key automation of its business processes and financial reporting systems,
pillars of sustainable aiming to streamline operations, minimize manual errors, and reduce

growth. financing and administrative costs. This digital shift will position the
Bank for greater scalability and improved service delivery.

We are embracing digital
banking, automation, and

FOCUS ON SECURED LENDING FOR ASSET QUALITY

To balance portfolio risk and ensure continued profitability, EBI will concentrate on expanding its secured
and collateralized loan portfolio. By prioritizing loans backed by tangible assets, the Bank aims to enhance
asset quality, minimize credit losses, and secure more stable returns. This approach supports prudent risk
management while fueling growth.

COMMITMENT TO CUSTOMER EXCELLENCE

At the core of these strategic initiatives is EBI’'s unwavering commitment to providing excellent customer
service and fostering long-term partnerships with both existing and new clients. By building trust and
deepening client relationships, the Bank seeks to drive customer loyalty, promote operational
sustainability, and secure its long-term viability in an increasingly competitive banking environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Enterprise Bank believes that risk is an inherent aspect of operations
({4 in a banking institution. Therefore, the Bank must control, review,
and update its risk registers regularly, as various risks, including
credit, market, and operational risks, inevitably arise from the
operations. Risk management plays a critical role in ensuring the
stability and soundness of the Bank, as well as safeguarding the
stakeholders' interests. Thus, EBI adopts an effective risk
management practices to stay committed to complying with the
regulatory guidelines and legislative framework in mitigating the various risks inherent in banks, thereby
enhancing the Bank’s resiliency and ability to navigate through challenging economic conditions.

Risk is an inherent aspect of

banking, and Enterprise Bank
embraces it with discipline
and foresight.

RISK GOVERNANCE

The overall risk management oversight is undertaken by the Board of
Directors of EBI, which oversees the Audit, Risk, and Compliance ¢¢
Committee (ARCCo) and the Board Credit Committee. These two Controls are in place
committees ensure that controls are in place and that the aggregate risks and the aggregate risks
of the Bank are properly managed. The Board provides oversight by of the Bank are properly
approving the Bank’s Risk Management (RM) Framework, as well as the managed.

RM policies, procedures, and other control measures proposed to

manage risks.
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At the management level, the President of EBI serves as the Bank’s comprehensive risk officer. Specific
risks are mapped to the appropriate management committees. The Executive Committee provides general
oversight of EBI’s strategic and business risks. The Asset-Liability Committee provides risk oversight in
balancing the Bank’s financial assets, ensuring a sound mix of assets and liabilities. The Management
Committee ensures the smooth implementation of EBI’s plans and programs and oversees operational
risks. These committees provide recommendations and valuable input to the President for
decision-making.

The Risk Management Office (RMO) is an independent body that reports functionally to the Board of
Directors and administratively to the President. It serves as the coordinating office supporting the
Executive Committee, and it collects, analyzes, and prepares risk reports. The RMO is also responsible for
enforcing risk policies and limits, reporting risk exposures, measuring risks, validating risk management
strategies, and ensuring that a culture of risk awareness is ingrained throughout the organization.

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The guidelines, policies, and procedures in the conduct and implementation of operational risk
assessment, monitoring and review, and communication — the operational risk process as a whole is
embedded in the Operational Risk Management Framework of the Bank. It encompasses all of the Bank’s
processes, people, and systems including the risk of loss arising from external events.

The Bank’s Operational Risk Management (ORM) Governance Structure adopts the Three Lines of Defense
model of The Institute of Internal Auditors (IlA) Exposure Document to help ensure effective management
of operational risk across the Bank. This section sets out the respective set of responsibilities of the Three
Lines of Defense for management of risk and control.

The Three Lines of Defense distinguishes three (3) groups involved in effective management of risk and
describes the relationship between these groups and how responsibilities should be divided.

FIGURE 1: THREE LINES OF DEFENSE

1ST LINE: 2ND LINE: 3RD LINE:
OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT RISK MANAGEMENT/COMPLIANCE INTERNAL AUDIT

Functions that own and Functions that oversee
manage risks risks

 Functions that provide

Day to day ownership and Continuously monitors independent assurance
management of risks and contro system

control
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FIGURE 1.1: THREE LINES MODEL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS/AUDIT, RISK

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

- = - =

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE 2ND LINE OF DEFENSE 3RD LINE OF DEFENSE
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SUPPORT DEPARTMENTS COMPLIANCE

The “three lines model” of the IIA that was adopted by the Bank for risk management is accepted and practiced internationally. The
model specifically designate the right people, right processes and tools to ensure effective corporate governance and strong
compliance.

FIRST LINE OF DEFENSE

This function owns and manages risks. These are Bank employees assigned to branches, other business
units, and Support Departments. As the First Line of Defense, they ensure the effective management of
risks within the scope of their direct organizational responsibilities.

Their First Line operational risk management responsibilities are embedded in every individual’s duties
and every general management role. The identification, assessment, monitoring, controlling, and
mitigation of operational risk is an ongoing process that is integrated into the day-to-day activities of every
business and operating unitin the Bank.

This process also includes the effective implementation and adherence to the Bank’s RM policy, as well as
embedding its prescribed standards in the execution of their duties.

The First Line process owner also owns and manages risk. With respect to their direct organizational
responsibilities, process owners are expected to:

Identify risks

Assess, control, monitor, and report risks
Manage risk incidents

Build a strong risk culture

MW=

Unit Heads, Managers, and Department Heads have First Line ownership of all processes that support their
products or services performed within their respective function or business. They also function as Risk
Control Owners. Therefore, processes identified in the Bank’s line of business are assigned to a First Line
Owner. This emphasizes clear accountability for the processes, risks, and the effectiveness of controls.

O
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SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE

The Second Line of Defense are the support units with functions that essentially oversee or who specialize
in compliance or the management of risk and challenge the effectiveness of controls, and independent of
the income generating functions to ensure that the necessary balance in risk/return decisions is not
influenced by short-term pressures to generate revenues.

This is particularly important given that the revenues are recognized immediately while losses arising
from risk positions only manifest themselves over time.

THIRD LINE OF DEFENSE

This comprises the independent assurance provided by the Bank’s Internal Audit function, which has no
management responsibilities for any of the activities it examines. The Internal Audit Department performs
independent assessments of the suitability of the governance structure and the overall operational risk
management system, and reports its findings to the Board of Directors through the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee (ARCCo).

The Bank’s adapted 3 Lines of Defense is aligned with its objectives and operational conditions. Specific
roles and processes are appropriately assigned to each line of defense to promote structured
communication and collaboration for more effective risk management practices.

EBI’S OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

IDENTIFY
RISKS

GOVERN
OVERSEE ACCESS
ASSURE RISKS

INSTALL

POLICIES

AND/OR
CONTROLS

MONITOR
MANAGE

METRICS

1STLINE 2ND LINE 3RD LINE

+  Detailed and Iterative +  Based onImpact and *  Require and Implement
Exercise Probability Policies and Procedures

+  Periodic Revisit with +  Risk Level and Potential +  Reflect and How of
Metrics Losses Business

+ Informed by Any Actual +  Context = Risk Appetite +  Calibration for Balance VS
Issues and Events «  Metrics Trends Risk Appetite

+ Internal Loss Data +  Mediation Plans «  Assessment VS Appetite
Collection Analysis + Issues VS Objectives

+  Risk Self Control
Assessment
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OVERSIGHT FUNCTIONS

The Risk Management Office, Compliance Department and Internal Audit Department performs
independent oversight functions on behalf of the Board of the Directors of the Bank and reports directly
to the Board of Directors through the Audit Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCCo). The ARCCo is
responsible for assessing the annual performance of these departments taking into account how said
department carried out its duties and responsibilities.

A. OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Bank created the Risk Management Office (RMO) and is directed by a Risk Management Head (RMH).
The RMH directly reports to the Board of Directors through the Audit,Risk, and Compliance Committee
(ARCCo) - a Bank’s independent risk oversight committee pursuant to its own charter.

The RMO is responsible in handling operational risk concerns, and it shall assist the management in
meeting the responsibility of understanding and managing operational risk exposures. It shall also
ensure the development and consistent implementation of operational risk policies, processes, and
procedures throughout the bank.

B. COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

The compliance function conducts an independent assessment of the Bank’s compliance with laws, rules
and regulations, as well as internal policies, and determine areas that may potentially result in risk of loss
due to inadequate or failed internal processes, systems, and people. The latter includes inappropriate
conduct/behavior of personnel, officers, and the board, that may lead to fraud or any form of business
disruption.

The compliance function shall assess whether the identified operational risk exposure by the business
units or by the function itself shall affect the franchise value of the bank. In this regard, it shall advise and
assist management in establishing guidance on the appropriate implementation of relevant laws, rules
and regulations, and internal policies.

C. INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal audit shall conduct an independent assessment of the operational risk management framework,
including the implementation of operational risk management policies and procedures. The board,
through the ARCCo, shall ensure that the scope and frequency of audit is appropriate to the risk
exposures.

Any operational risk issue identified and reported in the audit process should be addressed by senior
management in a timely and effective manner, or raised to the attention of the board as appropriate.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) of the Bank is an integrated approach to risk management. It
looks at risk from a bank-wide perspective and involves the Board of Directors, Senior Management and
all business units in an interactive process of identifying, analyzing, measuring, controlling and
monitoring risks. ERM manages risk vertically, top to bottom and horizontally, across all bank units

O
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RISK APPETITE STATEMENT OF EBI

Risk appetite is the level of enterprise-wide risk that EBl is willing and capable to manage over an extended
period of time. The Risk Appetite Statement of EBI is aligned with its vision and mission and articulates the
aggregate risks the Bank is willing to take.

GENERAL RISK APPETITE STATEMENT

EBI shall continue to deliver innovative financial products and services that are attuned to the needs of its
target clientele groups to promote development of enterprises in its areas of operations. The Bank shall
exercise sound enterprise risk management principles, transparent decision-making and effective
communication to prioritize the risks. It will manage the following eight (8) interrelated categories of risks
to effectively supervise and ensure a safe and sound banking operations; strategic risk, credit risk, market
risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and compliance risk.

ON STRATEGIC AND REPUTATIONAL RISK

The Bank has a low appetite for activities and decisions that are not align with the vision and mission of
the Bank. Business decisions, projections and execution of those decisions, deployment of human
resources and responsiveness to changes are among the activities that the bank must properly execute to
achieve its goals and objectives.

ON CREDIT RISK

The Bank has low appetite on risk resulting from failure of the borrower to honor its financial obligations.
The Bank manages this risk carefully by being consistent with its written credit policies and guidelines.

ON LIQUIDITY RISK

The Bank has low appetite on risk resulting to non-payment of its financial obligations. The Bank manages
this risk by ensuring the availability of its funding resources when need arises.

ON OPERATIONAL RISK

The Bank has low appetite for risk on the availability of the systems which supports its core banking
functions. It also has low appetite for threats arising from external malicious attacks. The Bank aims to
provide a strong internal control process and a reliable cyber security framework.

The Bank has low appetite for the compromise of the processes governing the use of data information and
management. However, the Bank has no appetite for the deliberate and unauthorized misuse of its data
and information. The Bank is committed that its data and information are secured and managed in
accordance with the Data Privacy Act.

The Bank has low appetite for losses to the value of employees’ competencies, knowledge and skills. The
Bank hires motivated and qualified personnel to perform its duties and functions. It also aims to provide a

working environment that will stimulate the employees to be innovative and productive.

The Bank has low appetite for employee’s behavior that breaches the Code of Conduct. The Bank expects
its employees to conduct themselves with a high degree of integrity and to strive for excellence in the work

that they perform.
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ON COMPLIANCE RISK

The Bank has no appetite for any fraud, dishonesty or corruption committed by its employees. The Bank
shall take all allegations of suspected fraud or corruption very seriously. It shall respond fairly as set out in
the employee’s Code of Conduct.

The Bank has no appetite for deliberate or committed violations of tax laws, rules and regulations of its
regulatory bodies. The Bank is committed to a high degree of compliance with relevant regulations as well
as its internal policies and procedures.

IMPLEMENTING STRATEGIES

« The Bank takes calculated risks in order to abide by regulatory requirements and serve its shareholders
and maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio of above 10%.

« TheBank sustains its profitability in order to pursue its social responsibility and attain its annual Return
on Equity set in the approved operations plan.

« TheBankeffectively and efficiently manages and allocates its resources in order to realize the Return on
Assets set in the approved operations plan.

« The Bank maintains a liquidity ratio above the minimum liquidity ratio required by BSP to ensure
Bank’s obligations is meet.

« The Bank effectively implements its credit policies and guidelines to make sure that borrowers honor
their financial obligations in order to maintain past due ratio within the industry standard.

« The Bank creates an organizational climate that promotes professionalism, nurtures talents and
provides opportunities for professional growth and security.

« The Bank develops IT systems that will facilitate the delivery of products and services to its target
clients, as well as, achieve process efficiencies.

EBI’S RISK APPETITE THRESHOLD

LEVEL DESCRIPTION
NO APPETITE
The Bank is not willing to accept the risk in any situation that may result in
ABOVE loss of operations, compromised its long-term profitability, massive impact
LEVEL 4 on bank’s reputation among its stakeholders, major breakdown of its

information system or information integrity, significant incidents of
regulatory non-compliance. Any item marked with 4 should have existing
controls in place to ensure that risk will not materialize.

LOW RISK APPETITE

3 The Bank is not willing to accept the risk in most circumstances that may
result in loss of operations, compromised its long-term profitability,
massive impact on bank’s reputation among its stakeholders, major
breakdown of its information system or information integrity, significant
incidents of regulatory non-compliance. Any item marked with 3 usually
means that the bank sees more risk than potential reward in an initiative.
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MODERATE RISK APPETITE

2 The Bank is willing to accept some risk in certain circumstances that may
result in loss of operations, compromised its long term profitability,
massive impact on bank’s reputation among its stakeholders, major
breakdown of its information system or information integrity, significant
incidents of regulatory non-compliance.

HIGH RISK APPETITE

1 The Bank is willing to accept the inherent risk as it foresees that the
opportunity or benefit it will be derived from a risk-taking activity
outweighs the potential losses that Bank may incur or can be fully
recovered.

RISK MONITORING AND REPORTING

The implementation of risk management strategies and action plans are monitored on a continuous
basis. This is to ensure that strategies and action plans are adequate in addressing risks and capability
gaps to determine if there is a need to come up with additional strategies to resolve residual risks.

Risk reports to capture priority enterprise-wide risks are designed. Management may see the need for
new risk reports to be done in light of growing business concerns or changes in economic and regulatory
environments.

In the course of risk management monitoring, the risk reporting process is designed/re- designed,
modified or enhanced.

The Risk Management Office of EBI is tasked with monitoring the accomplishment of the Risk
Management Action Plans. Coordination shall be made with Risk Designate, who shall cause the
preparation of the accomplishment report. The accomplishment report is presented to the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee and the Board.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING AND TERRORIST FINANCING RISK MANAGEMENT

Consistent with the Bank's mission of faithful compliance to existing laws and regulations, the Board
and the Management are one in preventing any money laundering and terrorist financing activities.
Measures undertaken by the Bank include the enhancement of its Know Your Client (KYC) policies and
procedures in the assessment of a client's risk profile.

Another risk mitigating control involves cross-referencing the names of newly-opened accounts against
the United Nation Sanction List. Any applicant assessed as “high risk” or may potentially expose the
Bank to money laundering and terrorist financing will not be allowed to open an account.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Under current and applicable banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not

be less than an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of its risk assets.

Capital account figures of Enterprise Bank for the year (based on 2024 Audited Financial Statements):

AMOUNT (N MILLIONS)

TIER 1 CAPITAL 248.66
TIER 2 CAPITAL 134.86
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL 383.52
CAPITAL REQUIREMENT FOR CREDIT RISK 309.01

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT FOR MARKET RISK -

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT FOR OPERATIONAL RISK 41.77
TOTAL CAR (%) 10.93%
TIER1 CAR 7.09%

BREAKDOWN OF QUALIFYING CAPITAL (IN MILLIONS)

CORE CAPITAL 334.72 134.86 469.58
PAID-UP COMMON STOCK 400.00 - 400.00
DEPOSIT FOR COMMON STOCK SUBSCRIPTION - - -
RETAINED EARNINGS (136.39) - (136.39)
UNDIVIDED PROFITS 71.11 - 71.11
EglEDF EJFLDRIE%RSF’_F(;FEJQL AND CUMULATIVE ) 114.80 114.80
PAID-UP LIMITED LIFE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED ) ) ]
STOCK WITH THE REPLACEMENT UPON REDEMPTION

GENERAL LOAN LOSS PROVISION . 20.06 20.06
UNSECURED SUBORDINATED DEBT - - -
DEDUCTIONS (86.07) (0) (86.07)
DEFERRED TAX ASSET (80.92) - (80.92)
UN-BOOKED VALUATION RESERVES - -

GOODWILL (2.95) ] (2.95)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (2.20) - (2.20)
UNSECURED LOANS TO DOSRI - - -
TOTAL-OPERATIONAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS - - 417.72
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL 248.66 134.86 383.52
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EBI believes that a strong and effective corporate governance helps to cultivate a company culture of
integrity, leading to positive performance and a sustainable business overall thus, the Bank continues to
adhere to the highest standards of corporate governance. The Bank is always committed to ensure public
trust and confidence by bringing forward its best practices aligned in the Bank’s mission and vision. The
Bank’s corporate governance strictly adheres to effective oversight, strict compliance with regulations and
successful sustainability strategies to promote a robust and sound banking institution.

EBI’s corporate governance is aligned in the SEC Code of Corporate Governance and the Enhanced
Corporate Governance Guidelines for BSP’s supervised Financial Institutions. So, the Bank see to it that it’s
corporate governance is guided by a well-defined governance framework that foster ethical business
practices.

This report clearly define the corporate governance framework of the Bank that is being initiated in all levels
of the organization that promote the principles of transparency, accountability, responsibility,
independence and fairness.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the highest governing body of Enterprise Bank, Inc. It is responsible in ensuring that
a strong and effective governance system is in place. It directs the long-term success of the Bank, sets
strategic business directions, appoints senior officers, confirms management structures appropriate for the
Bank, and oversees major-risk taking activities while monitoring business performance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties in corporate governance, the board has created six
committees, namely: Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, Executive Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee, Related Party Transactions Committee, Credit Committee, and Information Technology
Steering Committee. The scope of authority, duties and responsibilities of each committees is clearly
defined in its respective charters.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board is composed of seven members pursuant to the Bank’s Article of Incorporation and By-Laws,
composed of one (1) independent director, five (5) non-executive directors and one (1) executive director
who is the President and CEO of the Bank. The present composition of the board complies with the 1/3
minimum requirement of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and Securities and Exchange Commission.

All members of the board are all professionals coming from various fields of expertise such as banking, law,
accounting and finance, bank regulations and business environments.
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BOARD OVERALL RESPONSIBILITY

EBI's Board of Directors sets the overall policies and strategic directions of the Bank, which guides the
Management and operating units in the daily operations.

Furthermore, the Board provides oversight in the overall performance of the Bank, and advocates good
corporate governance with a firm commitment to ethical standards and compliance to legal, institutional,
regulatory requirements.

The Board also ensures that the Bank remains accountable to its stockholders. Thus, members of the Board
of Directors are expected to:

1 2 3 ) 5 6 7
Remain fitand Attend orientation | Ensure soundness, Observe Continuously Continuously Conduct fair
proper for the and training. The effectiveness, and confidentiality of | exercise objective devote timeand business
position for the Directormusthave | adequacy of the non-public andindependent attention as transactions with

duration of his/her | attended a seminar Bank’s control information which judgementon necessary for the the Bank to make
term; on corporate environment; he/she shall have corporate affairs discharge of his/her | surethat personal
governance and acquired because | requiring his/her dutiesand interest does not
shall have of hisbeinga decision or responsibilites;and, | distort hi/her board
continuous Director; approval; decision.
development and
education related
to Bank operations;

SELECTION PROCESS FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The board members can be a Filipino and non-Filipino citizens, at least 25 years old at the time of election or
appointment; and physically and mentally fit to discharge their functions. No individual is eligible to become
or be a director if he is or becomes a candidate for a holder of any public office. Members of the Board of
Directors are determined fit for the position by considering their integrity, probity, educational attainment,
financial literacy, knowledge and experience, and independence of mind. Likewise, the members of the
Board shall possess the foregoing qualifications for directors in addition to those required or prescribed
under R.A. No. 8791 and other existing applicable laws and regulations.

Non-Filipino citizens may become members of the Board of Directors of the Bank but their participation in
the Board shall be limited to their proportionate share in the equity of the Bank and current applicable laws.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent director/s of the Bank must or has not been an officer or employee of the Bank, its
subsidiaries or affiliates or related interests during the past three (3) years counted from the date of his
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election. He or she is not a director or officer of the related companies of the Bank’s majority stockholder.
Not a stockholder owning more than two percent (2%) or with shares of stock sufficient to elect one seat in
the Board, or in any of its related companies or of its majority corporate shareholders. Not a relative,
legitimate or common-law of any director, officer or majority shareholder of the Bank or any of its related
companies.

For this purpose, relatives refer to the spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, parent-in-law,
son-/daughter-in-law, and brother-/sister-in-law. Not acting as a nominee or representative of any director
or substantial shareholder of the Bank, any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders.

Not retained as professional adviser, consultant, agent or counsel of the institution, any of its related
companies or any of its substantial shareholders, either in his personal capacity or through his firm; is
independent of management and free from any business or other relationship, has not engaged and does
not engage in any transaction with the institution or with any of its related companies or with any of its
substantial shareholders, whether by himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is a partner
or a company of which he is a director or substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are
conducted at arm’s length and could not materially interfere with or influence the exercise of his judgment.

DESCRIPTION OF THE ROLE AND CONTRIBUTION OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected by the Bank’s Board of Directors to lead the composition of the Board,
preside over meetings, and lead the board to consensus from the disparate points of view of its members. The specific
duties of the Chairman of the board are the following;

1. Provides leadership in the Board of Directors. The chairman of the board ensures effective functioning of the
board, including maintaining a relationship of trust with board members.

2. Ensure that the board takes an informed decision. The chairman of the board ensures a sound decision
making process and he encourages and promotes critical discussions and ensures that dissenting views can be
expressed and discussed within the decision-making process

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

There shall be a regular meeting of the Board of Directors which may be held anywhere in or outside of the
Philippines, at least once every quarter at such hour, day and place as may be called by the following present
officers, in such hierarchy and succession: (1) Chairman; (2) President; (3) Corporate Secretary. Provided,
that written notice should be received by each director at least seven (7) days before the date of the
scheduled meeting. No resolution with respect to any matter may be put to any meeting of the BOD unless
the notice of the meeting contain reasonable details of the matter such as to enable the Director to take an
informed decision.

A Special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called by the following present officers, in such hierarchy
and succession: (1) Chairman; (2) President; (3) Corporate Secretary. Provided that each director is notified
at least two (2) days prior thereto, specifying the agenda, date, tiem and place of the meeting. No resolution
with respect to any matter may be put to any meeting of the BOD unless the notice of the meeting contain
reasonable details of the matter such as to enable the Director to take an informed decision.

Majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business at any meeting of the
Board of Directors, but less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is reached.
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In 2024, the board held a total of ten (10) meetings: four (4) regular meetings and six (6) special meetings. Each
board member complied with the SEC’s minimum attendance requirement.

BOARD MEETINGS’S

NAME OF DIRECTOR DIRECTORGHIP | CDIRECTOR | INDIRI PERGHARES O' | ATTENDANCE
(JAN - DEC 2024)
RICHARD M. RODRIGUEZ NON-EXECUTIVE 8 233,242 5.83% 10/10 100%
ROBERTO F. SALAZAR EXECUTIVE 4 746 0.02% 10/10 100%
MAXIMINO A. SALANG, JR. NON-EXECUTIVE 17 450,171 11.25% 10/10 100%
ATTY. RONALD E. ALVIZO NON-EXECUTIVE 6 14,636 0.37% 10/10 100%
ALBERTO P. CAPATI NON-EXECUTIVE 10 261,879 6.55% 10/10 100%
LUNG FAI CHAN NON-EXECUTIVE 8 304,070 7.60% 10/10 100%
EMERSON DC STA. ANA INDEPENDENT 2 1 0.00% 10/10 100%

RENUMERATION

Enterprise Bank’s by-laws provides no compensation to be paid to any directors as such but Directors may be
allowed for reasonable honoraria for actual attendance at meetings, which shall include fare and other actual
expenses incurred in connection thereto.

Salaries of the executives of the Bank is fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with such rules and
regulations as the Monetary Board may prescribe. The Bank shall also provide a liability insurance connected to
the corporate functions of its Directors and Corporate Officers. It shall also insure the life of its directors and
corporate officers with reputable insurance company taking into the consideration the circumstance of the
person of said directors and corporate officers.

TERM LIMIT, SUCCESSION POLICY AND RETIREMENT

The regular terms of director shall be from the date of his election to the regular annual meeting of the annual
stockholders of the Bank or until his successor shall have been elected and qualified to take his place at said
annual meeting. Unless the director shall sooner resign, be removed from the office, or becomes unable to act by
reason of death, disqualification, or otherwise, he shall hold office during the term for which elected and until his
successor is elected and qualified. Any director who ceases to be the owner of at least one share of the capital
stock of the Bank of which he is a director shall thereby cease to be a director. The board of directors shall serve
for one (1) year.

The independent director of the Bank may only serve as such for a total of five (5) consecutive year. As of
December 31, 2023, the Bank has no independent director who has served for more than five (5) years.

Moreover, in the event that the director has no longer the required fitness and capacity for the position of the
director, he shall inform the board of his intent to retire or refrain from seeking re-election.
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PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

Members of the Board undergo performance review through annual self-assessment using self-assessment
questionnaires that help them assess their competence and independence as a body, commitment to
corporate governance, transparency, committee activity, and audit and risk oversight.

They also conduct a self-assessment of their Board committee memberships aided by questionnaires aimed
to determine the effectiveness and fitness of the committee composition, processes undertaken by the
committee in the course of conducting their oversight functions, and the tasks undertaken by the committee
based on Board’s mandate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Enterprise Bank’s dividend policy is determined by the agreement of the Board of Directors. Dividends shall
be distributed to stockholders, either in cash or stock or both, subject to the policy and pertinent rules and
regulations of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. Under the Bank’s By-laws, the dividends to be distributed are
the remaining sums after the Bank’s earning are appropriately applied for capital.

RETIREMENT PROGRAM

Members of the Board holding management positions, and form part of the manpower complement of the
Bank are qualified for the retirement benefit plan. Otherwise, he/she shall receive benefits prescribed in the
bank’s by-laws.

ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

Members of the Board are required to attend external training related to Corporate Governance, Anti-Money
Laundering, and the like. Participation in gatherings initiated by the Rural Bankers of the Philippines is also
instrumental for the Board of Directors to be kept abreast of the latest trends in the banking industry and on
updates in the regulations.

ABOVE AND BEYOND
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RICHARD M. RODRIGUEZ

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR

FILIPINO 8 YEARS

EDUCATION DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

. VICE CHAIRMAN: MAY 17, 2017 - MAY

« BSACCOUNTANCY, SOUTHWESTERN 262020
UNIVERSITY « CHAIMAN OF THE BOARD: MAY 19,
. MASTERS IN MANAGEMENT, 2021 - PRESENT

UNIVERSITY OF SAN JOSE

RECOLETOS
. BACHELOR OF LAWS, DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES

SOUTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY
FASTWAY CONSTRUCTION, FASTWAY FINANCE

OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS

. RURAL BANK OF RONDA

. ROYAL COLLEGES OF SCIENCE AND

PRESIDENT/DIRECTOR
MAN/-;%E/’%IIESI;I;TOR . MERCHANT BANK
BRANCH HEAD
. SALAZAR COLLEGES . INSULAR SAVINGS BANK

PROFESSOR CL HEAD

BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

MANAGEMENT TRAINING PROGRAM, SEMINAR ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, APPROACH TO
CREATING RECOVERY AND RESOLUTION PLANS

ROBERTO F. SALAZAR

DIRECTOR

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR

FILIPINO 4 YEARS

EDUCATION DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

BS ACCOUNTANCY, NOTRE DAME DIRECTOR: MAY 26, 2020

MARBEL COLLEGE |
OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED
i
. PCIBANK «  FINANCIAL ANALYSIS SEMINAR
«  APPRAISER ACCOUNT OFFICER +  CORE CREDIT TRAINING
. INSULAR SAVINGS BANK «  COUNTERFEIT DETECTION SEMINAR
«  BRANCH OPERATIONS OFFICER . CITIGROUP RCSA
. CITIBANK SAVINGS, INC. . CITI-SELLING SEMINAR AND
«  BRANCH MANAGER/HEAD AML-KYC-CIPP ORIENTATION
. ENTERPRISE BANK, INC. . LEADERSHIP TRAINING
«  GROUP HEAD-EL/BBG «  TRAIN ATRAINOR FOR CITIBANK
. CONSUMER-WEALTH SAVINGS INSTALLMENT
DEVELOPMENT BANK «  SIGNATURE VERIFICATION TRAINING
«  GROUPHEAD «  AMLA

. CREDIT SEMINAR

. DEPED PROCESS SEMINAR

. APPROACH TO CREATING RECOVERY
AND RESOLUTION PLANS
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MAXIMINO A. SALANG, JR.

DIRECTOR

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR

FILIPINO 17 YEARS

EDUCATION DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

BSBA MARKETING, SOUTHWESTERN

UNIVERSITY DIRECTOR: FEBRUARY 13,2007

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES

TAGDECOR CHEMWOOD

OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS

ASSITCO-CEBU
SALES SPECIALIST
BORMAHECO
SALES SPECIALIST
FUTS/GSTS TRUCKING
HAULING MANAGER

MAXAN CONSTRUCTION AND
TRUCKING SERVICES, INC
PRESIDENT/STOCKHOLDER

BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
BASIC RURAL BANKING COURSE

ATTY. RONALD E. ALVIZO

VICE CHAIRMAN

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR
FILIPINO 6 YEARS
EDUCATION DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT
BS ECONOMICS - UNIVERSITY OF - DIRECTOR: JUNE 25,20218 - MAY 19,
MINDANAO 2021
BACHELOR OF LAWS -ATENEODE [« VICE-CHAIRMAN: MAY 18,2022 -
DAVAO UNIVERSITY PRESENT
OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS
. ENTERPRISE BANK, INC.
GENERAL MANAGER/PRESIDENT AND CEO
gll_:\::llzcoE RONOCO &ALVIZO LAW RURAL BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF THE

PHILIPPINES
DIRECTOR

CARAGA RURAL BANKERS FEDERATION
PRESIDENT

MINDANAO MICROFINANCE COUNCIL
DIRECTOR

MANAGING PARTNER

BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

EFFECTIVE BRANCH MANAGEMENT, BASIC RURAL BANKING COURSE, MICROFINANCE STANDARDS,
MANAGER’S COURSE, STRATEGIC PLANNING, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE,
LAKBAY ARAL, BOARD OF GOVERNANCE, RISK MANAGEMENT, MICROFINANCE MANAGEMENT
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT, MONITORING CONTROL SYSTEM, GOOD
GOVERNANCE, MANDATORY CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION

O



ENTERPRISE Bank 2024 Annual Report

L
A Raral Bank

ALBERTO P. CAPATI

DIRECTOR

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR

FILIPINO 10 YEARS

EDUCATION

AB GENERAL STUDIES, ATENEO DE MANILA UNIVERSITY

MBA, DE LASALLE UNIVERSITY

DIPLOMA ON REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT, RESEARCH INSTITUTE FOR
MANAGEMENT SCIENCE (NETHERLANDS)

DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

DIRECTOR: MAY 10, 2014 - PRESENT

DIRECTORSHOP IN OTHER COMPANIES OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS

OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

+  PRESIDENT/CEO, ENTERPRISE BANK, INC.

e INTERNATIONAL SHORT TERM CONSULTANT FOR THE
TVET IN WESTERN REGION OF MONGOLIA PROJECT AND
TEAM LEADER FOR EMPLOYMENT PROMOTION (TIMOR
LESTE) , GFA CONSULTING INTERNATIONAL, GERMANY

+  ADVISOR, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING FUND (ETF) AND
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (BDS), TECHNICAL
AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING (TVET)
SECTOR STRENGTHENING PROGRAM, GRM
INTERNATIONAL, MELBOURNE, AUSTRALIA

e LEAD CONSULTANT, REVITALIZING AND ENHANCING
CAPACITY OF ASIAN NETWORK FOR SME DEVELOPMENT,

TECHNONET ASIA
«  LIVELIHOOD DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST, LIVELIHOOD *  SEMINARON ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING LAW
AND MICROFINANCE SUPPORT COMPONENT OF THE «  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK’S EARTHQUAKE AND «  CERTIFICATE IN CONSULTING IN SMALL BUSINESS

TSUNAMI EMERGENCY SUPPORT PROJECT (ADB-ETESP)

FOR ACEH AND NIAS, INDONESIA,SNOWY MOUNTAIN MANAGEMENT (CONSULTING EXCELLENCE)

ENGINEERING CORPORATION (SMEC), AUSTRALIA «  CERTIFICATE IN INDUSTRIAL EXTENSION TRAINING
. CONSULTANT, GERMAN AGENCY FOR TECHNICAL . DIPLOMA IN ENTREPRENEURIAL MOTIVATION

«  CONSULTANT, TECHNONET ASIA (SINGAPORE) AND THE
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT SERVICES PROJECT

e TEAM LEADER, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CENTRES,
SMALL ENTERPRISE PROJECT II,GTZ INTERNATIONAL
SERVICES

ENTREPRENEURSHIP DEVELOPMENT ADVISOR, PNG
EMPLOYMENT ORIENTED SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
PROJECT (EOSDP), ADB TA, GTZ INTERNATIONAL
SERVICES

+  PRESIDENT/CEO (1998-1999); CHAIRPERSON OF THE
BOARD (1999-2000), PHILIPPINE CEFE NETWORK
FOUNDATION, INC

e CEOAND CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD, 888 LOANS
CORPORATION

«  CHIEF TRAINER, CEFE TRAINING OF TRAINERS,
COUNTRYSIDE ENTREPRENEURSHIP DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM, GTZ PHILIPPINES

e CONSULTANT, INTERNATIONAL LABOUR
ORGANISATION, MANILA OFFICE
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LUNG FAI CHAN

DIRECTOR

NATIONALITY
FILIPINO

EDUCATION

ARCHITECTURE, UNIVERSITY OF STO.
TOMAS

2024 Annual Report

NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR

7 YEARS

DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

DIRECTOR: MAY 6, 2017

DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES

NONE

OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS

. LAM-AN CANDLE FACTORY

B OWNER

. JKC FOOD PRODUCTS
B OWNER

. FONGSON CONSUMER PRODUCTS
CORP.

. PRESIDENT

BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS

NONE

EMERSON DC STA. ANA

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

NATIONALITY

FILIPINO

EDUCATION

BA PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION - UP
DILIMAN

CERTIFICATE IN BUSINESS ECONOMICS,
UNIVERSITY OF ASIA AND THE PACIFIC

OTHER CURRENT POSITIONS

SALESLINK SOURCES CORPORATION
PRESIDENT/STOCKHOLDER

NO. OF YEARS SERVED AS DIRECTOR
2 YEARS

DATE OF FIRST APPOINTMENT

MAY 18, 2022

OTHER PREVIOUS POSITIONS

WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK
COMMERCIAL LENDING DIVISION HEAD

BANK OF MAKATI

. FIRST VICE PRESIDENT

ASIATRUST DEVELOPMENT BANK
VICE PRESIDENT

PLANTERS DEVELOPMENT BANK
SENIOR ASSISTANT MANAGER

INTERNAL AUDITING SEMINAR, 67TH CHARTER ANNIVERSARY SYMPOSIUM.

BSP AND OTHER TRAININGS ATTENDED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COURSE, UNDERSTANDING RISK ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT, BSP REGULATORY RELIEF MEASURES, 2020 WINTER
FAMILY WOORI PROGRAM, WORKSHOP ON COMPLIANCE AND UPDATE ON MLTFPP, NEW EMPLOYEE ON-BOARDING PROGRAM, BASIC COURSE IN
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT SYSTEM, RISK-BASED LEARNING SEMINAR FOR ACCOUNT
OFFICERS, RCSA TRAINING, RBAP 65TH CHARTER ANNIVERSARY SYMPOSIUM, RBAP RISK BASED INTERNAL AUDITING SEMINAR, 71ST RBAP
ANNUAL CONVENTION. RBAP’S 2ND ANNUAL CONVENTION OF THE COMPLAINCE OFFICERS (CO’S) AND INTERNAL AUDITORS. RISK BASED
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BOARD COMMITEES

The Board is supported by six (6) different committees with their respective memberships, functions and
directives as follows:

AUDIT, RISK, AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (ARRCO)

NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE OO EIM eSS % OF ATTENDANCE
EMERSON D. STA. ANA ICNHDAE'E'E”I\‘I\S’ENT DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
MAXIMINO A. SALANG, JR. mgm%&cuﬂw DIRECTOR 6/6 100%

LUNG FAI CHAN ll\\lllgl\l\/llﬁg(%CUTIVE DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 6

The ARCCo assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities over the Bank’s financial reporting
policies, practices, internal and external audit functions, as well as, risk management and compliance
functions. The committee meets every quarter or as often as may deem necessary and appropriate. The
Chairman of the committee may call a special meeting whenever necessary.

The Audit, Risk Management, and Compliance Committee performs the following functions:

Supervises the Internal Audit Department, Risk Management Office, and Compliance Management
Office to ensure effective and efficient performance of their functions;

Assess reports from the three units to ensure timely and effective actions on issues that may arise from
operations;

Ensures the implementation of the annual review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls,
risk management, and compliance measures;

Establishes and maintains a system whereby officers and staff may, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible improprieties or malpractices in all areas of the Bank’s operations. It shall ensure that
arrangements are in place;

Implements independent investigation, appropriate follow-up action, and subsequent resolution of
complaints;

Assesses the organizational structure and staffing of the Internal Audit, Risk Management Office and
Compliance Department, subject to the Bank’s guidelines.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS COMMITTEE (RPT)

NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE EOOEIMEETINSS % OF ATTENDANCE
EMERSON D. STA. ANA ICNHS\E'E,"E"QB"ENT DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
MAXIMINO A. SALANG, JR. NN e CUTIVE DIRECTOR 6/6 100%

LUNG FAI CHAN l\NA(El\N/I?EE(RI,E’CUTIVE DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 6
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The RPTCo assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in ensuring that
transactions with related parties are handled in a sound and prudent manner.

RTPCo performs the following functions:

+ Evaluates the existing relations between and among businesses and counterparties to ensure that all
related parties are continuously identified. RPTs are monitored, and subsequent changes in
relationships with the counterparties (from non-related to related and vice versa) are captured;

« Evaluates all material RPTs to ensure that these are not undertaken on more favorable economic
terms (e.g. price, commissions, interest rates, fees, tenor, collateral equipment) to such related
parties than similar transactions with non-related parties under similar circumstances and that no
corporate or business resources of the bank are misappropriated or misapplied, and to determine any
potential reputational risk issues that as a result of or in connection with the transactions;

« Approves all related party transaction that falls below the materiality threshold, however, all approval
made by RPT Committee is subject to BOD confirmation;

+ Ensures that appropriate disclosure is made and/or information is provided to regulating and
supervising authorities relating to the Bank’s RPT exposures, and policies on conflicts of interest or
potential conflict of interest;

+ Reports to the Board of Directors regularly the status and aggregate exposures to each related party
as well as the total amount of exposures to all related parties;

« Ensures that transactions with related parties, including the write-off of exposures, are subject to
periodic independent review or audit process; and,

+ Oversees the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling, and
reporting RPTs, including the periodic review of RPT policies and procedures.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Interested directors and officers with personal interest in the transaction shall fully and timely disclose
any and all material facts, including their respective interests in the related party transaction. In case a
member has conflict of interest in a particular RPT, the member shall abstain from discussion, approval
and management of such matter affecting the Bank. In case they refuse to abstain, their attendance shall
not be counted for purposes of assessing the quorum and their votes shall not be counted for purposes of
determining majority approval.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES IN RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Related Party Transaction Committee (RPTCo) is mandated to meet once every quarter or as it may
deem necessary and appropriate. The Chairman of the Committee may call a special meeting whenever
necessary, in which a presence of three (3) members shall constitute a quorum.

A notice of each meeting stating the date, time, venue, and agenda shall be forwarded to the members of
the Committee at least three (3) working days before the meeting. The notice of the meeting shall be
accompanied by the supporting reports that comprise the agenda.

The Committee may request any director, officer, or employee of the Bank, or other persons whose advise,
counsel, or information would be necessary to aid in effective decision-making.

O
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Within 20 calendar days after the end of the reference quarter, all approved material RPTs, including all
DOSRI transactions, should be reported to BSP. Updating and reviewing the inventory of related parties of
the Bank should be done annually to capture organizational and structural changes of the bank and its
related parties. The inventory of related parties is to be updated by Compliance Department.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Under the General Banking Act and BSP regulations, the amount of direct credit accommodations to each
of the Bank’s directors, officers and stockholders, of which 70% must be secured should not exceed the
amount of their respective deposits and book value of their respective investments in the Bank.

In addition, the aggregate DORSI loans generally should not exceed the Bank’s capital funds or 15% of the
Bank’s loan portfolio, whichever is lower. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank is in compliance with these
regulations.

In 2024, the following RPTs were entered into between the Bank and its related parties (see also Note 20
of the Audited Financial Statements section). The summary of the Bank’s transactions with its related
parties as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 is presented below:

RELATED PARTY CATEGORY 2028 O NeE e A gxzﬂgmm
DOSRI
DOSRI LOANS £22,302,734 $24,875,813
% OF DOSRI LOANS TO TOTAL LOANS 0.89% 1.12%

OTHER RELATED PARTIES

ADVANCES TO OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES £137,552 $302,573

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

COMPENSATION £10,990,818 $9,964,041

ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE (ALCO)

NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE N EieS % OF ATTENDANCE
RICHARD M. RODRIGUEZ CHAIRMAN 12/12 100%
ROBERTO F. SALAZAR E"XEEMC?JETT\’,E DIRECTOR 12/12 100%
ALBERTO P. CAPATI mgmg’&unw DIRECTOR 12/12 100%
RONALD E. ALVIZO mgm%(%cunw DIRECTOR 12/12 100%

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 12

O
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The Asset and Liability Management Committee was established to assist the Board of Directors in
assessing the adequacy and monitoring of the implementation of the Bank’s Asset and Liability
Management Policy and related procedures. The ALCO will meet at least monthly, however, frequent
sessions may be required in periods of increased economic activity, in times of unanticipated liquidity
volatility and when specific issues require immediate further study and follow-up.

Specifically, these duties and functions are the following:

Ensures the development of an appropriate ALM Policy of the Bank. This policy will, among other
things, set forth the Bank’s asset and liability management general policy relating to liquidity, interest
rate risk management, capital management, and investments. ALCo shall also implement additional
policies and procedures relating to asset and liability management as may be consistent with the ALM
Policy;

Reviews and discusses the ALM policy with management, and after taking into consideration any
matters that the ALCo may deem advisable and appropriate, including management
recommendations, the ALCo will annually recommend the ALM Policy to the Board of Directors for its
approval; and,

Approves exceptions to the ALM Policy to address specific conditions or circumstances that may arise
from time to time.

IN TERMS OF LIQUIDITY RISKS, THE ALCO:

Reviews the current and prospective liquidity positions and monitor alternative funding sources;
Reviews measurement reports on various risks that can be measured with a reasonable degree of
effort. Compares simulated exposures of these risks to policy limits;

Discusses and reports on the impact of major funding shifts and changes in overall investment and
lending strategies;

Reviews the current and prospective capital levels (risk-based as well as net worth) to determine
sufficiency concerning expected growth, interest rate risk, price risk, and asset/mix quality; and,
Monitors the capital position of the Bank and the capital management activities by the Bank to ensure
that capital levels are maintained following regulatory requirements and management directives.

IN TERMS OF INTEREST RATE RISKS, ALCO:

Reviews the outlook for interest rates and economy at local, regional, and international levels;
Reviews maturity/repricing schedules with particular attention to the maturity distribution of large
amounts of assets and liabilities maturing (e.g. bills payable)
Develops alternate strategies deemed appropriate, which take into account changes in:

i. Interest rate levels and trends

ii. Deposit and loan pro ducts and related markets

iii. Banking regulations

iv. Monetary and fiscal policy; and,
Develops parameters for the pricing and maturity distributions of deposits, loans, and investments.

IN TERMS OF OTHER RISKS, ALCO'S DUTIES ARE T0:

Performs an independent review (using internal audit staff) of the validation and reasonableness of
the input, assumptions, and output of the bank’s asset/liability management model or procedures;
and

Coordinates an ongoing appropriate education program on the subject ALM for the ALCo members,
senior management, and the Board of directors.

O
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ALCo also ensures that it is aware of the overall financial performance of the Bank and therefore will keep
abreast of significant changes/trends in its financial results. In this regard, ALCo:

+ Reviews actual net interest income and asset/liability distributions versus budget;

+ Measures performance against established standards and, if appropriate, against peer group data;
+ Reviews the level and makeup of non-earning assets; and,

+ Reviews the liquidity and contingency funding conditions of the Bank.

Given the importance of the ALCo in the management of the Bank’s balance sheet and related earnings
stream, the ALCo also reviews the Bank’s annual budget.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO0)

NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE EOJOEMEETIISS % OF ATTENDANCE
RICHARD M. RODRIGUEZ CHAIRMAN 12/12 100%
ROBERTO F. SALAZAR Eﬂf&%ﬁf\’m DIRECTOR 12/12 100%
ALBERTO P. CAPATI “N”g“,jF‘EEXF;CUT,VE DIRECTOR 12/12 100%

ATTY. RONALD E. ALVIZO ll\\l/lgl\l\/ll?EEXRE’CUTIVE DIRECTOR 12/12 100%
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 12

The EXCO was established by the Board of Directors to oversee on its behalf the management of
operations and delivery of excellent service. In order to facilitate decision-making between board
meetings or in urgent circumstances, EXCo is authorized to address problems or issues that come up
between board meetings, and make recommendations and/or decisions as necessary. It is primarily
responsible for ensuring that the mandates and resolutions of the Board of Directors and of the Monetary
Board of the BSP as well as all policies and regulations necessary for the conduct of the bank operations
are carried into effect.

If the full board meets only four (4) times a year, the committee should at least meet monthly between
board meetings in order to help the organization maintain appropriate oversight relative to finances,
operations and programs.

Within the authorities delegated by the board, responsibilities of the committee are the following:

« Serving as the core of the strategic planning committee when planning is undertaken. It is responsible
for setting up the budget for the Bank and approves any proposed suggestions or amendments for the
budget;

« Reviewing the bank’s performance vis-a-vis quarterly and annual goals. It discusses the
analyses of the Bank’s financial and operational performance using financial data
against the Bank’s targets on growth, efficiency, profitability, asset quality and
productivity;

O
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« Developing and recommending policies for presentation to Board. Specifically, it:

= a) Decides and proposes to the Board through the President, revisions to existing
policies or new policies for the Bank’s advancement;

= b) Instructs the Product Development and Policy Management Office to draft, improve,
revise or change applicable Bank policies and procedures whichever is appropriate. If Committee
finds the proposals acceptable, the same are prepared for Board approval. The members must
carefully consider the implications of the proposals on other operations and must decide on the
premise that benefits outweigh the cost involved.

« Considering, resolving, and managing important issues confronting the Bank including
all key risk areas relevant to the business of the Bank;

+ Receiving reports concerning matters arising the Bank’s public disclosures and the
implementation and evaluation of internal controls;

+ Reviewing and approving contracts; and,

+ Determining agenda for Board Meetings.

CREDIT COMMITTEE (CRECOM)

NO. OF MEETINGS
NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE JOEIMEETI % OF ATTENDANCE
RICHARD M. RODRIGUEZ CHAIRMAN 12/12 100%
MEMBER, 12/12 .
ROBERTO F. SALAZAR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 100%
MEMBER, /12 .
ALBERTO P. CAPATI NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 100%
MEMBER,
ATTY. RONALD E. ALVIZO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 12/12 100%
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 12

The CreCom meets frequently as necessary and acts as a long committee, processes, scrutinizes, and
recommends the approval or rejection of applications for loans. No loan is made unless the application
has received the unanimous approval of the qualified members of the CreCom present during the meeting
at which such action is taken and provided further that no loan is granted in violation of the Rural Banks
Act and implementing rules and regulations approved by the Monetary Board. The committee meets at
least once a month.

The Credit Committee is primarily responsible for the following:

« Designs and recommends lending policies that seek to be responsive to the needs of the target market
while satisfying the Bank’s projected financial outcome and social mission; The results of
environmental scanning, market assessment, competition check, or any other forms of a market
review conducted assist the Bank in ascertaining which products to develop, launch, and offer; and
whether these products provide reasonable assurance to the Bank of a competitive return on
investment;

« Establishes policy on large exposure by defining the ceiling of loan granted to a single borrower or
entity or even related parties so as not to exceed what is prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
(BSP). It shall likewise agrees on the maximum concentration attributed to the physical location,
industry, or even by product. The Board CreCom have a wide knowledge of the risks inherent in the
segment of the market it aims to serve, the existing and foreseen threats in the industry where the
market belongs, including the probability of fortuitous events to occur in the place where the

borrowers operate or reside;
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« Seeks periodic advice from the Compliance Officer or Unit on the requirements on provisioning
against bad debts. Loan loss provisioning shall at all times be no less than what is prescribed by the
BSP;

« Establishes guidelines in setting lending rates. Pricing of loans is a top priority of the Board CreCom,
subject to the approval of the Board. The guidelines specify the grounds for the recommended rates.
The CreCom possesses adequate knowledge in the pricing of loans given the financial costs, the
inherent credit risks, and the desired spread. It secures information from the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCo) through the Unit on the existing funding costs as the determinant in setting the
floor prices of loan products. The Board CreCom is aided by an account profitability computation
worksheet that would net out from the gross yield all costs related to the account proposal to arrive at
the net yield per account;

« Requires the submission of monthly reports on the quality of loan portfolio and the plan of action to
improve performance from the Heads of Consumer Loans, and Enterprise (Business) Loans; and,

« Monitors regularly the past due accounts and evaluates the effectiveness of ROPA management
handled by the Legal Department. An annual target to reduce the level of past due and improve
disposal of ROPA should be set at every beginning of the year.

The decisions reached on each loan proposal shall reflect the consensus of the members. The parameters
set for evaluation of proposals include a review of identified business risks: supply, demand, production,
process, customer relations, sources of funds, liquidity management, succession, planning, among
others; and borrower’s background check and credit investigation: negative files, lawsuits, relationship
with suppliers and creditors, etc.

The Board CreCom is aided by a Borrower’s Risk Rating (BRR) method using a scorecard to outline the

criteria for measuring an applicant’s creditworthiness. The Board CreCom is updated on the
ever-changing current market conditions, its challenges, and how it would affect the Bank’s risk exposure.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STEERING COMMITTEE (ITSC)

NO. OF MEETINGS
NAME OF DIRECTOR ROLE ATTENDED % OF ATTENDANCE
ROBERTO F. SALAZAR CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
MEMBER, 0
ATTY. RONALD E. ALVIZO NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 6/6 100%
MARK LOUIE T. SALINAS MEMBER, RBG HEAD 6/6 100%
ABEL VILLAMOR MEMBER, IST HEAD 6/6 100%
MEMBER, .
JOYG. POLITICO CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 6/6 100%
MEMBER,
GILBERT D. YU CHIEF OPERATIONAL OFFICER 6/6 100%
TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 6

The IT Steering Committee monitors IT performance and institutes appropriate action to ensure
achievement of desired results and oversees the information technology investment priorities for
Enterprise Bank, Inc. Members of the ITSC are appointed by the Board of Directors.
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The ITSC:

Provides adequate information to the Board of Directors regarding IT performance, status of major

IT projects or other significant issues concerning IT operations;

Provides oversight of IT governance and input regarding alignment of IT strategic plan with Bank's
business strategic objectives;

Determines prioritization of IT projects in line with the Bank's business strategy and priorities;
Provides practical plan in managing risks associated with the use of technology; and,

Monitors IT service levels and service improvement.

ABOVE AND BEYOND




w M 2024 Annual Report

A Korsl Baak

THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ROBERTO F. SALAZAR, CPA
PRESIDENT AND CEO

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 4 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

APPRAISER/ACCOUNT OFFICER: PCI BANK

BSC MAJOR IN ACCOUNTING, NOTRE BRANCH OPERATIONS OFFICER: INSULAR SAVINGS BANK
DAME MARBLE COLLEGE BRANCH MANAGER/HEAD: CITIBANK SAVINGS, INC.
GROUP HEAD (EL/BBG): ENTERPRISE BANK, INC.

GROUP HEAD (CONSUMER): WEALTHBANK

PROFILE

Mr. Salazar serves as President and CEO of EBI since May 2020 and he also holds a position of Executive Director as one of the members of the Board of
Directors of the Bank. Prior to his presidency with the Bank, Mr. Salazar once headed the Branch Banking Group and Enterprise Lending Group of
Enterprise Bank in 2008 to 2010. He has established the enterprise lending group of the Bank in 2009 and provided his expertise in credit loan packaging
and marketing. His acumen in consumer lending has also contributed to the increase in the consumer loan portfolio of the Bank for the period
2009-2010.

Mr. Salazar has over 30 years of experience in banking institutions and has a strong background in lending specializing in consumer and commercial
loans. His expertise lies in the marketing and product development of loan products and services. Through his revolutionary corporate and banking
strategies, he has successfully guided the Bank to achieve goals which led to maximized profits and financial performance. And with his successful track
record and consistent achievements in surpassing benchmarks for the market, he has been frequently recognized for his outstanding accomplishments
in the field of banking.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Approach to Creating Recovery and Resolution Plans by RBRDFI

GILBERTD. YU
CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER/CORPORATE SECRETARY

-
—

L=
-

i

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 8 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

PRESIDENT/MANAGER: RURAL BANK OF RONDA, INC.
COMMERCIAL LENDING HEAD: WEALTHBANK
MANAGER: LAPU-LAPU RURAL BANK, INC.

MANAGER: PENINSULA RURAL BANK

PROPRIETOR: GY CREDIT AND COLLECTION SERVICES
ACCOUNT OFFICER: BAP CREDIT GUARANTY CORP.
LOANS CLERK: RURAL BANK OF SUBANGDAKU

. BS IN COMPUTER ENGINEERING,
UNIVERSITY OF SAN CARLOS

. MBA (UNITS EARNED), UNIVERSITY
OF SAN CARLOS

PROFILE

Mr. Yu has been with the Bank since December 2016 as Branch Head and serves as Chief Operations Officer in February 2023 and Corporate Secretary
since July 2021. Mr. Yu has exemplary experience in retail banking operations for his more than 30 years in the banking institution. He is the former
President/Manager of Rural Bank of Ronda, Inc. which was subsequently merged with Enterprise Bank, Inc. in 2016 and being EBI as the surviving entity.
He is also heading the Enterprise Lending Center in Mindanao bringing into his expertise gained in commercial lending from his previous employment
as Lending Head in WealthBank. With his array of expertise in strategic implementation, performance analysis, marketing, and customer service with the
innate ability to implement operational plans he was able to contribute to the increase in the Bank’s loan portfolio specifically in terms of Enterprise
Lending and provide operational efficiency in terms of retail banking operations.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

O

67th Charter Anniversary Symposium by RBAP
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JOY 6. POLITICO, CPA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE
FILIPINO 12 YEARS
EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT
+ BS ACCOUNTANCY, ATENEO DE DAVAO SENIOR MANAGER: PUNONGBAYAN AND ARAULLO
UNIVERSITY STAFF ASSISTANT | & Il: PUNONGBAYAN AND ARAULLO

. MBA, ATENEO DE DAVAO UNIVERSITY

PROFILE

Ms. Politico serves as the Chief Financial Officer since February 2023 and the incumbent Treasurer of Enterprise Bank, Inc. Ms. Politico started her stint
with EBI in July 2012 as Finance Head. She has gained extensive training and experience in auditing as formerly part of Punongbayan and Araullo for 16
years. Ms. Politico help establish the revised Loan Loss Methodology of the Bank for consumer lending and enterprise lending base on BSP Circular 855.
Ms. Politico was also part of the Management Committee, Admin Hearing Committee and Information Technology Steering Committee of Enterprise
Bank. She was also part of the management member of the Asset and Liability Committee of EBI since 2012. Ms. Politico is currently supervising the
Accounting and Budget, Compensation and Benefit and Treasury Unit. With her proficiency in all areas of finance and having exceptional financial
analytical skills she was able to contribute to the growth and development of the Bank.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

67th Charter Anniversary Symposium by RBAP

ROSELYN ABERION
HUMAN RESOURCE MGT. & DEV’T HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 5MONTHS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

. HR DIRECTOR: RIPECONCEPTS, INC. (A

BACHELOR OF ARTS MAJOR IN MASS NAGARRO COMPANY)
COMMUNICATION « HRHEAD: WEALTHBANK

< HRCONSULTANT: NCR

« HROFFICER: GOLDEN ABC, INC.
« HRASSOCIATE: EURO CB (PHILS)

As the Head of Human Resources and Management Development (HRMD), Ms. Aberion plays a pivotal role in shaping Enterprise Bank’s people strategy,
cultivating a high-performance culture, and aligning talent development initiatives with the organization’s strategic goals.

Ms. Aberion oversees the full spectrum of HR functions including talent acquisition and retention, learning and development, performance
management, employee relations, compensation and benefits, succession planning, and organizational transformation. Under his/her leadership,
HRMD has championed key initiatives such as:

« Implementing competency-based recruitment

« Strengthening leadership development and succession pipelines

« Enhancing employee engagement through wellness, recognition, and feedback mechanisms
« Promoting a values-driven and inclusive workplace culture

With over 29 years of experience in human capital management, Ms. Aberion brings deep expertise in both strategic and operational HR. Prior to joining
Enterprise Bank, she held various HR leadership roles in the banking and other services sector. She holds a degree in Mass Communication and has
completed professional certifications in HR leadership, organizational development, or labor relations.

Ms. Aberion believes that people are the heart of the organization and that investing in their growth, well-being, and potential is essential to driving
sustainable business success. Through her dynamic leadership, Enterprise Bank continues to build a future-ready workforce, empowered to thrive in a
rapidly evolving financial landscape.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED
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MARK LOUIE S. SALINAS
RETAIL BANKING GROUP HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 22 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

BS IN COMPUTER ENGINEERING, UNIVERSITY NONE
OF SAN JOSE RECOLECTOS, CEBU

PROFILE

Mr. Salinas serves as the Retail Banking Group Head and the advisor of the Information System and Technology Department. He joined EBI in July 2002
and started his stint with Enterprise Bank as loan encoder in Bayugan branch. Mr. Salinas rose from the ranks, from being an encoder, to bookkeeper, to
branch head next being IST manager and currently to his current position as Retail Banking Group Head. He is elemental to the migration of the Banks’
operating system from microbanking to centralized core-baking system which is the Byte per Byte system. He also help realized the objective of the Bank
to collaborate with Bancnet and able to deploy 22 automated teller machines to select branches. Also, during his leadership the Bank was able to
become a member of the Philippine Clearing House Corporation (PCHC). With his expertise in branch banking and technological innovation, the Bank
was able to streamline most of its business processes and introduce cloud base technology for efficient banking operations.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

None

CRISANTO P. TENIO

==
4 CREDIT DEPARTMENT HEAD
NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE
FILIPINO 4YEARS
EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT
BACHELOR IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION DEPED UNIT HEAD/AREA SALES HEAD/SALES HEAD:
MAJOR IN BANKING AND FINANCE, ST. WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK
JOSEPH COLLEGE BRANCH MANAGER/SME ACCOUNT MANAGER/LOAN

OFFICER/BOOKKEEPER/DEV’T. OFFICER: GREEN BANK,
INC. (NOW EWRB)

PROFILE

Prior joining the Bank, Mr. Tenio was with Eastwest Rural Bank (formerly Greenbank) holding a managerial position in the loans department. He was also
formerly connected with Wealth Development Bank holding the position as Head of product under the Sales/Loans Department. With his expertise in
consumer lending, he was able to craft and introduce enhancement in the credit and business processes of the Bank. With his expertise in product
development, Mr. Tenio also made exemplary contributions to the product enhancement and development of the Bank’s consumer loans and other
secured loans. He also contributed to the updating of the credit practices and policies of the Bank for the streamlining of credit and business operations.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Credit Investigation Training and Basic Appraisal Principles by RBRDFI

O
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LEOHMAR G. ANGELIA
COLLECTION DEPARTMENT HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 3YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE OF EDUCATION - ST.
THERESA COLLEGE, TANDAG CITY, SURIGAO AREA SALES HEAD: WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK

DEL SUR

PROFILE

Mr. Angelia has been in the banking industry for 16 years and has various exposures in product development and sales. He currently serves as the Head
of the Collection Department. He was with Enterprise Bank, Inc from 2004 until 2013 and joined Wealth Development Bank from 2013 to 2019 as Area
Sales Head. He again joined the Bank in 2021 as collection head and spearheaded the success for achieving the objectives of the Bank in terms of past
due reduction. He also contributed in crafting the collection strategies of the Bank and provided his expertise in terms of collection efficiency and
effectivity.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Debt Collection Approach and Strategies by RBRDFI

ATTY. LLEWELLYN D. YRAY
LEGAL COUNSEL

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

JURIS DOCTOR/LLB - 2018: UNIVERSITY OF

VISAYAS (UV) SALES OFFICER, PARALEGAL OFFICER, LITIGATION

AB  ECONOMICS - 2004: UNIVERSITY OF | OFFICER: WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK
MINDANAO TAGUM CAMPUS (UM)

PROFILE

Atty. Yray leads the Legal Department of Enterprise Bank, Inc. in providing strategic legal guidance and upholding the Bank’s adherence to applicable
laws and regulatory requirements. With his knowledge in banking law, asset recovery, and corporate governance, he plays a vital role in managing legal
risks, handling litigation, and overseeing the resolution and disposal of Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA).

His leadership supports the Bank’s commitment to integrity, accountability, and sustainable asset management.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Labor Law: The Fine Art of Sub-Contracting by Philippine Retailers Association - Cebu Chapter

O
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CHRISTINE 0. TE ENG FO
CORPORATE AFFAIRS AND PLANNING MANAGER

NATIONALITY

FILIPINO

EDUCATION

NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

16 YEARS

OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN COMMERCE MAJOR IN
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING (BSC-MA) - ATENEO DE
DAVAO UNIVERSITY (ADDU)

. MASTER IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (MAJOR IN
ENTREPRENEURSHIP) - UNITS EARNED,
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHEASTERN PHILIPPINES

. NEW ACCOUNTS TELLER, TELLER,
ACCOUNT OFFICER: BDO NETWORK
BANK (FORMERLY ONE NETWORK
BANK)

PROFILE

Ms. Te Eng Fo has been serving as the Head of the Corporate Affairs and Planning Department (CAPD) since September 2023. She began her career at
Enterprise Bank in January 2008 as a Treasury Assistant and was later promoted to Fund Sourcing Manager in October 2013.

During her tenure as Fund Sourcing Manager, Ms. Te Eng Fo significantly contributed to the Bank’s growth by expanding its funding partnerships to 14
financial intermediaries, securing over 21 billion in stand-by credit facilities. Her years of experience in banking have honed her skills in communication
and documentation, making her a valuable asset to the organization.

After a decade in fund sourcing, she was promoted to her current role as CAPD Head, where she now leads key initiatives aligned with the Bank’s strategic
direction. Among her notable contributions is spearheading the development of the new EBI website (currently in progress) and overseeing projects
supporting the Bank’s rebranding efforts.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Policies and Procedures Manual Writeshop by RBRDFI

JULIETA L. MIRANDA
SURIGAO AND NORTHMIN AREA HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 25 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE - ST. THERESA NONE
COLLEGE, TANDAG CITY, SURIGAO DEL SUR

PROFILE

Ms. Miranda is a homegrown talent of Enterprise Bank. After college she joined the bank as a bookkeeper and eventually became the branch operation
officer for several branches in Surigao del Sur. She has been with the Bank for more than 25 years and she is an epitome of an employee who raised from
the ranks. With her dedication and hardwork Ms. Miranda was appointed the area head of Surigao and Northern Mindanao area in July 2019. Currently,
she supervises the banking operation in Surigao, Davao and Misamis Oriental provinces specifically in Lianga, Surigao, Aras-asan, Hinatuan, Tandag,
Bislig, Cateel, Mati, Madrid and Surigao. She has greatly contributed in the improvement in the banking operations and the efficiency on delivery of
services to the clientele.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

None
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NEIZEL JENE Y. CABAHUG
VISAYAS AREA HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

. BRANCH MANAGER- WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK

CORP. 2023
. CONSUMER LENDING UNIT HEAD-HOUSING LOAN -
BACHELORS OF SCIENCE IN COMMERCE WEALTH DEVELOPMENT BANK CORP. 2018-2023
MAJOR IN MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING . SALES OFFICER-HOUSING LOAN- WEALTH
(BSC-MA)- LA SALLE UNIVERSITY- OZAMIZ DEVELOPMENT BANK CORP. 2012-2018

. LOANS SUPERVISOR- BANK OF MAKATI- CEBU
BRANCH 2010-2011

. CASHIER/NEW ACCOUNTS/TELLER- BANK OF MAKATI- < >
CEBU BRANCH 2008-2010

PROFILE

Ms. Cabahug brings with her over 16 years of solid experience in the banking industry, marked by leadership, operational excellence, and a strong
commitment to community banking. As the Visayas Area Head of Enterprise Bank, Inc., she oversees the strategic direction, performance, and overall
operations of branches within the Visayas region.

Ms. Cabahug is a graduate of Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in Management Accounting (BSC-MA) from La Salle University - Ozamiz. Her
educational background laid a strong foundation in financial management and analytical thinking, which she has effectively applied throughout her
career in banking.

With a reputation for integrity, strategic leadership, and deep market insight, Ms. Cabahug continues to play a vital role in driving growth, ensuring
regulatory compliance, and fostering customer-centric service across her area of responsibility.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

High Performance Sales and Business Development by RBRDFI

NOEL E. CABRERA
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 23 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN ENGLISH, HOLY NONE
CROSS OF DAVAO COLLEGE

-

PROFILE

Mr. Cabrera has been with the Bank for 22 years. He started his career with the Bank last August 2002 as a microfinance account officer. He rosed from the
ranks from branch supervisor to satellite office manager and successfully promoted to branch head. In 2019, he was promoted to South Central Area
Head supervising banking operations of 9 branches specifically branches in Tagum, Panabo, Nabunturan, San Francisco, Trento, Bayugan, Butuan,
Gingoog and Cagayan de Oro. His expertise in branch banking is notable to the good performances achieved by his area of operations over the years and
these branches has widely contributed to the profitability of the Bank.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

None
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ARTHUR JOHN 0. LUGTU, CPA
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 3YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

. BANK CLERK/ACCOUNTANT/BOOKKEEPER/ASST.

. BS IN ACCOUNTANCY, XAVIER UNIVERSITY, MANAGER/MANAGER/ASSISTANT
CAGAYAN DE ORO CITY VICE-PRESIDENT-PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK
. BACHELOR OF LAWS, XAVIER UNIVERSITY, . COMPLIANCE OFFICER/CHIEF OPERATING
CAGAYAN DE ORO CITY OFFICER-SOUTHBANK INC. A RURAL BANK

. ASSISTANT VICE-PRESIDENT-PR SAVINGS BANK
CORPORATION

. ASSISTANT VICE-PRESIDENT-PRODUCERS SAVINGS BANK
CORP.

. AUDITOR-COMMISSION ON AUDIT-REGION 10

PROFILE

Mr. Lugtu serves as the Compliance Department Head of Enterprise Bank since 2021. He started his career with the Bank as Branch Head of Cagayan de
Oro Branch. Mr. Lugtu has 41 years of banking experience from various rural, thrift and commercial banks. He was assigned as the Deputy Managing
Director of the Philippine National Bank (PNB) - Tokyo Branch, Assistant Vice-President of PNB International Banking and Overseas Remittance Sector,
Assistant Vice-President of PNB Regional Consumer Finance Center; and former Regional Manager of Producer's Bank. Mr. Lugtu developed his internal
control practices and compliance programs over the years of banking experience. He was promoted as Chief Compliance Officer in January 2021 and ever
since then crafted various policies and framework for the Bank.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

RBAP’s 2nd Annual Convention of the Compliance Officers (CO’s) and Internal Auditors (IA’s) by RBAP, Approach to Creating Recovery and Resolution
Plans by RBRDFI

IAN Y. CAANGAY

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE
FILIPINO 17 YEARS
EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT
. BS ACCOUNTANCY, ATENEO DE DAVAO
UNIVERSITY . CREDIT ASSITANT: PLANTERS DEV’T. BANK
. MASTERS IN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY . LOANS OFFICER/INTERNAL AUDIT ASSISTANT/DATA
(UNITS EARNED), UNIVERSITY OF ENCODER-MICRO: ENTERPRISE BANK

SOUTHEASTERN PHILIPPINES

PROFILE

Mr. Caangay serves as the Internal Audit Head starting January 2022. He joined Enterprise Bank in 2007 and developed his expertise in internal control
practices serving the group for more than 16 years. He also rosed from the ranks serving as internal audit supervisor during his early years of service with
the Bank before he got promoted to the position of Internal Audit Manager and Internal Audit Head. He also serves as the Information System and
Technology manager on 2019 to 2020. He took some units earned for Masters in Information Technology at the University of the Southeastern
Philippines.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

RBAP’s 2nd Annual Convention of the Compliance Officers (CO’s) and Internal Auditors (IA’s) by RBAP, Risk Based Internal Auditing Seminar by RBRDFI
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REYMON R. EREZ0
RISK MANAGEMENT HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE
FILIPINO 10 YEARS
EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT
. BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN OPERATIONS ASSISTANT: DAVAO INTEGRATED PORT AND
STATISTICS-UNIVERSITY OF STEVEDORING SERVICES
SOUTHEASTERN PHILIPPINES INSTRUCTOR: UNIVERSITY OF MINDANAO-PANABO
. GRADUATE DIPLOMA IN COLLEGE
ECONOMETRICS-UNIVERSITY OF AUDITOR: FUTURE OPTIONS DISTRIBUTION INC.
SOUTHEASTERN PHILIPPINES EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT, PLUTO MPC

PROFILE

Mr. Erezo serves as the Risk Management Head of the Bank. He started as a rediscounting officer with EBI in 2007 and left the company in 2011. In 2015,
Mr. Erezo joined the Bank as risk analyst and then appointed as Risk Management Head in September 2023. His integral contribution to the Bank is on
the preparation and crafting of the policies and framework of the data privacy, customer assistance, operational risk management and stress testing. He
has been with the Bank for more than 9 years and his masters in econometrics has made a great contribution for his prowess in policy making and
statistical data preparation for the Bank.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

Sectoral Meeting of Bank’s Data Privacy Officers and 7th National Privacy Awareness Week Conference by NPC

ABEL S. VILLAMOR
INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND TECHNOLOGY HEAD

NATIONALITY NO. OF YEARS OF SERVICE

FILIPINO 2 YEARS

EDUCATION OTHER PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

. NETWORK & SYSTEM ADMINISTRATOR: RD FISHING
INDUSTRY, INC.

. IT PROGRAMMER/ADMINISTRATOR: RD FISHING
PAPUA NEW GUINEA LIMITED

. PROGRAMMER/SENIOR APPLICATION LEAD/SYSTEM
ANALYST PROGRAMMER: ALSONS AQUCULTURE
CORPORATION

. TECHNICAL SUPPORT: SARANGANI DEVELOPMENT
COOPERATIVE

PROFILE

Mr. Villamor has over 19 years of experience in the field of Information Systems and Technology. He currently heads the Bank’s IT Department, where he
is responsible for overseeing the maintenance of hardware and software infrastructure and developing strategic initiatives to support the Bank’s
technological advancement.

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN COMPUTER
SCIENCE (BS CS), NOTRE DAME OF
DADIANGAS UNIVERSITY (NDDU)

With strong expertise in both technological solutions and project management, Mr. Villamor has led numerous key initiatives that significantly improved
the Bank’s IT capabilities. Under his leadership, the Bank successfully enhanced its cybersecurity framework, established a data recovery site and a
solar-powered data center, and automated various business processes. He also spearheaded the implementation of critical system enhancements to
ensure compliance with Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) regulations.

Mr. Villamor’s forward-thinking leadership has contributed significantly to increased operational efficiency and the strengthening of the Bank’s IT
infrastructure.

2024 EXTERNAL TRAININGS/SEMINARS ATTENDED

None
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SELECTION PROCESSES FOR EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for approving the selection and appointment of the competent executive
management level of the Bank specifically the President/CEOQ, Chief Operations Officer and Chief Financial
Officer. Moreover, for other senior management position it is filled from within the ranks prioritizing
employees for opportunities in growth and career development. On the other hand, the Bank is adapting to
recruit outside the organization in the precept that certain special qualifications, experience and training are
required for the certain job. Fit and proper standards are applied in the selection of key officers and utmost
consideration is given preference to their integrity, technical expertise and banking experience. Moreover,
the Bank has existing policy on recruitment and deployment of personnel which is encompassing to all
personnel of the Bank.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

It is the policy of Enterprise Bank, Inc. to provide feedback, review progress, identify gaps and address
potential issues for the advancement of its employees.

Using performance management tools and assessment questionnaires, the Bank led by its Human Resource
Management Department ensures the conduct of periodic performance reviews (monthly, quarterly,
semi-annual, and annual) as it deemed fit and applicable to its employees for regularization, promotion,
transfer to other fields, annual salary review, succession planning and training and development.

RENUMERATION POLICY

Atalltimes, the Bank adheres to Labor Standards in the payment of wages and benefits to its employees and
officers. Its compensation and incentive structure is in accordance to mandates set by the regulators and the
Bank’s By-Laws.

The salaries of the executive officers of the Bank are fixed following the remuneration system approved by
the Board of Directors.

For the year 2024, among the highest-paid officers are personnel handling the positions of President and
CEO, Chief Operations Officer, and Chief Financial Officer. In determining the remuneration of these
personnel, the bank sets into consideration, as basis in the assessment of remuneration offer, the
candidate's educational attainment, degree of experience in the field of banking or in specific job
assignment, and age.

At all times, the Bank adheres to labor standards in the payment of wages and benéefits to its employees. Its
compensation and incentive structure is by mandates set by the regulators and the Bank’s By-laws. The
Bank is concerned with the welfare of its employees and ensures the provision of competitive and equitable
salaries.

As a standard basis in classifying the positions, the Bank adopts the Point Rating System Method in assessing
the value of jobs available in the organization and in pricing them correspondingly following defined
compensable factors.

O
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The pay scale is divided into five (5) categories, namely:

« Levels 1-4: Rank and File

« Level 5-6: Supervisory

« Levels 7-10: Managerial

« Levels 11-13: Executives

« Levels 14-16: C-level Executives

Each level has an established pay range for hiring, midpoint, and the maximum rate which serves as a guide
for the Human Resources Management Department in determining the appropriate price for a new entrant
or a newly promoted employee. Also provided are defined steps in each rank for progressive salary
movement where the granting of increase is not driven by promotion in rank but on consistently creditable
performance within the established job perimeters.

SUCCESSION POLICY

The Bank aims to sustain the excellent core values of Bank by ensuring the next-in-line leaders are equipped
with adequate knowledge and competence. The Bank believes that it is significant to cultivate talents within
the organization through planned development activities like mentoring, training and job rotation to
replace key positions. The detailed program development of the Bank for its succession planning is
incorporated in its Policy on Succession Plan. The plan has detailed policies and procedures for short-term
replacement and permanent appointment of second line management personnel in the event of unplanned
and/or extended absence, retirement and/or resignation of the incumbent.

The Program Development Plan of the Bank are outline in the following manner:

«  Short-Term Succession Plan: Temporary or Unplanned Absence;
« Long-term/Permanent Succession Plan: Resignation, Retirement, Termination and Death; and,
«  Emergency Retention Plan.

INCENTIVE STRUCTURE

The incentive structure varies according to the peculiarities in the department belonging to the business
group and the defined performance parameters and standards set year-on-year.

Overall, while the Management recognizes achievement beyond expectation, it also considers contribution
to the bottom line in the administration of reward.

ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

The Bank accords deserving employees a venue for professional advancement through continuing
education in specialized courses in their field of expertise during off-work hours, which is deemed beneficial
to both the individual and the Bank.

For its employees to become effective in their jobs, the Bank regularly conducts training needs analysis to
know the skills needed for professional enhancement of its employees.

O
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The Bank provides both external and internal training as deemed necessary. Employees who are
recommended to be sent to external training are granted full assistance.

The Bank also takes advantage of technology through online learning. Through webinars, employees are
provided with reading materials, audiovisual presentations, and educational videos to get updated and
well-informed of the latest trends to enrich their skills and competencies towards productivity and
efficiency.

RETIREMENT PROGRAM

Enterprise Bank, Inc. is concerned with the welfare of its employees and ensures the provision of benefits
even after separation. It is the policy of the Bank to comply with the requirements of the law to provide
employees with retirement benefits subject to the terms and conditions of the established Retirement
Program.

The Retirement Program is non-contributory and provides for post-employment, retirement or termination
of employees.

The retirement benefits are provided to employees through a benefit plan that defines the amount of benefit
an employee will receive upon retirement, dependent on the age, years of service, and salary. The Bank’s
benefit retirement plan covers all regular full-time employees whose retirement benefits are paid in lump
sum at the time of the allowable retirement age of 60 or 65. Early retirement at the age of 50-considered a
management-initiated program-follows a different set of terms and conditions approved by the
Management and the Board.

The quoted retirement age also applies to senior management including members of the Board holding
management positions, except those in consultancy or contract-type employment engagement.

Moreover, termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Bank before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

Further, voluntary separation benefits are also considered by the Bank’s retirement plan for employees who

have served at least five consecutive years following the vesting schedule outlined in the program; while
employees separated because of death or disability are granted with all accrued retirement benefits plus a
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HUMAN RESOURGE: OUR GREATEST ASSET
RECOGNIZING EXCELLENCE AT WORK

At Enterprise Bank, Inc., we believe that our people are our greatest
asset. Their dedication, hard work, and integrity are the driving force
behind our continued growth and success. In recognition of this, EBI
has developed structured performance management and employee
recognition programs that highlight excellence across all levels of the
organization.

We conduct annual performance reviews for all employees—from
executives to rank-and-file staff—to assess strengths, identify areas for
improvement, and provide guidance for career advancement. These
evaluations serve as the foundation for performance-based salary
adjustments and promotional opportunities, ensuring that merit and
contributions are duly recognized.

To foster a culture of excellence, EBI implements monthly recognition
programs for high-performing Account Officers. Those who
demonstrate outstanding disbursement performance are rewarded with cash incentives, acknowledging
their consistent delivery of results.

We also celebrate employee loyalty through our annual
Service Awards. These honors recognize individuals who
have dedicated 5, 10, 15, 20, or over 25 years of service to
the Bank. Awardees receive cash incentives, plaques, and
certificates, as a gesture of appreciation for their
long-standing commitment. This program not only
honors our loyal employees but also encourages others
to build their careers with EBI.

In line with this, we also host an annual Awards Ceremony
to honor top performers across key categories. The
following accolades are given: Branch of the Year,
Account Officer of the Year, Branch Head of the Year and
BOO (Branch Operations Officer) of the Year. Each
awardee receives a plaque and cash incentive as a token
of the Bank’s appreciation for their exemplary
performance and  dedication. Through these
recognitions, EBI reinforces its values of hard work,
integrity, and excellence across the organization.
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PROMOTING WELLNESS AND WORK-LIFE HARMONY

In today’s fast-paced environment, EBI is committed
not only to professional development but also to the
holistic well-being of its employees. Our wellness
framework integrates mental health and work-life
balance indicators into our core performance
metrics, underlining our dedication to a healthy and
productive workforce.

In 2024, EBI organized several initiatives to promote
both mental and physical wellness. These included
wellness webinars and health-related activities,
addressing the importance of mental resilience,
stress management, and physical health.

EBI ACTIVITIES SUPPORTING MENTAL AND PHYSICAL WELL-BEING
ZUMBA SESSIONS

The Bank recognizes that its human resources are its greatest
assets; therefore, the physical well-being of employees is given
the highest priority. In line with this, the Bank organized weekly
Zumba sessions at its Head Office in Davao City as part of its
wellness program. This initiative aimed to reduce stress,
improve physical health, and promote a positive work
environment by enhancing mood and encouraging social
interaction. The sessions were held once a week over a
three-month period.

THE VOICE/EBI GOT TALENT

Company-led activities such as The Voice and EBI Got Talent play a vital role
in building a positive organizational culture and strengthening employee
engagement. These events provide a platform for employees to showcase
their talents beyond the workplace, fostering creativity, camaraderie, and
confidence.

By encouraging participation in fun and expressive activities, the Bank
nurtures a sense of belonging and community among its staff. These
initiatives break down hierarchical barriers, promote teamwork, and
g enhance interpersonal relationships across departments.

Ultimately, activities like The Voice and EBI Got Talent are not only
entertaining but are also meaningful tools in building a vibrant and
supportive workplace culture—where people feel valued, engaged, and

inspired.
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S BOWLING

The Bank recognizes that fostering teamwork and
employee engagement extends beyond the confines of
" the workplace. In line with this, a bowling activity was
held on November 30, 2024, at SM Lanang Bowling
Center, attended by personnel from the Head Office and
' Matina Branch.

' ' The event featured friendly competition, with cash
~ prizes and medals awarded to the highest-scoring team,

: : as well as to the top individual performers in both male
and female categories. It was a fun-filled occasion that encouraged camaraderie, communication, and
connection in a relaxed and enjoyable environment.

Through initiatives like this, the Bank reaffirms its
commitment to promoting employee wellness,
enhancing engagement, and cultivating a positive
and inclusive workplace culture.

EMPLOYEE TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT AND =
STRATEGIC ENGAGEMENTS

IN-HOUSE TRAINING

The Bank recognizes the critical importance of employee training and development in remaining
competitive within an increasingly dynamic and complex corporate environment. In 2024, the Bank
implemented a comprehensive suite of learning and engagement programs aimed at equipping employees
with essential skills and knowledge in key areas such as operational efficiency, leadership, and risk
management.

To reinforce operational strength, the Bank conducted the Branch Operations Officer Conference—a
strategic initiative designed to support the operational backbone of the organization. This conference
served as a collaborative platform for operations leaders across all branches, facilitating open dialogue,
knowledge sharing, and the resolution of operational challenges. Key topics covered included risk
management, audit findings, process improvements, customer service enhancement, and the adoption of
—— s €Merging technologies. The
event also helped align
branch  operations  with
updated policies and
# compliance standards while
promoting  best  practice
standardization across the
network.
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EMPLOYEE TRAINING, DEVELOPMENT AND STRATEGIC ENGAGEMENTS
- IN-HOUSE TRAINING

The Bank recognizes the critical importance of
employee training and development in remaining
competitive within an increasingly dynamic and
complex corporate environment. In 2024, the Bank
implemented a comprehensive suite of learning and
P engagement programs aimed at equipping
employees with essential skills and knowledge in key
areas such as operational efficiency, leadership, and
risk management.

To reinforce operational strength, the Bank
conducted the Branch Operations Officer
Conference—a strategic initiative designed to
support the operational backbone of the
organization. This conference served as a
collaborative platform for operations leaders across
all branches, facilitating open dialogue, knowledge sharing, and the resolution of operational challenges.
Key topics covered included risk management, audit findings, process improvements, customer service
enhancement, and the adoption of emerging technologies. The event also helped align branch operations
with updated policies and compliance standards while promoting best practice standardization across the
network.

In parallel, the Bank held a bankwide sales -
meeting to cultivate a high-performance sales
culture and advance business growth |
objectives. The meeting aligned sales teams I
with corporate targets, strategic initiatives, and
evolving market conditions. It also served as a
venue to communicate product updates,
recognize top performers, and encourage the
sharing of effective sales strategies across =
branches.

To ensure compliance with regulatory ‘ < la.“ kP ‘

requirements and uphold industry best & e P ;_ [{
practices, the Bank facilitated core regulatory > “{ii\‘iin s
and compliance training sessions, including

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) education and Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) workshops. These
sessions strengthened the Bank’s risk awareness and internal control frameworks while enhancing the
compliance capabilities of its employees.

The onboarding and continuous development of new employees also remained a priority.

O
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Through targeted in-house training programs, new hires were equipped with the knowledge, skills, and
competencies necessary to perform effectively and align with the Bank’s policies, service standards, and
regulatory expectations. These programs not only supported operational excellence and regulatory
compliance but also fostered a culture of continuous learning and professional growth.

By investing in the ongoing development of its workforce through both internal and external learning
platforms, the Bank continues to build organizational capacity, foster innovation, and strengthen its
long-term sustainability. These initiatives demonstrate a steadfast commitment to operational excellence,
employee empowerment, and strategic alignment at all levels of the organization.

EXTERNAL TRAININGS

In a rapidly evolving financial and regulatory landscape, attending external trainings is vital for enhancing
employee competencies, staying updated with industry developments, and reinforcing the Bank’s
commitment to excellence, compliance, and customer-centric service.

In 2024, the Bank participated in various external training programs covering a wide range of critical topics,
each contributing uniquely to organizational resilience and employee growth:

« Cybersecurity & Data Privacy: As digital threats intensify, training on cybersecurity and data privacy
ensures that employees understand current risks, protective measures, and regulatory obligations. These
sessions help safeguard sensitive information and maintain customer trust in the Bank’s digital
infrastructure.

« Know Your Money (KYM): KYM training enhances employee capability to detect counterfeit currencies and
understand the evolving nature of currency authentication—supporting operational integrity and regulatory
compliance.

Balaxy 27 Liira
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- PhilCare Mental Health Awareness: Promoting mental well-being is a priority in ensuring a productive,
engaged, and resilient workforce. This training emphasized the importance of mental health in the
workplace and provided practical strategies for stress management and employee support.

« Cash Flow Analysis & Institutional Risk Assessment: These technical trainings deepened staff
understanding of financial health evaluation and institutional risk profiling. They contribute directly to
sound credit decision-making and enhanced risk management practices across lending operations.

« Approach to Creating Recovery and Resolution Plans (RRP): This training supported the Bank’s
readiness for stress scenarios by providing insights on regulatory expectations and structured approaches
to formulating RRPs—an essential component of systemic risk mitigation and business continuity.

« Appraisal Training: Accurate valuation of collateral is critical to managing credit risk. Appraisal training
strengthened the skills of personnel in property assessment, market analysis, and compliance with
valuation standards.

« Performance Management: Training in this area reinforced the importance of aligning individual goals
with organizational objectives. It also provided tools for constructive feedback, continuous improvement,
and employee development planning.

These external trainings not only enhanced individual capabilities but also reinforced the Bank’s collective
capacity to meet regulatory standards, manage risks, and adapt to emerging challenges. By investing in
external learning opportunities, the Bank demonstrates its commitment to cultivating a skilled, agile, and
future-ready workforce prepared to support sustainable growth and institutional excellence, information
security and cybersecurity awareness, and data privacy compliance.

Specialized programs such as “Signature Verification, Bank Fraud and Forgery Detection” and “Approach to
Creating Recovery and Resolution Plans” further enhanced operational efficiency and reinforced compliance
with evolving regulatory expectations.

In addition, technical and specialized training—particularly on cybersecurity and IT risk fundamentals—was
delivered to ensure employees remain well-informed of the latest technological developments and threats.
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SELF-ASSESMENT FUNCTION

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit Department (IAD) assists the Bank and the Board in maintaining effective controls by
evaluating their effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous improvement. It is mandated
to ensure adherence to Board-approved policies and procedures by all operating units. The head of the
Internal Audit Department ensures that the internal audit function complies with sound internal
auditing standards. The department’s recommendations to improve operations are timely discussed
and coordinated with the Management through the President and CEO where progress reports of
Management action plans are discussed, deliberated, and reported during ARCCo meetings.

COMPLIANCE

The Compliance Department functions independently and reports directly to the Board through ARCCo
to oversee and coordinate the implementation of the Bank’s compliance system. Led by the Head of the
Compliance Department, the department’s primary duties include the identification, monitoring, and
controlling of compliance risk

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Office is responsible for the development and oversight of the institution’s risk
management program. It oversees the system of limits to discretionary authority that the Board
delegates to management. It also ensures that the system remains effective and that established limits
under existing policies are observed and if there is breach, monitor the immediate corrective actions it
has recommended.

CUSTOMER PROTECTION

Consumer protection is regarded as the core function complementary to BSP’s prudential regulation and
supervision, financial stability, financial inclusion, and financial education agenda. Hence, all BSP supervised
institutions are mandated to follow at least the minimum guidelines for institutionalizing consumer
assistance mechanisms in their operations.

In view of Circular No. 857 series of 2014, for the protection of Enterprise Bank, Inc. and to assure that every
customers’ needs are met and are satisfied with the services they receive, the Bank created the Consumer
Assistance Management System (CAMS).

The Board’s responsibility to provide effective recourse for the financial consumer is depicted in the consumer
assistance policies and procedures embodied in the CAMS and engendered in the Bank’s day-to-day
operations. The CAMS also advances transparency, fairness, and ease of access in financial transactions
including the resolution of complaints.

O
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The Senior Management is responsible for the effective implementation of the CAMS and the adoption of the
established risk management system tools and practices. This responsibility is further delegated to the
Consumer Assistance Officer who monitors the consumer assistance process, analyzes the nature of
complaints, develops recommendations and solutions, and reports to Senior Management and the Board,
through the ARCCo, the status of complaints.

At the branches and offices, personnel designated to perform consumer assistance activities submits
complaint reports to the Consumer Assistance Officer. They are also provided with appropriate training for the
job for them to be equipped with knowledge on the structure and implementation of the Bank’s consumer
assistance mechanism.

We will be happy to address our clients’ concerns. Here are ways that they can reach us.

To properly address and document the concerns raised by our financial consumers, the bank instituted the
following channels for proper attention and provide prompt resolutions:

« Clients are welcome to visit any of the Bank’s branches where the Branch Operations Officer (BOO)
will immediately address and document issues concerning the client’s financial transactions.

If the issue(s) can be resolved within the BOO’s level, the latter shall resolve the same while putting into record
the resolution provided. The BOO should endorse the documented complaint and resolution to the Consumer
Assistance Officer.

Financial consumers have alternative options of raising financial transaction-related issues via electronic mail
at customercentral@enterprisebank.com.ph where an attending Consumer Assistance Officer is ready to
answer complaints and inquiries with proper documentation.

Financial consumers may also raise their complaints via registered mail addressed to or simply via phone call:

THE CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE OFFICER

ENTERPRISE BANK, INC.
KM. 5, Buhangin-Lapanday Road,
Barangay Buhangin,
Davao City, 8000

LANDLINE:
(082) 225-1111 loc. 309

O
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OUR CURPURATE SOGIAL RESPONSIBILITY

wooomm= As part of its ongoing commitment to social responsibility and

community engagement, the Bank conducted a meaningful Corporate

Social Responsibility (CSR) activity on February 18,2024, in Baganihan,

Marilog District, Davao City. The initiative formed part of the Bank’s

% " community outreach program, aimed at supporting underprivileged
- and marginalized sectors, particularly indigenous communities.

. During the outreach, the Bank distributed 400 food packs and 345 pairs
of slippers to the Lumads—indigenous natives residing in the area. This
effort was designed to provide immediate relief and promote the
well-being of families facing economic hardship, especially in remote
| and underserved communities.

The activity reflects the Bank’s core values of compassion, inclusivity,
and shared growth. By reaching out to the Lumad community, the
Bank not only extended material assistance but also reinforced its
commitment to uplifting lives and empowering those in need.

This CSR initiative highlights the Bank’s belief that meaningful progress is rooted in inclusive development
and social impact. Through acts of service and solidarity, the Bank continues to make a positive difference
in the lives of Filipinos, particularly in areas that are often overlooked.

ENTERPRISE BANK JOINS BRIGADA ESKWELA: SUPPORTING EDUCATION THROUGH
VOLUNTEERISM

In line with its commitment to community development and nation-building, Enterprise Bank, Inc. (EBI)
proudly participated in the Brigada Eskwela initiative of the Department of Education (DepEd), a nationwide
program that promotes volunteerism in preparing public T wu-:ﬁé ponalsthly WIGH 5- HoOL. E}

Buisran, TEBasy CHy

schools for the opening of classes.

EBI employees across various branches took part in this s
meaningful activity by donating school supplies and cleaning
materials, as well as volunteering time and effort to help clean,
repaint, and repair school facilities. This collective effort aimed .
to create a more conducive and welcoming learning i#
environment for students, particularly in underserved areas.

By joining Brigada Eskwela, EBI demonstrates its strong

support for education and youth empowerment. The initiative not only reflects the Bank’s dedication to
corporate social responsibility but also fosters a spirit of bayanihan and teamwork among its employees and
partner communities.

Through activities like Brigada Eskwela, EBI continues to strengthen its role as a socially responsible
institution that goes beyond banking to help uplift lives and contribute to a brighter future for Filipino

learners.
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At Enterprise Bank, Inc. (EBI), we recognize the pivotal role those financial institutions play in
advancing sustainable development. In alignment with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ (BSP)
issuances—particularly BSP Circulars that promote green and sustainable finance—EBI has committed
to integrating environmental, social, and governance (ESG) considerations into its operations and

financial strategies.

Guided by our approved Sustainable Finance Framework, EBI aims to embed sustainability principles
into our core business model through the following components:

EBI'S SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES

A. To pursue sustainable and resilient growth by becoming environmentally and socially responsible

in its business decisions; and ,

B. Install and communicate the bank’s policy strategies to cope the physical and transitional risks
arising from the environmental and social issues tending to affect the Bank and its stakeholders;

E&S POLICY

The Bank continually endeavors to ensure effective environmental & social management practices in
all its activities, products and services with a special focus on the following:

TABLE 1: EBIRB’S SUSTAINABILITY VISION AND SUSTAINABILITY BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

STAKEHOLDER GROUP SUSTAINABILITY VISION AND BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

INVESTORS

Promote investor confidence and achieve a balance
between profitability and to sustain a stable source of
income.

Maintain built-in processes and policies as tools for
countering financial crime and poor credit quality.

CUSTOMERS

Protect depositors' interests through responsible
banking.

Be a responsible lender in ensuring the proper
conduct of the credit initiation and evaluation
process towards maintaining a healthy loan
portfolio.

Serve customers within the highest degree of
excellence and professionalism.

Continue to be a catalyst for growth and improving
the lives of individual customers, particularly to
those who lack financial access, by providing
excellent financial products and services.

To proactively promote financial literacy for
capacity development and wealth creation.
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STAKEHOLDER GROUP SUSTAINABILITY VISION AND BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

« Develop highly trained and motivated human
resource to carry out their respective duties and

EMPLOYEES > 10 ¢ out :
responsibilities within the highest degree of
efficiency, competence and professionalism.

SUPPLIERS + Maintain a good balan.ce between considerations
and procurement practices.

«  Create value and enrich the lives of the people in

COMMUNITY the community and contribute to positive change

through interventions in various
community-related activities. e.g., healthcare,
education and entrepreneurship.

« Promote environmental conservation in the
ENVIRONMENT workplace by adopting environmentally friendly
practices into daily operating processes.

SUSTAINABLE FINANCE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s Sustainability Framework defines the strategies that serve as guideposts in the Bank’s
journey towards sustainability.

The EBIRB’s Sustainable Finance Framework outlines plan for implementing sustainable Financing
Instruments ("SFI") to finance loans and initiatives with a clear environmental comparable social

advantage.
The objectives of the Bank’s Sustainable Finance Framework are the following:

« Achieve strategic resilience by incorporating sustainability in the way Bank’s conducts

business;
« Integrate environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) and sustainability principles in

financial products and services;
« Embed sustainability principles when making decisions, assessing relationships and creating

products;
+ Align business operations with the SDGs;

METHODOLOGY

EBIRB’s Sustainable Finance Instruments (SFI) may be funded with green, blue, social and
sustainability loans, and any other debt financing instruments that fund or will fund the Sustainable
Finance Portfolio that conform to the Sustainable Finance Framework.

Any financing and / or re-financing activity will and at all times, be consistent with Bank’s Sustainability
Philosophy and Strategies, and other internal environmental and social guidelines.

O
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ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

EBIRB will work to eventually reach a level of allocation for the eligible green and social enterprises.

Environmental advantages like a smaller carbon footprint and a decreased susceptibility of
communities to climate change are required for green initiatives to be eligible.

A favorable social outcome for the underprivileged, excluded, and unemployed sector is a required for
eligible social initiatives. Initiatives that have been recognized as green and social must clearly benefit
the environment and society, and EBIRB will evaluate/quantify these advantages.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT | SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT ALIGNMENT WITH SDGs

CATEGORY GOALS (SDGs)

Renewable energy Affordable and clean energy Increase substantially the share
of renewable energy in the

global energy mix.

Green Buildings Affordable and clean energy, The provision of safe, a
Clean Transportaion eco-friendly cities and sustainable, attainable price
communities road safety, and transportation

for all enhancing public
awareness of safety issues.
Considering the requirements of
individuals in vulnerable
circumstances in particular,
transport people with
impairments, women, and
children, elderly individuals.

Sustainable Water Management Clean water and sanitation Ensure productivity in all areas
by utilizing the supply and
sustainable extraction from
freshwater to help with water
shortages and significantly
lessen the population suffering
from a lack of water.

Employment Generation Decent work and economic Encourage development-focused
growth policies that encourage effective
actions, decent employment
growth, entrepreneurship, and
creativity.

Affordable Basic Infrastructure Clean water and sanitation Ensure productivity in all areas by
utilizing  the  supply and
sustainable  extraction  from
freshwater to help with water
shortages and significantly lessen
the population suffering from a
lack of water.
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2024 SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANGE AND IMPACT ON SDGS

« P86M Total portfolio supports agricultural production, food
manufacturing, wholesale/retail food selling and food-related activities
« 1 community outreach activity program at Marilog District, Davao City

«  100% employees covered by HMO

«  Noreported incidents of work-related injuries, fatalities or death
+ 4 activities conducted that promotes wellness and well being

« 1activity that promote mental health

« 492 Total number of employees who underwent In-House training

« 1,695 Total training hours of employees who underwent outsource
training

« 352 Total number of employees who underwent outsourced training

« 967 Total training hours of employees who underwent outsource

« 2,662 Total training hours of all employees

+  31% Total percentage of employees at executive level are female
+  38% Total percentage of employees at management level are female

« 2 Offices using renewable energy (solar power) (Head Office and Lianga,
Surigao del Sur Branch)

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
(ESRMS)

The Environmental and Social Risk Management System (ESRMS) of EBIRB was established to provide
additional clarity and transparency on how the Bank will approach environmental and social risks,
which touch almost every aspect of our business. Like all risks, environmental and social risks require
coordinated governance, clearly defined roles and responsibilities, and well-developed processes to
ensure they are identified, measured, monitored and controlled appropriately in a timely manner.

The ESRMS was consistent with our Enterprise Risk Management Framework, which outlines Enterprise
Bank's risk management approach and each employee's risk management responsibilities. There are
four (4) key risk universe categories that we face as an organization, as articulated in our Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) Framework: strategic, operational, financial, and compliance. Our five (5) key risks
were identified through further prioritization: credit, liquidity, compliance, operational, and IT
availability/continuity. Environmental and social issues have a significant impact on many of these risk
areas, but most often result in credit and operational risks at this time.

O
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A. OBJECTIVES OF THE ESRMS

Consistent with the efficiency and resiliency objectives of adopting the ERM approach on risk
management, Enterprise Bank, Inc. adopts and shall implement this Environmental and Social Risk
Management System

with the following intention:

1. to augment the bank’s commitment, cooperation, and support in addressing the pressing issues
brought about by climate change and crucial social issues;

2. toidentify and assess social and environmental impacts of the lending activities of the Bank and
thereby enhance its understanding of environmental and social risks (E&S) associated with Bank’s
transactions;

3. to provide guidance in assessing risks in the bank’s operations, products and services,
transactions, activities and its operating environment; and

4. to adhere to industry’s best risk management practices when financing the private sector
activities and thereby to significantly reduce the Bank’s environmental and social risks. Aside from the
primary goal of ESRMS, which is to facilitate systematic assessment of E&S risks and opportunities
arising from a client's operations and to aid in risk management, the bank may also benefit from the
following:

I. Provide the organization with assurance that the Bank meets, and will continue to meet, social
and environmental commitments which are intrinsic to accomplish corporate wide E&S policy
requirements.

Il. Verify the Bank‘s systems for recognizing and complying with environmental laws and
regulations, and go beyond environmental compliance.

Ill. Improve relationships with regulators.

IV. Show the business partners, requlatory agencies and community that EBI is environmentally
and socially responsible.

V. Increase competitiveness, increase profits through potential process improvements and energy
conservation.

VI. Reduce costs (e.g., as a result of potentially lower insurance rates).

VIl. Increase awareness and participation inside and outside the organization.

VIll.Safety benefits - by reviewing the procedures for controlling significant operations, including a
review of emergency preparedness and response procedures.

IX. Capturing institutional knowledge as ESRMS ensures information is properly documented,
communicated and retained.

X. Streamlining operations - organizations often realize monetary savings as a result of greater
operational efficiency (e.g., energy conservation).

B. RISK APPETITE

The Bank’s risk appetite towards E&S risks will be attuned with the Bank’s general risk appetite
statements and risk appetite threshold stipulated in the Bank’s ERM Manual.

The Bank has low risk appetite on activities and decisions that carry residual risk level of at least 3 on the
following risks:

O
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« Strategic and Reputational Risk
« CreditRisk

« Liquidity Risk

« Operational Risk

« Compliance Risk

For risks with risk level of 3 and more, the Bank is not willing to accept the risk in any situation that may
result in loss of operations, compromise its long-term profitability, create massive impact on bank’s
reputation among its stockholders, major breakdown of its information system or information integrity,
significant incidents of regulatory non-compliance. It is perceived that there is more risk than potential
rewards in an initiative.

Circumstances or events when E&S factors may significantly contribute to the above-mentioned risks
are summarized as follows:

« client’s default or inability to fulfill contractual obligations associated with a transaction as a
result of E&S issues

« reduction in the value of collateral due to environmental and social problems

. significant or large exposure to clients faced with E&S issues and struggles to fulfill contractual
obligations tightens the liquidity buffer thereby affecting the Bank’s lending capacity

« exposure to liability risk stemming from a client’s legal obligations attached to the collateral to be
acquired and liquidated - these may be fines, penalties, and costs for addressing third party
claims for damages due to negligence in managing E&S risks in a client’s operations and clean-up
of contamination

« negative publicity associated with the client’s poor environmental and social practices exposing
the Bank to reputational risk

« disruption to client’s operations brought by E&S issues may affect client’s ability to timely settle
obligation

« disruption in the Bank’s operations arising from manpower inadequacy and inefficiency, energy
crises, logistical limitation or restrictions, and among others that would impact adversely on the
Bank’s ability to generate desired revenues and cope with the fixed administrative costs

C. RESTRICTED ACTIVITIES

The Bank has already put in place restrictions and limitations to certain industry sectors and activities.

1. ON LENDING

Businesses or enterprise engaged in the following activities are not acceptable for business loan
financing under the Bank’s Enterprise Lending: mining, informal Lending, logging, gambling-related
business, entertainment Bars/Clubs, motels and other indecent business against morals

2. ON EMPLOYEE'S WELFARE

Establish a safe and healthy workplace and to uphold the welfare of the employees and its clients, the
Bank’s Code of Conduct clearly and strictly prohibits the following acts: smoking inside the office
premises, non-disclosing one’s contagious and communicable diseases, possessing or
selling/passing/use of any prohibited drugs at any time while on duty or elsewhere and unauthorized
possession of explosives, weapons or fire arms or anything designed to be deadly within the Bank

premises.
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EBIRB BANK'S COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EBIRB’s commitment to sustainability is to ensure that we embody our commitments as part of our key
operational goals.

We seek to build strategic resilience by incorporating sustainability into our daily operations. We make
an effort to include sustainability ideas while making decisions, assessing interactions, and creating
products.

Enterprise Bank, Inc., A Rural Bank (EBIRB) faced many challenges in the last decade, with the onslaught
of super typhoons Sendong, Pablo, Vinta, Yolanda and lately the Monster Typhoon Odette which made 8
landfalls and brought catastrophic damage in many parts of Mindanao and the Visayas Regions. Many
lives and businesses were lost and disrupted just as when the Philippine economy is recovering from its
worst setback brought about by the COVID-19 Pandemic.

EBIRB has built up momentum in its business improvement and turnaround initiatives. Despite business
disruptions, the bank continues to be a catalyst in the improvement of the lives of individual customers
and entrepreneurs by providing excellent financial services for the last 47 years.

The Bank despite these challenges, adapted and managed to obtain considerable gains in various
aspects of its business and operations. The bank was able to expand its operations in the Visayas Region
with the opening of Bacolod and Tacloban Branches last August 18, 2021 and continues to stand by its
commitment to provide quality products and services at all times, creating value and enriching the lives
of its employees, customers and the community by adopting and implementing policies that provide for
a safe, flexible, and inclusive workplace.

EBIRB is a brand built through 48 years and always aims to be a “Bank of Choice”, providing our clients
and community uninterrupted, accessible, safe, and secure banking services while promoting good
governance, sound risk management, and environmental and social responsibility.

The Bank is committed to empower employees by building their skills and capabilities towards a
manpower resource that is adequately trained and motivated to perform their assigned duties and
responsibilities within the highest degree of integrity and excellence.

Human Resource Department is tasked to undertake capacity building programs of the Board of
Directors, Senior Management and other personnel to equip them in identifying, measuring, monitoring
and controlling E&S risks.

EBIRB’s commitment to sustainability is fostered at the Board level. The Bank anchors its sustainable
development strategy to the 17 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”). EBIRB also
supports and upholds the principles of the United Nations Global Compact on the following:

« Corporate governance;

« Climate-friendly solutions and opportunities for business;

« Access to clean, renewable, and reliable energy sources and services;

« Adoption of instruments that help quantify, manage, and report on the carbon footprint of its

businesses;
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« Responsibility to protect the dignity of every person and uphold human rights;
+  Recognition of the role of women in achieving economic growth and poverty reduction; and
« Elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labor, and child labor.

The EBIRB Sustainability Framework defines the strategies that serve as guideposts in the Bank’s
journey towards sustainability.

1. PRODUCT SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Create financial products and services to serve that evolving needs of our customers at all times and
support the SDGs.

Develop capabilities to create value for our customers across all sectors with relevant products and
services within the highest degree of efficiency and excellence.

2. SUSTAINABILITY CONTRIBUTION STRATEGY

Support the achievement of national economic goals as partners in nation building through financial
inclusion and impact financing in infrastructure, eco-friendly solutions, green facilities, and disaster
resilience initiatives.

3. HUMAN CAPITAL SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Develop leaders in the sustainability movement. Develop a corporate culture that is customer -focused
and a highly motivated and trained workforce that adapts a sustainability mind-set that is embedded as
part of their individual responsibilities.

4. DISASTER RESPONSE SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Leverage our resources in providing the relief, rehabilitation, and recovery of disaster-stricken
communities.

9. GOVERNANCE-BASED SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Continually improve corporate governance framework to respond to the needs of the changing
environment and subscribe to the principles of good governance of accountability, transparency,
integrity and fairness, in dealing with all stakeholders.

KEY COMPONENTS OF ESRMS

Develop leaders in the sustainability movement. Develop a corporate culture that is customer -focused
and a highly motivated and trained workforce that adapts a sustainability mind-set that is embedded as
part of their individual responsibilities.

* INTEGRATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL & SOCIAL (E&S) RISKS INTO ENTRPRISE RISK FRAMEWORKS
+ EBIRB has enhanced its Enterprise Risk Framework and Risk Taxonomy to incorporate
Environmental and Social (E&S) risks. This includes the identification and assessment of
climate-related risks—both physical (e.g., natural disasters) and transition risks (e.g.,
regulatory shifts toward a low-carbon economy).

O
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. UPERATIUNAL RESILIENCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

EBIRB regularly evaluates the physical risk exposure of its branches and branch-lite units,
especially those located in high-hazard zones, utilizing advanced tools and
internet-based platforms. Furthermore, E&S criteria have been embedded into the Bank’s
vendor management processes to promote sustainability across the supply chain and
strengthen operational resilience.

CAPITAL STRESS TESTING
« The Bank conducts regular capital adequacy stress testing in line with Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) guidelines. These stress tests consider potential E&S risk impacts to ensure
capital buffers remain sufficient under adverse scenarios.

BREAKDOWN OF LOAN EXPOSURE BY PHILIPPINE STANDARD
INDUSTRIAL GLASSIFICATION

2024 2023
INDUSTRY
AMOUNT AMOUNT

Salary Consumption Loan 1,638,383,921 69.74 1,585,084,616 71.60
Wholesale & Retail Trade 191,089,388 8.13 205,258,515 9.27
Real Estate Activities 169,239,589 7.20 137,928,898 6.23
Constructions 137,257,365 5.84 97,733,754 4.42
Auto Loans 53,617,334 2.28 11,110,310 0.50
Agriculture, Forestry, 44,274,561 1.88 53,688,034 2.43
& Fishing

Manufacturing 37,274,479 1.59 40,420,679 1.83
Transportation & Storage 28,168,151 1.20 10,112,698 0.46
Admin & Support Service

Activities 11,793,024 0.50 20,758,743 0.94
Accommodation & Food

Service Activities 8,244,575 0.35 4,047,162 0.18
Electricity, Gas, Steam & 0.29 69.74
Aircon Supply 6,815,617 2,000,001

Professional, Scientific 5,829,314 0.25 12,419,962 0.09
& Technical ) )
Other Service Activities 17,147,983 0.73 33,107,768 1.50
TOTAL 2,349,135,301 100.00 2,213,671,140 100.00

O
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EBIRB'S ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES

Enterprise Bank, Inc. has implemented a comprehensive set of measures to enhance energy efficiency
and promote environmental sustainability across its operations:

1) SULAR ENERGY UTILIZATION

At the Head Office, EBI has installed solar panels capable of generating up to 40,000 watts,
producing an estimated 160 kWh per day.

+ Solar panels have also been installed at the Lianga, Surigao del Sur branch, generating
approximately 16 kWh per day.

+ Inline with the Bank’s advocacy for energy efficiency and sustainability, we plan to expand the
installation of solar panels to more branches, prioritizing urban areas with unstable or
interrupted power supply.

2) UPERATIUNAL RESILIENCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Head Office and branches have transitioned from conventional lighting to energy-efficient LED
fixtures.

+ Inverter-type air conditioning units was being prioritized to be installed to branches and offices
to reduce electricity consumption.

« Employees are actively encouraged to power down non-essential equipment and lights during
lunch breaks and after office hours.

+ Abank-wide memorandum mandates the shutdown of air conditioning units after business hours
to conserve energy.

3) CAPITAL STRESS TESTING

« EBI performs quarterly preventive maintenance on all generators to ensure fuel efficiency and
optimal performance.

« To further reduce fuel consumption, branch site inspections and official travel are consolidated,
minimizing the number of trips required.

4) SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT AND PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

« Energy efficiency and environmental sustainability are key considerations in the evaluation of
future property investments.

« TheBank is geared towards transitioning from desktop computers to energy-efficient laptops to
further reduce power consumption.

6) MONITORING AND MANAGEMENT OF ENERGY USE

« EBIlregularly monitors and manages fuel and power consumption across all offices and branches
to identify opportunities for improvement and cost savings.

6) GREEN FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

« In support of national and global sustainability goals, the Bank is working towards launching
renewable energy loan products. This aligns with our broader advocacy to support green and
sustainable financial solutions, empowering clients to adopt environmentally responsible
practices.

O
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WATER RESOURGE MANAGEMENT

While water is not a material input in the core financial operations of EBI, we recognize the importance
of managing this resource responsibly as part of our broader environmental commitment.

1) EFFICIENT USE AND CONSUMPTION MONITORING
« EBI continues to improve water efficiency and minimize consumption across its facilities.
Water usage is primarily limited to cooling systems, sanitation, and general cleanliness
within Head Office and branches.

2) WATER SOURCES
« Atthe Head Office, water is supplied by the Davao City Water District.
« In other branches, water is sourced from local utilities or community providers, depending
on availability and location.

3) SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES

« Although direct water recycling systems are not yet in place, the Bank explore opportunities
for integrating sustainable water management solutions in the future.

4) COMMITMENT TO RESPONSIBLE USE

« EBI remains committed to reducing its environmental footprint by embedding water
conservation considerations into facility operations and strategic planning.

MONITORING OUR EMISSIONS

Enterprise Bank, Inc. (EBI) is committed to the annual reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions as
part of its broader environmental responsibility. Our efforts are guided by both national and
international environmental standards, ensuring compliance while fostering a culture of sustainability
across the organization.

KEY EMISSION REDUCTION MEASURES

« Energy Efficiency: Transitioning to LED lighting across all offices and branches to lower
electricity consumption.

 Digital Transformation: Implementing paperless workflows and digital documentation systems
to reduce reliance on printed materials.

« Travel Optimization: Streamlining travel planning and logistics to reduce fuel consumption and
associated emissions from official transport activities.

MATERIAL AND WASTE MANAGEMENT

EBI is committed to responsible material use and waste management as part of our broader effort to
promote environmental sustainability across all operations.

1) RESPONSIBLE MATERIAL CONSUMPTION
+ While paper remains a key material input, the Bank actively encourages:
> Digitization of records and workflows,
> Double-sided printing, and
o The use of electronic communication platforms, to significantly reduce paper

consumption and waste.
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2) REUSE AND LIFECYCLE EXTENSION

« EBladopts arepair-and-reuse approach for defective equipment, furniture, and fixtures. This
practice extends the lifecycle of materials, reduces landfill contribution, and avoids
unnecessary procurement.

3) WASTE SEGREGATION AND RECYCLING
+ The bank has established a waste management system that emphasizes:
o Proper segregation of biodegradable and non-biodegradable waste, and
> Implementation of recycling initiatives across offices and branches.

4) CIRCULAR ECONOMY PRACTICES

+ Aspart of our vision to support a circular economy, EBI is working to:
o Integrate reusable and recyclable materials into operations,
o Minimize packaging waste, and
o Raise awareness among employees and stakeholders on sustainable consumption and
waste reduction.

SUSTAINABLE SOURCING AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Enterprise Bank, Inc. (EBI) recognizes that sustainable sourcing and supply chain management are
critical to achieving long-term environmental, social, and governance (ESG) goals. As such, the Bank
ensures that all procurement activities are aligned with our commitment to sustainability, ethical
practices, and regulatory compliance.

1) STRUCTURED PROCUREMENT PROCESS
+ EBlemploys a structured and transparent procurement process that prioritizes:
o High-quality standards,
o Policy compliance, and
o Alignment with ESG principles across all purchases and supplier engagements.

2) SUPPORT FOR LOCAL ECONOMIES

+ To promote inclusive growth and reduce environmental impact through minimized
transport emissions, the Bank prioritizes sourcing from local vendors, particularly for
provincial branches. This approach supports local economic development while optimizing
logistical efficiency.

3 VENI]UR ACCREDITATION AND MANAGEMENT
The Administrative Services Department (ASD) is responsible for vendor accreditation,
management, and evaluation. The department has strengthened its systems by
incorporating enhanced risk assessment and due diligence protocols.

Recent updates to vendor-related documentation now include evaluation criteria such as:

= Gender diversity and inclusion,
= Compliance with environmental regulations, and
= Adherence to labor rights and social welfare standards.

These improvements ensure that our supply chain remains responsible, resilient, and
aligned with our corporate sustainability values.

O
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PRODUCT AND SERVICES

PERSONAL BANKING

BASIC SAVINGS DEPOSIT SUPER SAVINGS ACCOUNT CHECKING ACCOUNT
No maintaining balance; open Earn higher interest if ADB Requires £3,500 for individuals
with just #100 and earn 0.10% exceeds £300,000 and no or 10,000 for corporate clients.

interest annually. withdrawals are made.

: R :

SUPER CHECKING ACCOUNT REGULAR TIME DEPOSIT TD5 (5-YEAR TIME DEPOSIT)
Comes with ATM, passbook, and Lock in for 30 to 360 days with Tax-free 5-year term with a
checkbook; minimum deposit £5,000 minimum and variable £500,000 minimum and variable

of #5,000. interest. interest.

AUTOMATIC TRANSFER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
Earn higher interest if ADB exceeds #300,000 and no
withdrawals are made.

©
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PRODUCT AND SERVICES
LOAN PRODUCTS

e

ENTERPRISE LOANS CONSUMER LOANS

Secured loans for business Payroll-based loan exclusive to
expansion, equipment, or asset government employees.
purchases.

BACK-TO-BACK LOANS AUTO LOAN

Loan secured by your existing Get up to 90% financing, flexible
deposit with the Bank. terms, and competitive

rates—ideal for first-time or
repeat buyers.

BANK WEBSITE AND CONTACT DETAILS

BANK WEBSITE

https://www.enterprisebank.com/

CUSTOMER GARE EMAIL

customercentral@enterprisebank.com.ph




VISAYAS BRANCHES

Bacolod Branch
Ground Floor,

GA Esteban Bldg.,
Brgy. 19, Lacson Street,
Bacolod City, Negros
Occidental

(034) 434-6398

Ronda Branch
Villanueva Bldg.,
Centro Poblacion,
Rondaq, Cebu
(032) 413-0242

MINDANAO BRANCHES

Matina Branch

DBC McArthur Highway,
Matina, Davao City
0965-386-68I1

Panabo Branch

Ground Floor, Centino Realty,
Quezon Street, Sto. Nino,
Panabo City, Davao del Norte
(084)
823-4403/098-113-82168

Nabunturan Banch

Westgate 1, Units 3 & 4 Purok 8,
Barangay Poblacion,
Nabunturan, Davao de Oro
8800

(084) 817-1059/ 0947-270-7768

Tagum Branch

Door Nos. 3 & 4, AAC BIdg,,
No. 1 Circumferential Road,
Tagum Public Market,
Magugpo West,

Tagum City, Davao del Norte
(084) 807-1584

Mati Branch

Door 10 MJI Building,
Rizal Extension, Mati City,
Davao Oriental

(087)
811-0596/0948-807-2017

Cateel Branch

Lapu-lapu Street, Poblacion,
Cateel Davao Oriental 8205
(087) 306-2386

Tacloban Branch

Unit B M Block Bldg.
Marasbaras St., Brgy. 77
Tacloban City, Leyte
(053) 888-9502

HEAD OFFICE ADDRESS:

KM. 5, Buhangin Lapanday Road, Barangay
Buhangin, Davao Ciy, 8000

Lawa-an, |

General Santos Branch
Ground Floor, RDRDC Bldg.,
Magsaysay Avenue cor.
Salazar Street,

General Santos City

(083)
553-8937/0923-202-8716

Gingoog Branch

Ground Floor,

Nadal Building, National
Highway, Brgy 20, Gingoog
City,

Misamis Oriental

(088) 858-3659

Cagayan de Oro Branch
Doors 3 & 4, G/F RMR
Diomond Residences Bldg,,
Tomas Saco St,,

Cagayan de Oro City
Misamis Oriental

(088) 326-6563/723-869

Valencia Branch

G. Lavina Avenue,
Guinoyoran Road,
Valencia City, Bukidnon
(088) 282-2086

Butuan Branch
Ground Floor,
Intino Building,
Aquino Avenue,
Brgy. Bayanihan,
Butuan City,
Agusan del Norte
(085) 815-4408

Talisay Branch
National Highway,

Talisay City, Cebu
(032) 268-9229

lloilo Branch

Gaisano City 2,

(033) 327-1600

Bayugan Branch
Yakal Street,
Taglatawan,
Bayugan City,
Agusan del Sur
(085) 231-1797

San Francisco
Branch
Quezon St, San
Francisco,
Agusan del Sur
0909-885-9777

Trento Branch

Unit # Door 1 Ground
Floor,

SKS Commercial
Building,

Rizal St.,, Purok 6,
Poblacion,
Trento,Agusan del
Sur

0910-276-2593

Aras-Asan Branch
Aras-asan, Cagwait,
Surigao del Sur
(086) 856-0155

Barobo Branch
Poblacion, Barobo,
Surigao del Sur
(086) 314-0896

Bislig Branch
Abarca Street,
Mangagoy, Bislig
City, Surigao del Sur
(086) 645-5136

City Time Square,

Benigno Avenue,
Diversion Road,
Mandurriao, lloilo City

Mandaue Branch

City Time Square Phase Il
Mantawe Avenue,
Barangay Tipolo, Mandaue
City, Cebu

(032) 234-5598

Hinatuan Branch
Hinatuan, Surigao
del Sur

(086) 856-0971

Lianga Branch
Poblacion, Lianga,
Surigao del Sur
0985-350-1114

Madrid Branch
Corner
Guillen-Arreza Sts.,,
Brgy. Quirino, Madrid,
Surigao del Sur
0970-874-4444

Surigao City Branch
Ground Floor, CML
Building, Amat
Street, Washington,
Surigao City

(086)
310-9040/0948-229-
3454

Tandag Branch
Hypermart, Navales
Extension Rd,
Bag-ong Lungsod,
Tandag City, Surigao
del Sur

(086) 211-5010
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Enterprise Bank, Inc. {A Rual Bank)
Buhangin, Davao City, Davao del Sur

We have audited the financial statemnents of Enterprize Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank) whath comprese the
statements of financial posstion as at Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023, and the staternents of profit or loss and
oiher comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and noles to financial staterments, compaising of a summary of malerial acoowning policy information
and other sxplanalory noles, collectively referred to a financial stalements.’

In our opinion, except for the effect on the 2023 financial statements of the matter described in the Basis for
Quaiified Opimion Section of our repon, the accompanying financial staternents present faidy, in all material
respects, the financial position of Enterprise Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows: for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reponting Standards (PFR3s).

.ﬁs auﬁm&d |n Hntasﬁ and 10 1o ihe ﬁmnml stal-mmts lha Eanhmstahd its 2022 financial statemants for
additional allowance for expected cradit lessas (ECL) and additional allowance for impairment lossas
representing changes in the accounting astimates of the adequacy of the 2022 and prior years' boss provisions
fior loan and other receivables and investment properties, respectively, determined as at December 31, 2023,
iotaling ®16,299,316. The booking of additonal ECL and impairment losses reduced the opening batance of the
2022 surphes and undivided profits by 12,224 487 and correspondingly increased the deflermed lax assets by
4,074, 829. In accordance with PASIAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
the effect of a change in 2n accounting estmate shall be recognized prospectively by including it in profif or bes
in (a) in the panod of tha change, If the changa affects that periad onty, or (b) the paned of tha changa and
future periods if the change affects both, It is owr opinion that the additional ECL for loans and other recaivables
and the impairment losses in invesiment properties should have been booked only in 2023, Had the Bank
charged to the 2023 operation the additional lnes provisions, the Bank's reported prodit for the year ended
December 31, 2023 would reduce 1o only B34, 354,624, The timing of the booking of the foregoing loss provisaons
nio longer affected the operations of 2024,

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibalities
under those standards are further described in the Audiors’ Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financis!
Satermenis Section of our reporl. Wi are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Etfics for
Professional Accounfants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the athical requinerments that are
relevant i our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilties i accordance with these requirements and the Code: of Efhics. We beleve thal fhe audi
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste o provide a basis for our qualifeed oginion.

O
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Ma:wgerrm |s- I‘Bﬁpl:lﬂSJHE for ﬂr&mmﬁm an:l falrpmmmm :h' the financial natermﬂsn acw:ianne
with PFRSs, and for such intermal confrod as management determines is necassary io enable ihe preparation of
financial statements (hat are free fnom material misstalement, whether dee o fraud or emor.

In prepanng the financial statements, management ts responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as
@ going concam, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concenn and using the going concem basis
of accounting unless management either intends to Bguidate the Bank or (o cease operations, or has no realstic
alternalive but o do 50

Those charged with govemnance are responsible for oversesing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of ihe Financial Stataments

Our objectives are o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financzal statements ag a whole are free
from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and bo isswe an qudiors’ report that inchudas our
opinion. Reasonable asswance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted n
accordance with PSAs will always delect a material misstatement when [ edsts. Misstalameants can arise rom
frawd or eror and are considered material &, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied o
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemenis.

As part of an awdit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepbicism throughout the audits. We also:

« ldentify and assass the risks of materal misstatement of the financial statemants, whether due bo fraud
or gmor, design and perform audit procedenes responsive 1o thosa risks, and oblain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal
misstatamnent rasulting from fraud is higher than for one rasulting from arror, as fraud may invole
collusion, forgery, intentional omessions, misrepresentations, or the averride of intemal control,

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
ihat are appeopriate in the circumstances, bat not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenass of the Bank's intemal contral.

«  Evaluais the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managament,

+ Conclude on the approprisieness of management's use of the going concem basés of accolniing and,
based on the audit evidenca oblained, whether a2 material uncartainty exists retated to evenls o
condibions that may cast signiicant doubd on the Bank's abilty o continue as a gaing concern. If we
conchede that a materizl uncertainty exists, we are required fo draw atbention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions ane basad on the audit evidence ablained up to the date of our auddors’ report.
However, fufure events or condiions may cause the Bank to cease to confinue as a going concam,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, induding the
distlosures, and whether the financial statemenis represent the undesdying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentaton.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the awdil and significant awda findings, mcleding any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audits.

@
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-
rt an the Su tary Information uired by Su ncies of the Bank

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The following supplementary information are presented as comgpliance 1o the requiremens by the
corresponding supenvising Govemment agencies in the priadential reporting of the Bank and are not reguired
parts of the basic financial statements. Such information is the respansibility of management.

SHpETVEINGg Govarnes Halure of information Prasenled iz

BIR Revenue Regulation 15-2010 Supplementary information on Taxes, Licenses and Feas Mote 18

Secunifies Regulation Code Rule  Schedule of Retained Earmings Available for Dividend Annex 1
64 (2019 Version) Declaration
BSP Circular Mo. 1074 Supplementary Information Requred By The BSP Annex |

The forgoing information has been subjected o the audiing procedures applied i o awd of the besic
financial staternants. In our opinion, the information & faidy stated in all mateniad respacts @ refation to the basic
financial statemants, taken as a whole,

QUILAB & GARSUTA, CPAs
By
RICD ILAB
Parinier
CPA Cert. No. 46034
TIN No, 129-040-841

PRCBOA Cerl. Mo, 7787, 2023-2026
BIR Mo, 16-007508-001-202Z, 2022-2024

COA CEA No, 1858, 2024-2028

46034-3EC Group B, 2020-2024

46034-B5P Group B, 2020-2024

46034-IC Group A, 2020-20:24
FTR Mo. 6133847 A
January 2, 2025

T Cagayan de Oro City

iCagayan de Oro City, Philippings




STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Enterprise Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank)

December 31, 2024 2023
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Nol 5 PESS,907 621 F784.617.289
Loans and Other Receivables - Nel ivots § 2,103,209,532 1,970,703, 314
Investments in Dabt Securities — At Amortized Cost (Nore 7) 11,493,253 180,410,691
Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment — Net ot &) 75,373,106 68,035,136
Right-of-Use Asset — Nel (Not & 69,583,913 76,426,239
Investment Properties - Net Vot 10) 110,492,178 113,013,753
Other Assels [ofe 17) 236,573,131 111,588,386
R3,666,632.734 3304, 794 808
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposit Kabilibes (Not 12/ R2.964,303,280 B2723.370.858
Oher liabiities Vot 13 288,980,121 ZM 618674
Lease liabidities (Nore 5 78,536,577 83192952
Total Liabilities 3.331.909,978 3,041,182 524
Shareholders' Equity
Share capilal (Noke 14} 400,000,000 S0, D00, D00
Resarves 34 577,037 4577037
Defich (otes 6 and 1) (96,854281)  (170,964,753)
Total Shareholders’ Equily 334,722,756 263.612.284
R3,666,632.734 B3 304794 808

Sew Nodes v Financiad Sialomends.




STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Enterprise Bank, Inc, (A Rural Bank)

Years Endad Decambar 31, 2024 2023
INTEREST INCOME
Loans (Note ) P343,930,667 F330.481.043
Bank deposits and investrments in debl secunbies (Mobes 5and T 46,606,280 18,362,202
Total 390,816,947 343,843,335
LESS INTEREST EXPENSE
Borrowed funds = 182
Deposit kabilities (vote 12) 111,841,259 92.925.202
92,325,474
MNET INTEREST INCOME 278,975,688 255917 474
LE3S PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES [ECL) jhwoes & 11,163,512 -
PROFIT AFTER PROVISION FOR ECL 267 812,176 255,917 651
ADD APPLICATION FEES AND OTHER INCOME (tote 15 112,954 387 107.541.913
PROFIT BEFORE OPERATING EXPENSES 380,766,563 363,459,774
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and emplovees’ benefits Nole 18] 109,107,085 104,895 529
Taxes, licenses and fees {Note 18 45,040,583 42 689 773
Depreciation Noles 8, 9, snd 1) 31,247 692 31,591 486
Travel and transporiation 34,750,445 2943261
Secunily, messengenal and jandonial services 13,356,390 12,520,200
Other operating expanses (Mo 17) 69,242.175 79,530,331
Tatal Other Expenses 302,744,370 300,660,330
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 78,022,193 62 790 444
INCOME TAX EXPENSE - Mel ivote 18 6,911,721 36,226,771
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Maie 19) 71,110,472 26,572 673
'DTI'IER CI!JHFREI-EHEWE IHEIJHE{LGEE}
nal anl:l ra-rnaasunmnl: lnsses nm rﬁg = 102 757
Defarred income tax (Made 18 - {25,689
Total Other Comprehensive Inctme - 77,068
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR Note 19) RT1,110,472 6,649,741

See Modes o Financial Sialoments.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Entesprize Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank)

Dacember 31, 2024 2023
SHARE CAPITAL (note 14)
Ordinary (Commaon) Shares - B100 par value
Opening balances R400,000,000 ®383.925,500
Additional shares issued during the year = 16,074,500
Closing balances 400,000,000 400,000,000
Preference Shares — B100 par value - -
Total Share Capital 400,000,000 400,000,000
RESERVES
Surplus Reserves 28,430 427 28,430 427
Accurmulated Actuarial Gains
Opening balances 6,146,610 6,069,542
Actuarial gain on defned benafit plan - 77,068
Closing balances 6,146,610 6,148 610
Total Resarves 34,577,037 57T 037
DEFICIT
Opening balances. as ongnally stated (170,964,753) (182,911,180)
Adjustments to restate beginning balances (Nofes 6 and 10} - i 14,626, 246)
Opening balances. as restaled (170,964,753 {187 537 426)
Profit for the year 71,110,472 26572673
Clesing balances (99,854, 281) {170,964, 753)
PIIMTILTSE  PIEIE12084
See Modes o Fmanckl Satements.




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Entesprize Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank)

Years Endad Decambar 31, 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax expense P78,022,193 P62, 799,444
Add (dedud!) adjustments for
Depraciation on bank premisesinvestment propertias (Moses § and 10) 18,602 463 17.968 826
Depreciation on right-of-use assats Mo 5 12,645,229 13,622 660
Provision for retirement benefits (ase 1) 3,425,864 3,164,493
Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) (Mo &) 11,163,512 =
Inberesl on lease liabilas Mofe 5 4954196 4,036 353
Operating income bafore changes in working capital 128,813 457 101.,592.376
Add (deduct) changes in working capital, excluding cash
and cash equivalends:
Increase in loans and other receivables (vats &) {143,069,019) (73,544,086)
Increase in other assets (Note 11) (119,958,317) (4,00,471)
Increase in deposit liabiities Note 12) 241,022 422 329,535,259
Increase in obher Kabdibes (Note 13 20,935,583 64053 202
Met cash provided by operations 157,744,126 416,727 470
Imenme 1axes paid (Nole 16 (12,538 860) if,011,630)
Mel Cash Provided from Operating Activities 145,205,266 410,715,840
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in invesiment progerties (Noe 10/ (2,376,774) (7,932,299)
Increaze in investments in debt secusities /et 7) (191,082,562)  (135,566,738)
Net proceads on sale of bank premises Nok & 1,167,991 844 501
Addiions to bank premises — net (Mot §) (22,210,075) (30,601,177)
Payment of lease liabiities and interest e 9) {15,413 514) (15,416,841)
Mel Cash Used for Investing Activlies (229,914,934 {186,672 464)
CASH FLOWS FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of additional ordinary shares (Note 14) 16,074,500
Setlement of bills payable iNere 13 {130,016
Met Cash Provided from Financing Activities - 15,944 484
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (84,709, 668) 237 587 BBD
OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 784,617,289 546 629 429
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS jhuoie 51 RESS,907 621 B784.617.289

See Modes v Francial Sialemnants,




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Enterprise Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank)
As of and for the Years Ended Dacember 31, 2024 and 2023

Hote 1

Organization

The Enterprise Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank) (to be referred henceforth as ‘Bank’) was originally organized on May
10, 1976, 1o engage and cary on the business of a Rural Bank.

The Bank's registered office and principal place of business is located st Buhangin, Davao City, Davao del Sur.
It operates twanty-seven (58] branches and one (1) branch lite unit within the islands of Mindanao and Visayas.

Hatemen of Compliance
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs) and Philippine Interpretations-IFRIC.

PFRSs include statements named PFRSs and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS/IAS), and inberprelations
of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Commitiee (SIC) and Intemational
Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (FFREC) which have been adopted by the Financial and
Susiainabiity Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) of the Philipgine Board of Accountancy (BOW) from the
pronouncements issued by the Intamational Accounting Standards Board and approved by BOA and adopted
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

P tiai ing with BSP and PFR

Bacause the Bank is a supervised financial instsution (BSF1) by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP), it also
abides by the prudential regulations of BSP particulardy those that are set forth in the Manual of Regulations for
Banks (MORB), and all applicable BSP Circulars and accounting requiramants. These regulations and
requirements are subslantially comphant with PFRSs.

In ks Circular Mo, 494 dated Seplember 20, 2005, BSP emphasized thal, as a general rule, B3Fls shall comply
in all respact with the provisions of PFRSS in preparing both their asdited inancial statemants and the financial
statements for prudential reporting. In its Circular No. 915 dated 05 July 2016 BSP dlarified that deviations
between local and intemational accounting siandards only apply to the preparation of prudential reporis to the
BSP. The accounting treatment for prudential reportng aims to ensune that the financial staterments provide a
suitable basis for measuring risks and ratios of BSFs.

The preparafion of the Bank's financial stalements ook into considerations deviations from PFRSs that are
allowed by BSP for prudential raporting purpases but ane incorporated in these financial reporting as explained
in the following paragraphs. The Bank prepares only a singbe set of audited financial statements for general use
and for submission 1o BSP.

@ T Eim,

Under PAS 27, all bankiquasi-bank subsidiaries, regardless of type, are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis. For prudential reporting purposes, however, financial allied subsidianes, except insurance

O
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companies, are consolidated with the financial staterments of the parend bank on a line-by-line basis,
Mon-financial allied subskdkanies and insurance subsidiaries, on the other hand, are accounted for
using the equity method, This requirament has no impact on the Bank as it has no subsidiaries.

In mparhggumal purpnuamilad financial statements, BSFIs adopt the provisions of PFRSs 9 in
booking provisions for credit losses. For prudential reporting purposes, however, BSFs are also
required to adopl the expecied credit loss model in measuring credit impairment in aocordance with
the provisions of PFRS 9. BSF|s are also nequired bo sat up a general loan koss. prowision (GLLP)
equivalent to 1 percent (1%) of all outstanding Stage 1 on-balance sheet loans, excepl for acoounts
considered as credil risk-free under existing regulations, BSFIs are nol required 1o provide a 1 percent
{1%) GLLP on other credit exposures covered by PFRS & such as off-balance sheel acoounts and
investmentis. Allowance for credit losses for Stages 1, 2 and 3 accounts shall be recagnized in the
profil or loss stalement. In cases where (he computed allowance for credil losses on Stage 1 accounts
is less than the 1 percent GLLP required, the deficiency shall be recognized by appropriating the
Retained Earnings (RE) account. The Bank genarally follows the foregoing provisioning requiraments
for loans and discounts and adopted the provisions of PFRSs for the provisioning requirements of
ofher financial instruments.

®  Deemed Cost of ROPA in Settlement of Loans
In computing the deemed cost of real and other properties acquired (ROPA), BSFIs ane required to
value the property at initial recognition based on the camying amount of the assel given up in the
exchange, L.e., carmying amount of the loan, instead of the Tair value of the real and other property
acquired. The Bank values its ROPA in accordance with this requirement; however, i has subjecied
the ROPA to impairment testing and disclosad their fair market values at the reporting date.

Interest income i5 allowed to be recognized on non-performing exposures for the purposes of
preparing the general purpose financial statements financial statements. For predential reporiing
purposas, however, B3F|s ara not allowed to recognize interest income on non-parforming exposures,
excepl when payment is received. The Bank follows this latter requirement in preparing these financial
statements as dictated by prudence and consenvalism.

New and Amended IFRS Accounting Standards tal ane Effective for the Curment Year

In the current year, the Bank has applied a number of amendments 1o PFRS Accounting Standards issuad by
the infemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adoptes by the FSRSC {as Philippine Financial
Raporting Standards) that are mandatorily affective for an accounting period that bagins on or after January 1,
2024, Their adoption has naot had ary material impact on the disclosures or on the amounls raportad in these
financial staterments.

MMHEMFAS'MS Fﬁﬂam!nmaﬂtmm ar'rn‘

'I!he ammdmants ad{:la d@ﬁm&dﬁdmt&ﬂﬁi’ﬂﬂmﬁan aﬂlltl' rsmmmad fo disclose information
abaut its supplier finance arrangements that enablies users of financial statements 1o assass the effects of those
arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows. In addition, PFRS 7 is amended {o add supplier finance
amangemeants as an examgple within the requirements 1o discloss information about an enbity’s exposure 1o
concentration of quidity risk.

The amendments contain specific transition provisions for the first annual reporting period in which the Bank
applies the amendmenis. Under the transitional provisions an entity is nol required (o disclose:

+  Comparative infarmation for any reporting periods presented befare the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entily first applies those amendments
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«  The information otherwise required by PASIIAS T:44H{b){ii{i) as at the beginning of the annual
regorting period in which the entity first applies those amendments.

The Bank has no supplier finance arrangements,

Tmaankhasauﬂmﬁmeanﬂndmantsmpw1 wmusheﬂ n.JanuargrEI:rEl:l far the first time in the
currend year. The amendments affect only the presantation of lisblities as cument or non-cument i the
statemant of financial position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any assat, liability, mcome or
expenses, or the information disclosed aboul those items.

The amendments clarify that the dassification of kabilties as cument or non-cument i based on nights that are in
existance at the end of the raporting period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exarcise its right fo defer settliernent of a liability, explain that rights ane in existance if covenants are
compled with &1 the end of the reporting penod, and infrodwce a defindion of 'setiement’ to make clear that
settemant refers 1o the fransfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instrumenis, other assats or sarvices,

ﬂmﬂanhlmsadcrpi&dmeamndmantsmmallﬂﬁ1 puhlmhedanvanﬁerEﬂ.?ﬂ I’::rﬂ'mﬁmh'nalnme

current year. The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with an or bafore
the and of the reporting peniod affect the entity's right 1o defer setilemant of a liabdity for 2t least twehe maonths
after the reporing date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the Kability as
current or non-currant). Such covenants affect whether the right exists al the end of the reporting penoed, aven il
compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the enlity's
financial position at the reporting date that is assessed for compiance andy after the reporting dale).

The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settiarment of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reparting date is not affected if an enlity only has to comply with @ covenant after the reporting period, Howaver,
if the entity's right to defer setllement of a Eability is subject io the entity complying with covenands within twebse
months after the reporting period, an antity disclosas information that enables users of financial statemants to
undarstand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This
would include information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is
required to comply with them), the canying amount of related Rabilities and facts and circumstances, i any, fhat
indicate thal the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

The Bank has no non-current lighilities with covenants.

'ﬂ're Banhlmadupiad mearmﬂdmant:lnF'FHE 16 f-::ﬂha ﬁmttmaln meuurmnt':.raar The amendments o
PFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the
requirements in PFRS 15 Revancue from Contracts wilh Customers 1o be accounied for a5 a sale. Tha
amendments require the seller-lessee 1o delermineg ‘lease payments” or revised lease payments’ such that the
seller-lessee does nod recognize a gain or koss that relates o the right of use relained by the seller-lesses, after
the commeancament date.

The amendments do nol affect e gain or loss recognized by the sefler-lessee redating o the partial or full
fermination of a lease. Without these new requirements, a seller-lessee may have recognized a gain on the right of
use il retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease liabdity (for example, following a lease modification
or change in the lease term) applying the genaral requirements in PFRS 16, This could have been paricularly the
case in a leaseback that inchudes vanable lease payments thal do not depend on an index or rate.

As part of the amendments, the 1ASE amended an Hlustrative Example in IFRS 16 and added a new example to
illustrate the subsequent measwemend of a right-of-use asset and lease liability in 3 sale and leasaback
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transackion with vaniable lease payments thal do not depend on an index or rate, The dlusirative examples also
clarify that the Eability that arises from a sale and leaseback transaction thal gualifies as a sale applying IFRS
15 is a lease liability,

& seller-lessee applies the amendmenis retrospectively in acoondance with PASIIAS 8 to sale and leaseback
transactions entered info after the date of initial application, which is defined as the beginning of the annual
reparting period in which the entity first applied PFRS 16,

Mew and Revised IFRS A mg Stamdards in issue Bul Mol Yer Efactive

Al the date of authorization of thesa financial statements, the Bank has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Accounting Standards (which will become PFRS Acoounting Standards) that have been issued
but are not vel efiective and iz some cases had nol yet been adopted by the FSRESC.

~ PFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts (including the Juna 2020 and Decamber 2021 amendments 1o
IFRS 17)

- Amendmants ko PAS T Stefement of Cash Flows and PFRS T Financis! insfruments; Disclpsures
titted Suppder Finance Arangements

—  Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability
= [FRS 18 Presenfation end Disclosures in Financial Stefements
= IFRS 19 Subsidianes withow! Public Accountabity: Disclosures

The Board of Directors does not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank in future penods, except if indicaled below, whin apolicable.

PFR5 17 In

IFRS 17 esiablishes the principles Tor the recognition, measuremant, preseniation and disclosure of insurance
coniracks and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Conlracts. IFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified for
insurance contracts with direct participation features, described as the variable fee approach. The general
model is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the premium
allocation approach. The general model uses cument assumptions to estimate the amount, timing and
uncertainty of future cash flows and it explicitly measures the cost of that wuncenainty, It takes into account
markat interest rates and the impact of policyholders’ options and guaraniees.

In June 2020, the |ASE issued Amendments to IFRS 17 10 address concems and implementation challenges
thal ware identified after IFRS 17 was published. The amendments defer the date of initial application of IFRS
17 (incorporating the amendments) fo annual reporting periods beginning an or after 1 January 2023, At the
same fima, the IASE issued Extension of the Temporany Exemplion from Applying IFR'S 9 (Amendments fo
IFRS 4) that exiands the fived expiry date of the tamporary examplion from applying IFRS 9 in IFRS 4 to annual
reparting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

In Decembar 2021, the LASB issuad Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 8—Comyparalive informalion
{Amendment lo IFRS 17) 1o address implemantation challanges thal were identified after IFRS 17 was
published. The amendmen! addresses challenges in the presentation of comparative information. IFRS 17 must
b applied retrospectively unlass impracticable, in which case the modified retrospectve approach or the fair
value approach i appled.

For the purpose of the transition requirements, the date of infial application is the starl of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the Standard, and the transition date is the beginning of the period
immediately preceding the date of initial application.
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The FSRSC adopted the amendments to IFRS 17 on December 15, 2021 {and identified the standard as PFRS
17} and amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from January 1, 2023 ko January 1, 2025. This is
consisien] with Circular Letier No, 2020-62 isswed by the Insurance Commission which deferred the
implementation of PFRS 17 by bwo (2) years after its effective date as decided by the ASB.

The Bank i aware that the new standard applies to any insurance contract regardless of who issued it. The
Bank, however, has determined thal # has no confracts or armangements containing insurance risks. The Bank
has not issued any financial guarantees; il has no credit card contracts, nor & engages in dervatives. It has also
mot angaged in issuing deposit accounts bundied with insurance. The Board of Deneciors has detesmined that
PFRS 17, when effective by January 1, 2025, will have no significant impact on the Bank's operations,

Anmwmms?mmummmm
PFRS T Financial Inst ts: DV ity g Fing G
mm&cmswmmmmmrmlmsvmumm Eﬂﬂ.hheelfe-mebegmmrg
January 1, 2025. The amendments add a disclosure objective to PAS 7 stating that an enfity is required to
disclose information aboul its supgplier finance arrangements that enables users of inancial statements to
assass the effects of those arangaments on the antily’s liabilities and cash flows. In addition, PFRS 7 is
amended {0 add supplier finance arangemeants a5 an example within the requirements to disclose information
about an entity's exposure io concentration of liquidity risk.

The amendments contain specific transition provisians for the first annual reporting penad in which the Bank
applies the amendments. Under the transitiongl provisions an entity is nol required to disclosa:

»  Comparative infarmation for any reporting periods presented before the beginning of the annual
reporting peniod in which the entily first applies those amendments

«  The information otherwise required by PAS T-44H(b){E}-(iii) as at the beginning of the annual reparting
period in which the entity first applies those amendments.

The Bank has no suppler finance arrangemanls.

'ﬂ'ra ammdmants q:mfy hnwu:l as:sass an‘ma nimnq.l Is Em‘mgeahh mmm detamma lha
exchange rate when it is nol. The amendments state thal a cumency i exchangeable into another cufrency
when an enlity is able §o obtain the ather currency within a time frame that allows for @ nonmal adminisirative
delay and through a market or exchange mechanism in which an exchange transaction would create

enforcaable rights and obligations.

An enfity assesses whather a cumency is exchangeable into another curmency at a measurement date and for &
specified purpose. If an enlity is able to obtain no mone than an insignificant amourt of the other currency al the
measurement dala for the spacified purposa, the currancy is not exchangeabla nlo tha other cumency.

The assessment of whether a currency is exchangeable into ancther cumency depends on an entity’s ability to
obtain the ofher currancy and nat on it inbention or decision o o 50

When a cuerency is not exchangeable into another currency at a measurement dabe, an enbity is required o
estimate the spot exchange rate at that date. &n entity's objective in astimating the spol exchange rate is ko
reflect the rate at which an orderdy exchange lransaction would take place at the measurement dale between
market parficipants under prevailing economic conditions,

The amendmants do not specily how an entity estimates the spol exchange rabe to meal that obgective. An
entity can use an observable exchange rate without adjustment or another estimation technigue. Examples of
an ohservable exchange rate include: (a) a spot exchange rate for a purpose other than that for which an endity
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assesses exchangeatility, and (b) the firsl exchange rate al which an enily is abée lo obiain the other curmency
for the specified purpose afler exchangeability of the cumency is restored (first subsequent exchange rate).

An enfity using another estimation lechnique may use any observable exchange rate—including rates from
exchange ransactions in markels or exchange mechanisms that do nod create enforceable rights and
obligations—and adjust that rate, as necessary, o meet the objective as set out above,

When an entity estimales a spot exchange rate because a cumency is not exchangeable imo another curmency,
ihe anlity i required to disclose information that enabies users of ils financial stalements to understand how the
currency nof being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash fiows.

The amandmeants add a new appends as an integral part of IAS 21. The appendix includes application
guidanca on the requirements introduced by the amendments, The amendments also add new llustrative

Examples accompanying 143 21, which lustrate how an endity might apply some of the requirements in
hypothetical situations based on the imiled facts presented,

In addition, the 1ASE made consequential amendments to IFRS 1 fo align with and refer to the revisad 1AS 21
for assessing exchangeabdity.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with earlier

application permitied. An enfity is not parmétted 1o apply the amendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity i
required to apply the specific transiion provisions included in the amendments.

The Board of Directors of the Bank anticipates that the application of these amendmenis may not have any
impact on the Bank’s financial staterments in future periods.

TTmFEREEhasaﬂqﬂadPFHmEunﬂdubam Eﬂﬂ mbaarf&mabaglnmumnuwi 2027T. PFRS 18
replaces PAS 1, carrying forward many of the requirements in PAS 1 unchanged and complementing them with
new requirements. In addition, some PAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to PAS 8 and PFRS 7. Furthermore,
minor amendments were made to PAS T and PAS 33 Eamings per Shave.

PFRS 18 introduces new requirements to: (1) present specified categories and definad sublotals in the
statement of profit or loss, (2) provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in
the notes bo the financial stabernents, and (3) improve aggregation and disaggregation.

An entity 15 required 1o apply PFRS 18 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
earlier application peemitted. The amendments to PAS T and PAS 33, as well as the revised PAS 3 and PFRS
7, become effective when an enfity applies PFRS 18. PFRS 18 requires retrospective application with specific
Iransilion provisions.

The Board of Directors of the Bank anticipates thal the application of these amendments may have an impact
on the Bank's financial statements In fulure periods.

JFRE 18 p&rrmts a:l aiglhla su‘nmmmrl-n pu'am:la raducﬂd mmn applying IFRS Accounting
Standards in its financial stalements. A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced disclosures if it does nol have
public accountability and its ultimate or any infermediate parent produces consolidated financial statements
availtable for public use thal comply with IFRS Accounting Standards. IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries thal
ara ehgible and sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries that elect 1o apply it

An enity is only permitied to apply PFRS 191, at the end of the reporting period: (1) it is a subsidiary {this
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nchiedes an intenmediale parent), (2) it does not have public accountability, and (3) its ultimate o any
intermediate parent produces consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply with PFRS
Agccounting Standards.

& subsidiary has public accountability if; (1) its debt or equity instruments are traded in a pulblic marked or itis in
the process of issuing such instrumends for trading in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock exchange or
an over-the-counter market, including local and regional markets), or (2) it hokds assets in a fiduciary capacity
for a broad group of outsiders as one of its primary businesses (for example, banks, credit unions, insurance
entities, securities brokersidealers, mutual funds and invesiment banks often meet this second crilerion).

Eligible entities can apply IFRS 19 in their consolidated, separate or individual financial stalements, An eligible
intermediale parent that does not apply IFRS 19 in its consolidated financial statement may do so in its
soparale financial stalamants.

The new standard is effective for reporfing penicds beginning on or afier 1 Janwary 2027 with earlier application
permittad. If an enlity alects o apply IFRS 19 for a reporting pariod earlier than the reporting period in which it
first applies IFRYS 18, it is required 1o apply a modified sat of disclosire requirements set out in an appendix to
IFRS 19, If an entity elects to apply IFRS 19 for an annual reporting period before it applied the amendments fo
IAS 21, it is not required to apply the disclosure requirements in IFRS 19 with regard to Lack of Exchangeability.

The Board of Directars of the Bank does nol anticipate that IFRS 19 (to become PFRS 19 i the Philippines) wil
be applicable 1o the financial stalements of the Bank,

Note 3
Material Accounting Policy Information

The malerial accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial stalements are
summearized below. The Bank's management expects these policies bo influence the decisions of users of the
financial stalements. Accounting policies refated to immaterial iransactions or avents wara no longer disclosed.

Going Concern

The Board of Directors has at the time of approving the financial statemants, a reasonable expectation that the
Bank has adequate resowtces 1o conlinue in operational exsstance for the foreseeable fulure. Thus, they
continue to adopd the going concem basis of accounting in preparing fnanceal statements,

Basis ol Praparalion

The financial statements have bean prepared using the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values af the end of the year, as explained in the following accounting policies.
Historical cost ks generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the prica that would be received o sell an asset or paid to fransier a kability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants at the measuremant date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated wsing another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Bank 1akes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics inta account when pricing the asset o liabdity at the measwemant date. Fair valua for
measurement anddor disclosure purposes in the financial staterents is determined on such & basis, excapt for
leasing transactions that ane within the scope of PFRS 16, and measurements that have some similaribies to fair
value but ane not fair value, such as nel realizabla vahee in PASIAS 2 or value in use in PAS/IAS 36.

The fnanczal statements are presented in Philipping paso, which is the Bank's funciional and presentation
currency, and all valees are recorded fo the nearest peso excepl when otherwise indicated.
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The preparation of the financial statements made use of estimates, assumplions and pdgments by
management based on management's best knowledge of curmant and historical facls as at reporting date.
These estimates and judgments affect the rapored amounts of assets and liabisties and contingant Kabilities as
at staternent of financial position date, as well as affecting the reported income and expenses for the year. The
areas imvolving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are desclosed in Note 4.

mﬂmgmlanmnts ﬂll'manmlpu:sni:rn are presenied broadly in onder of iquidity. An analysis regarding
recovery (asset) or seltlement (liabilty) within 12 months afier the reporting date (current) and more than 12
months after the reporting date (non-current) are disclosed in Note 23, Financial assets and financial Eabilibes
are offsel, and the nel amount reported in the siatement of financial position only when there is a legally
enforcaable right 1o offsat the recognized amounts and thene is an intantion 1o sefle on a nat basis, or 1o realize
the assets and sattle the liability simultanegusly. Income and expense are not offset in the statement of profit or
loss unless required or permitied by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in
the accounting policies of the Bank.

EFair Valug Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid bo tranzier a Bability in an ondarly
iransackion betwean markal parlicipants al the measurement date, The fair value measureman &5 basad on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilty takes place either: (a) in the prncipal
market for the assel or labdity; or (b in the absence of a principal market, in the most advaniageous markef for
the azsel or liabiity. The pancipal or the most advantageous market mus! be accessible by the Bank.

The fair value of an assel or a liability 15 measured using the assumptions thal market parficipants would use
when pricing the asse! or Kability, assuming that marked participants act in their economic best inferest. A fair
value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefis by using the asset in its highest and best use or by salling it to another market participant
fhat would use the asset i its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation technigues thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available fo measure fair value, maximizing the use of redevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobsarvable inputs. All azsets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant o the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Leved 1 - Quoted [unadjusied) marke! prices in active markels for identical assels or liabilities.

» Lewel 2 - Valuabon techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant 1o the fair value
measurement is unobsarvable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occured between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
{hased on the kowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

Eingngial ingf :
Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognized in the Bank's statement of financial position when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Financial assels and financial liabilities
arg initially measured al fair value, excepl for irade and olher receivables that do not have a significant
financing component which are measured at fransachion price, Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to
ihe acquisifion or issue of financial assats and financial liabiliies (other than financial assets and financial
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Eabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added o or deducied from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabiliies, as appropeiate, on inflial recognition. Transaction costs direcily attributable to the
acquesition of financial assels of financial kabilites at fair value through prafd or loss are recognized immedsately
in profit or loss.

If the: transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Bank accounts for such diference as
fallows:

+  |ffair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active marked for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation tachnique that uses only data from observable markets, or if the valuation technigue
incledes unobservable inputs and those unobservable inputs are insignificant relative 10 thesr
contribution to e difference between the fair valuation and the transaction price, then the difference is
recognized in profit or loss on indtial recognition (Le., day 1 profit or loss)

*  |nall oiher cases, the fair value will be adjusied o bring it in line with the transaction price (L., day 1
profil or loss will be deferred by including it in the initkal carrying amount of the asset or liability).

After nitial recognition, the defemed gain or Ioss will be released to profit or loss on @ systematic and rational
basis, only o the extent that it arisas from a change in a factor [Incleding time) that market participants woulkd
lake into acoount when pricing the assat or kability,

Alihough the Bank does not have all of ihe following financial instruments in its inancial statements, the policies
governing the accounting of these financial instruments are discussed in detail 1o allow for the proper
understanding of the policies governing such financial instrumants.

Financial A
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assels are recognized and derecognized on a irade date basis.
Reqular way purchases or sales ane purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
fhe time frame esteblished by regulation or convention in the marketpdace. For all fingncial assels, the amount
prasenied in the statament of financial posstion includes all amounts receivable. including accrued intarast.

Al recognized financial assets are measured subseguently in their entirety af either amorized cost or fair value,
depending on the cassification of the financial assels.

Classifiation of Financial Agsel
Debt mstruments that meet the fiollowing conditions ane measured subsegquently al amortized cost (a) the

financial azset is held within a business model whose objectve is to hold inancial azsets in order io collect

contractual cash flows; and (b) the contraciual terms of the financial assal give rise on specifiad dates fo cash
flows that are solely paymenis of principal and inderest on the prncipal amount culstanding.

Debt nstruments that meet the fallowing conditions are measured subsequantly al fax value through other
comprehensive mcome (FYTOCH): (a) the financial asset is held within a business model whese objective is
achieved by both colecting confractual cash flows and seling the financial assels; and (b} the contractual terms
of the financial assat give rse on specified dates ko cash flows that ane solely payments of principal and interast
on the principal amount outstanding, By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently al fair

value through profit or loss (FYVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Bank may make the following irmevocable election/designation at initial recognition of
a financial asset: (a) the Bank may imevocabily elect o present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for irading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a busingss
combination to which PFRS 3 Businass Combinations applies in OCI, (b) the Cooperative may irevocably
dasignate a debl instrument thal meels the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured al FYTPL if daing
s0 eliminates or significanty reduces an accounting mismatch (referred o as the fair value oplion).
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The Bank has applied the fair value oplicn and 50 has designated debd instruments that meed the amortized
cost or FYTOCI criteria as measured al FYTPL because doing 20 significantly reduced an acoounting
mismaich.

Fair value is detenmined in the manner described in the preceding paragraphs.

Buginess Models

An assessment of busingss models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a
financial azsel. The Bank determines the business models al a level thal refects how groups of financial assels
are managed logather lo achieve a particular business objeclive. The Bank's business models ¢o nol depend
on management's intentions for an individual instrurment; therefore, the business model assessment is
performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The Bank's business models reflect how the Bank manages its financial assets in order to generale cash fiows
and determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash fows, selling financial assets or
both. The Bank considers all relevant information avadabla when making tha business model assassmanl.
However, this assessmen is not perfarmed on the basis of scenarios that the Bank does nol reasonably expect
10 oocur, such a5 50 called "worst case’ or 'siress case’ scenarios. The Bank takes into account all relevant
evidence available such as: (a) how the perdormance of the business model and the financial asseds hebd within
that business modal are evaluated and reporied o the entity’s key managament parsonngd, (b) the risks that
affact the parformance of the business modal {and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in
particular, the way in which those risks ane managed, and (c) how managers of the business ane compensated
{e.g., whether the compensation is based on the fair valua of the assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collecied).

Alinitial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognized financial assets are
part of an exisling business model or whather they redlact the commencement of a new business model. The
Bank reassesses its business models each reporting period fo determine whether the business models have
changed since the prior raporting period. For the curment and prioe reporting perod, the Band has nol identified
any changes in its business models.

PP Tesl

IFor the: purpose of the SPPI test, principal is the fair walue of the financial asset at initial recognition. Interest
consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during & particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs and a profil margin,
The SPP| assessment is made in the cumency in which the financial asset is denominated,

Contractual cash flows thal are SPPI are consistent with a basic landing arrangament. Contractual terms that
miroduce exposure (o nsks or volatlty in the contractual cash Rows that ane unnelated 1o 2 basic lending
arrangement, such as exposure o changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do nod give rise o confractual
cash flows that are SPPI. An originaled of an sequired financial assat can be a basic landing arrangameant
imagpective of whether it is a loan in A5 legal form.

Reclassifications

If the business moded under which the Bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The business model reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a
business objective and does not depend on management’s intention for individual financial assets. A change in
business model will occur only when the Bank begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. The dassification and measurement requirements related 1o the new category apply prospectively
from the first day of the firsi reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying
the Bank's financial assats. During the currant financial year and previous accounting period these was no
signaficant change in the Bank's operation. As a resull, there was no change in the business madel under which
ihe Bank holds financial assels and therefore no reclassifications were made.
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.ﬁ.n aﬁm Hﬂ.&mstml'ndls-a rmﬂnd:n'lcﬂmlahng ihe amortized cost of a debl instrument and of allocating
intenest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originaled credit-impained financial assets (i.e. assets thal are
cradit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
inkerest rale, fransaction costs and other premiems or discounts) excluding expecied credit losses, through the
expectad Ka of the debl instrument, or, whare appropriate, a shorler period, to the gross camying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or ariginated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted eflective interes! rale is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected
credil losses, o the amortized cost of the detd instrument on initial recognition.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the nancial asset is measured at milial
recognifion minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effeciive interest method
of any differance betwean that inflial amount and the maturity amount, adjusied for any loss allowance. The
gross carmying amount of a financial assal is the amorized cost of a financial asset befora adjusting for any loss
allowance,

Irterast income is recognzed using the effective interest method for debl instruments measured subsaqueantly
al amortized cost and at FYTOC!, For financial assels olher than purchased or onginated credit-impaired
financial assels, inferest income is cakculated by applying the effective interest rate 1o the gross camying amount
of a financial asset. except for financial assets thal have subsequently become credit-impaired (see balow).

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impained, interest income is recognized by applying
the effective interast rate to the amonized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent repodting pericds, the
credi risk on the credi-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial assel is no longer credit-
impared, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate o the gross camying amount of
ihe financial assel.

For purchased or onginated credit-impaired financial assels, the Bank recognizes inleres! income by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The
calculation doas not revent 1o a gross basis aven if the credit sk of the financial asset subsequenty improves
50 that the financial assel is no longer credil-impaired,

The Bank's cash, loans and other recaivables, investments in debt secunties and some items in olhar assels
having the nature of recenvables are financial assels at amortized cosl

Lash and Cash Equivients

In the statemant of financial position, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash [i.e. cash on
hand and on-demand deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents ane short-term (genarally with
onginal maturity of three months or kess), highly liquid investments that are readdly converible to a
known amount of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in valee. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meating shor-term cash commilments rathar than for
investment or other purposes.

Deposits with Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) or other financial institution counterparties that are
subject 1o third party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless the restrictions result
in & deposit no longer meeting the definition of cash. Where the deposit does not meet the definition of
cash, depending on the extent of the restriction, it may be a cash equivalent. Presently, there are no
contractual restrictions affecting use of deposits.

For the purposes of the stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
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equivalents a5 defined above, net of culstanding bank cvendrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral parl of the Bank's cash management. Such overdrafiz, if any, are presented as shori-
farm borrowings in the statement of financial position,

Lnansandnlmr mﬂm ara non-dervative financal assats with fied or determinable payrments
that are not quated in an active market. They arise with the Bank providing money, goods and services
directly to the debtor with no intention of irading the receivables. Included in this category are financial
assats arising from direct koans t cusiomars, sales contract receivables and afl recaivables from
customers and other banks (due from ather banks), They are included in cwrment assets, except for
maturilies greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-
cument assets.

The Bank's loan receivables represent the amounts granted lo borrowers with inferest charged at the
prevailing kending rate approved by the Bank's Board of Directors. The koan polickes followesd by the
Bank hew closaly to the policies allowed by the Bangko Seniral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Individually significant other receivables are considered for impasrment when they are past due or
when other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will defaull. Receivables thal are
nol considerad 1o be individually impaired are raviewed for impairment in groups, which ara
determined by reference to the industry and region of the countesparty and other shared credit risk
characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based on recent historical counlerparty default
rates for each identified group.

Investments in Debl Secuntivg

Imvesiments in debl securities are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments
and a fieed data of maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold on to maturity.
The investments consist substantially of government debt secunties.

Debl at Amartizad Cost or at FVTOC!

Debt mstruments that are subsequently measured al amortized cost or al FYTOCH are subject 1o impainment,
The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow
characteriglics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing the assal

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give
rise b cash fows that are SPPI.

For the pumpase of the SPPI tast, principal is tha fair value of the financal assat at initial racognition. That
principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.q., i thene are repayments of principal),
Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal
arnount outstanding during a particular pead of lime and for ather basic lending risks and costs and a profl
margin. The SPPI assessment is made in the curmency in which the financial asset is denominated.

When a dabt instrument measured al FYTOCI Is derecognized, the cumulative gainfoss previously recognized
in Ol i5 reclassified fram equity to profit or loss, In contrast, for an equity investment designated as measured
at FVTOCI, the curmulative gainfoss previously recognized in OC1 is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss but transferred within aquity.

Dﬂtmrrmnb&dmﬁﬂasm F\I'TDCI are initially measured ai fair value plus transaction costs.
Subszequently, changes in the camying amount of thesa debl instruments as a result of foreign exchange gains
and losses (see below), impairmant gains or kosses (see balow), and mlerest income calculated using the
effective interest method (see (i) abowe) are recognized in poofit or loss.
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The amounts that are recognized & profl or loss are the same &5 e amounts that would have been recognized in
profit or boss if these debl instruments had been measured al amorized cost. All other changes in the camying
amount of thesa debt instruments are recognized in olher comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve, When these debt instruments are derecognized, the cumulafive gains
of losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified 1o profit or loss,

O indtial r&mgnrhnn ﬂm Hmk rrﬁ'_r make an imevocaible election (on an mstrument-by-instrument basis) o
designate imvestments in equity nstruments as at FYTOC!, Designation al FYTOCH is not permitted i the aquity
investment is hald for trading or i it is contingent consideralion recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination,

Irvesimants in equity instruments at FYTOC! ane initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsaquently, they ane measured at fair value with gaing and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive incomes and acourmulated in the invesiments revaluaton reserve, The
cumulative gain or 1033 is not reclaszified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity invesimants, instead, it iz
transferrad lo ratained sarmings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instrements are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with PFRS
9 unbass the dividends clearly reprasent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

A financial asset is held for iradng if: (1) it has been acquired prncipally for the purpose of selling it i the near
term; (2) on initial recogndion it is pas of a portiolio of identifed financial instrumants that the Bank

logether and has evidence of a recen! aclual pattem of shorl-term profit-laking; or (3) # Is a derivative (excepl
for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrament).

Financial Assels al EVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FYTOCH [see (i) to (in)
abowe] are measured at FVTPL. Specifically;

s |mvesiments in equity mstruments are classified as al FVTPL, unless the Bank designales an equity
investment that is neither held for trading noe a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOC! on indial recognition [see (i) above].

s  Debt instruments that do nol meet the amartized cost citeria or the FYTOC! critena [see (i) and (if)
abave] are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, dabt instruments that meel either the amortized cost
critenia or the FVTOCI criteria may ba designated as at FVTPL upon initiad recognition if such designation
aliminates or significantly reduces a measuremant af recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting
mismatch') that would anse from measuring assats or liabilities or recognizing the gaing and losses on
them on different bases. The Bank has not designated any debt instruments as at FYTPL,

Financial assels al FYTPL are measured al fair value al the end of each reporting peniod, with any fair value
gains or losses recognized in profit or loss 1o the extent they are not part of a designated hedging retationship
{the Bank has no hedge investments). The net gain or kbss recognized in prafit or loss includes any dividend or
interest eamed on the financial asset and is includad in the ‘other services and other income’ line iberm. Fair
value is defermined in the manner described the Bank's material accounting policy information.,

[mpaiment of Financial Assels

The Bank recognizes a loss allowance for expecied credit losses (ECL) on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortized cost or a1 FYTOCH for the following financial assets: (a) loans and receivables that
are measured at amortized cost; (b) invesiments in el instruments thal are measured at amorized cost or at
fair value through other comprehensiva income (FVOCT), and (¢) credit commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are not measured at fair valee through profit or lass (FYTPL). Mo impairment loss is recognized
on investments in equity securities.
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ECL represents credit losses thal reflect an unbiased and probabelity-weighted amount which is determined by
evaluating a range of possibbe cufcomes, the time vabue of money and reasonable and supportable information
abaut past events, curren] conditions and forecasts of fulure economic condiions, The axpeciad cred loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due fo the Bank in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Bank expects o receive, discounted ai the original effective inlerest rate.

ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal 1o; (a) 12-month ECL, i.e.,
lidetime ECL that resull from those default events on the Binancial instrument thal are possible within 12 months
after the reporiing date (refarred to as Stage 1) and (b) full lifetime ECL, |.e., lifatime ECL that result from al
possible default events over the e of the financial instrument (refermed 10 as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

Siage 1 impairment is charactenized by credit exposures that ane considered ‘performing’ and with no significant
increase |n cred risk since initial recognition or with bow credit risk. The tima horizon in measuring ECL is
twelve (12) months.

Stage 2 impairment is charactenized by credit exposures thal ane considarad 'under-parforming’ or not yel non-
performing but with significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The time honzon in measuring ECL
is lifietime.

Stage 3 impairment happens when cradil exposures ane considered ‘under-performing’ or not yat non-
perfonming but with significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition. ECL provision is lifetime,

Lifelime ECL rapresents the expected cradit losses thal will result from all possibde defaull events over the
expected e of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-manth ECL represents the partion of Hetime ECL that is
expected o result from defaull events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months afier the
reparting date. A loss allowance for full lifebime ECL s required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all cther financial instrurments, ECLs
are measured at an amount equal fo the 12-manth ECL.

If the Bank has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument al an amount equal b Ifetime ECL n the
pravious reporting period but delarmines a1 the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer med, the Bank measures the loss alowance at an amount equal fo 12-month ECL at the current reporting
dake, excepl for assets for which the simplified approach was used.

The Bank recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profil of loss for all Anancial instruments with a
cormesponding adustment to their camying amount through a loss allowance sccount, except for investmends in
dabt instruments that are measuned a1 FVTOCI, for which the loss aliowance is recognized in olhar
comprahensive ncome and accumulated in the mvestment revaluation reserve and does nol reduce the
carying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

uremanf o of il Lives of 4 vabies
The axpacied cradit losses on loans and receivables are estimated using a provision mabrix based on the
Bank's hisfoncal credd loss experience, adjusted for fackors that are specific to the deblors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of maney where appropriale. The Bank considers reasonable and supportabile
information, including forward-looking information that affect credil risk in estimating the twebve (12)-month ECL.
The Bank exercises experienced credd judgment and consaders both qualitative and quantilative information
that may affect the assessment.

The Bank measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis fior portfiolios of loans thal share similar
BCONGMIC fisk charactaristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the
assal’s expected cash flows using the assel's onginal effective interest rala (EIR), regardiess of whether it is
measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.
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The Bank evaliates the change in the risk of default ocowming over the expected life of the exposures in
assassing whather these are moved 1o a ietime ECL measure. Although collateral will be used to measune the
loss given a default, this should not be primarily used in measuring risk of a defaull or in transferring to different
stages. The Bank measures lifetime ECL of the following: (a) exposures that have significantly increased their
credl risk from origination (Stage 2); and (b) non-performing exposures (Stage 3).

The Bank treats Stage 1 provisions for loan accounts as General Provision (GP), while Stages 2 and 3
provisions are treated as Specific Provisions (SP),

The Bank sets up general loan loss provision (GLLP) equivalent to 1 parcent [1%) of all oulslanding Stage 1 on-
balance sheet koans, except for accounts considered as credit risk-frée under existing reguiations. The Bank is
ok required to provide a 1 percent [1%) GP on ofher credit exposures covered by PFRS 9 such as off-batance
shea! accounts and invesimants.

The allowance for credit losses for Stages 1, 2 and 3 accounts are recognized in the profit or loss statement. In
casas whon the compuled allowance for credil losses on Siage 1 accounts is less than the 1 parcent GP
required, the deficiency is recognized by appropriating the Retaned Eamings account, The GP racognized in
profd or koss a5 allowance for credil kosses for Siage 1 accounds and the amound appropriaied in RE are
considered as Tier 2 capital subject to the limit provided under the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) frarmsewoek,

The Bank transfers credit exposuras fram Stage 1 to Stage 2 if there s significant increase in credit nisk fram
initial recognition, The Bank establishes well-defined criteria on what constiutes significant ncrease in creds
risk. The Bank considers a wide range of information, which includes, among others, information on

macroeconomic conditions, economic sector and the geographical region relevant to the borrower, and other

The Bank classifies exposures 1o Stage 2 if the exposures have potential weaknesses, based on curment andior
forward-kooking information, that wamant management's chose atiention, Said weaknesses, if left uncomected,
may affect the repayment of these exposures. The Bank also classifies exposures Stage 2 if there ane adverse
or forasaen adversa aconomic or market conditions that may affect the counarparty's ability to meat the
scheduled rapayments in the future,

The Bank transfers the exposures from Stage 3 (non-performing) to Stage 1 (perdorming) when there is
sufficient evidence to suppoart their full collection. Exposunes should exhibil both the quantitative and qualitative
indic:ators of probabde collection prior their fransfer. The quantitative indicator is characterized by payments
made within an observation penod (e.q.. requlardy pays during the minimum observation period). The qualitative
indic:ator pertaing 1o the rasults of assessmant of the borrower's financial capacity (.., iImprovemend in
counterparty’s siuation). As a general rule, full collection is probable when payments of interest andior principal
are received for at least six (6) months.

The Bank observes the following guidelines for exposures thal were restructurad:

al Mon-perdoming restructured exposures thal have exhibited improvement in creditworthiness of the
counterparty may only be transferrad from Stage 3 fo Stage 1 after a total of one (1) year probation
period [i.e., six (8) months in Stage 3 before iransferring to Stage 2. and another six (6) months in
Slage 2 before iransferring io Stage 1; or directly from Stage 3 1o Stage 1, without passing through
Stage 2, after twelve {12) months]: and

b} Restructured accounts classified as performing” prior to restructuning are initiaBy classified wnder Stage 2,
The transfer from Stage 2 1o Stage 1 will follow the six (G)-month re mentioned in [fem a) above.

In measunng the ECL to multiple exposures o a single counterparty or multiple exposures to counter parties
belonging to a group of related entities, the following applhy:
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- if [
The Bank measures ECL at the counterparty level, In parficular, the Bank considers &l exposures to a
counterparty as subject to Bletime ECL when any of its material exposure is subjected fo lifetima ECL;

Exposures {o a retail counterparty.

The Bank measures ECL at the fransaction level. In particular, the Bank classifies one transaction
under Stage 1 and another ransaciion under Slage 3. However, the Bank i nof preciuded from taking
into account the potential of cross default, such thal if one axposure is classified under Staga 3 all the
ofher exposures may be classified under Stage 3; and

Tha Eanh maasuru EEL at ma rp:u'ty' hmal 1paranuty} The Bank likewise considers (he slatus
of the other countarparties belonging to the same group in determining

The Bank moniors all inancial assets that are subject to the impairment requiremants to assess whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since indial recognition. if there has been a significant increase in
credi risk, the Bank measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Bank's
accounting policy is not 1o use the practical expadiant that financial assets with ‘low’ cradit risk at the reporting
date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk.

In azsessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significandly since indial recognition,
the Bank compares the risk of a defaull occurring on the financial mstrument at the raporting date with the nsk
of a defaull occurring on the financial instrument at the date of indial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Bank considers bolh quantiative and quaklative informalion that is reasonable and supportable, induding
historical experence and forward-iooking information that ks avaiable without endue cost or affort. Forward-
looking information considared includes the fulure prospects of the industries in which the Bank's deblors
operate, obtained from economa; experd reports, financial analysis, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and olher similar organizations, as well as consideration of vanous exiernal sources of actual and forecast
economic mformation that refate to the Bank's core oparabions.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit nisk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:
— An actual or expectad significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credid rabing;

= Significant deterioration in external marked indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, &.9., a significant increase in the credit spraad, the credit default swap prices for the
debior, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortized cosi;

~  Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expecied to cause a significant dacreasa in the debtor's ability 1o meet its debd obligations;

— An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the deblor;
- Significant increases in credi risk on other financial instruments of the same deblor; and
- An aciual or expected signdficant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or iechnological

environment of the debtor thal results in a significant decreaze in the debiors ability fo meat his
debl obligations.
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Irrespective of the ouicoms of the above assessment, the Bank praswmes that the credi risk on a financial
assal has ncreased significantly since inflial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days
pasl due, unless the Bank has reasonable and supporable information that demonsirates olhersise,

Despite the foregaing, the Bank assumes that the credi risk on & financial instrument has nof increased
significantly since initkal recognition If the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reparting date, A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if: (1) the fmancial instrument has a
fow risk of default; (2) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet ils contractual cash fiow obligations in the: near
izrm; and (3) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer tarm may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower 10 fulfil s contractual cash fiow obligations.

The Bank considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the assel has extemal credit rafing of
‘invesimant grade’ in accordance with the globally undarstood definition or if an extenal rating is not availabla,
the asset has an intemal rating of ‘performing’, Performing means that the counterparty has a strong financial
position and there is no past due amounts.

The Bank requiarly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to Mentify whather there has been a
signéficant increase in credit risk and revises them as approgriabe to ensune that the criteria are capabls of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past duee.

Definition of Default

The definition of defaull is used n measuring fhe amount of ECL and in the determination of whelher the loss
allowance i3 based on 12-maonth or lifefime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of defadt (PD)
which affects both the measurement of ECL and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk. The
Bank considers the following as constitufing an event of default: (a) the borower is past due more than B0 days
on any malenal credit obligation to the Bank, and (b} the borrower is unlikely to pay its credd obligations ta the
Bank in full.

Thits definition of default i3 used by the Bank for accounting and ntermal credit risk management purposes and
i broadly aligned to the requlatory definition of defall. The definition of defaull is appropriately tailored (o
reflect differant characlenistics of different types of assels.

When aszessing i the bomower is unikely io pay its credit obligation, the Bank 1akes intg account both
qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the type of the asset, for example
in corporate lending & qualitative indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is nol relevant for retail
lending. Cuantiative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same
counterpay ane key inputs in this analysis. Tha Bank uses a vanety of sources of information to assess defaull
which are either developed internally or oblained from extemnal sources. As noted in the definition of credit-
impaired financial assets below, default is evidence thal an assat is credil-impaired. Therefore, credi-impaired
assets will include defaulted assets, but will also include other non-defaulted assets given the definition of
credil-impaired is broader than the definition of defaull.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Bank considers that default has cocurmed when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Bank has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrale thal a mare
lagging default criteron is more appropriate.

: F
A financial assel is credit-impairad when one or more events that have a detrimantal impact on the estimalad
future cash flows of that financial asset have occumed. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
inciudes observable data aboul the following events: {a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower; (b) a breach of conlracl, such as a defaull or past due event; (c) the lenders) of the borrowear, for
economic or contraciual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted 1o the bormower a
concessionis) that the lendens) would nol otherwise consider; (d) it is becoming probabile that the bomower will
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enter banknaptcy or other nancial recrganizafion; or () the disappearance of an active marked fior thal financial
assal because of financial difficulties.

It may not be possile to identify a sngle discrele event—instead, the combined effect of several events may have
caused financial assels ko become credit-ampaired. The Bank assesses whether debt instruments that ane financial
assels measured at amonized cost or FVTOCH are credit-impained at each reporting date. A loan is considered
credit-impaired when a concession is granted o the bomower due fo a detercration in the borrower's financial
condition, unless there is evidence that as a resull of granting the concession the nisk of not receiving the
contraciual cash fiows has reduced signiicantly and thene ane no other indicators. of impairment. For financial
assels where concessions are contemplated but nol granted the asset is deemed credil impaired when there is
observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of defaull, The definition of default (see
above) includes unlikeliness to pay indicalors and a backsiop if amounis are overdue for 90 days or more.

.ﬁ.mudrﬁmhmufuﬁwuﬂmsﬂmm mmmmmgm:mhmm financial
assat are renegotialed or olherwiza modiied babween inilial recogniton and maturity of the financial assal, A
modification affects the amount andior timing of the contractual cash flows aither immadiataly or at a fulure
date. In addition, the infroduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitule a
moddification even if these new o adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediatedy but may
affact the cash flows depanding on whether tha covenant is of is not mel (8.9, a changa o tha increasa in the
interest rate that arises when cavenants are breached),

The Bank reneqotiates oans o customens in Tinancial difficulty o maximize collection and minimize the sk of
defaull. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts 1o pay
under the original contractual terms, there s a high risk of default or default has already happened and the
barrower is expected to be able to meel the revised lerms, The revised terms in most of the cases include an
extension of the matusity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest
repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments fo
covenants, The Bank has an eslablished forbearance policy which applies for all bormowers.

When a financial assel is modified, the Bank assesses whether this modification resulls in derecognition. In
accordance with the Bank's policy & modification nesults in derecognation when il gives rise 1o substantially
different iarms. To daberming if the modified terms are substantally different from Ihe onginal contractual terms
tha Bank considers tha following:

1) Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longe:s SPP (or vice
varsa), change in currency of the assel or expiry of rights to cash flows batween the onginal
counterparties because a new debtor replaces the aniginal debtor (unless both debitors are under
commaon control). If these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then

2) A quantilabive assessment is performed 1o compare the present value of the remaining contrachsal
cash flows under the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised lerms, both
amounis descounted at the original EIR. If the difference in preseni value is greater than 10 per cent
the Bank deerns the arrangement is substantially different leading to deracognition. When performing a
quantifative assessment of a modification or renegotiation of a credit-mpaired financial asset or a
credi-impaired financial assel that was subject lo a write-off, the Bank considers the expected {rather
than the contraciual) cash flows before modification or renegotiation and compares those with the
conractual cash flows afler modification or renegoliation.

In the case where the financial asset is derecognized the loss aliowance for ECL is remeasured af the dale of
derecognition 1o debermine the net carrying amount of the assel al thal date. The difference between this

rewvised camying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new tarms will lead to a gain or
ioss on derecognifion. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL
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excaplin the rare oecasions where the new loan is considered bo be onginated credit-impaired. This applies
only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognized at a significant discount o its revised par
amouni becausa there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification.

When the contraciual terms of a fingncial asset are modified and the modification does not resuli in
derecognition, H-&Eanlr: deterrmines if the financial asset's credit risk has increased significanty since initial
recogniticn by comparing:

« he remaining lifetima probability of defaull (PD) estimated based on data at nitial recognition and the
onginal contractual 1erms; with

« 1he ramaining lifetima PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

IFor financial assets modified as part of the Bank's forbearance policy, where modification did nod result in
derecognition, the estimate of PD reflacts the Bank's ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account
the Bank's previous experience of similar forbearance action, and vanious behavioral indicators, including the
borrower's payment performance against the modified contractual terms. I the credit risk remains significantly
higher than whal was expected at initial recognition the loss allowanoe will continue 1o be measured at an amou
equal 1o lifetirme ECL. I a frborne loan i credit-impained dua o the existencs of evidence of credil-impasrment
(582 abova), the Bank performs an angoing assessment to ascertain f the problems of the exposwe are cured, fo
determing if the koan is no longer credi-impaired, The loss aliowance on forbome leans will generally ondy be
measured based on 12-month ECL when thera i evidence of the bormower's improved repaymant behavior
following modification leading o a reversal of the previous significant increase in credil nisk,

Where a modification does not bead to derecognition, the Bank calculates the modification loss by comparing
tha gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Modification losses
for financial assets, if any, are included in profit or koss in "Losses on modification of financial assets’. Then the
Bank measures ECL for the modified asset, whera the expected cash flows ansing from fhe modified financial
assal are included in calculating the axpectad cash shortfalls from the original asset.

The Bank derscognizes a financial asset cnly when the condractual nghts 1o the assel's cash flows expire
{inchuding expiry ariging from a maodification with substanfially difierent lerms), or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel are iransferred 1o another entity. If the Bank
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to contral the
iransfermed asset, the Bank recognizes its refained inlerest in the assel and an associated liability for amowends il
may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferrad
financial assel, the Bank continues lo recognize the financial asse! and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On deracognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference between the assel's camying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gainfloss that had baen recognized in OCI
and accumulated in equity i3 recognized in profit or loss, with the exceplion of the equity investment designated
as measured at FVTOCH, where the cumulative gainfloss previously recognized in OCI is not subsequently
reclassified to profit of loss,

(On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirely (8.0., when the Bank retains an aption o
repurchase parl of a transferred asset), the Bank allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between he par it condinues to recognize under continuing invalverment, and the part it no longer recognizes on
ihe basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carmying amount allocalad 1o the pan Lhat is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration receivad for
the part no longear recognized and any cumulative gainfoss allocated to it that had been recognized in OC| is
recognized in profit or loss. A cemulative gaindoss that had been recognized in O s allocated betwesn the
part that continues to ba recagnized and tha part that is no longer recognized on the basis of tha refative fair

O



-30.-

values of those pars. This does not apply for eguity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the
cumulative gainlloss previously recognized in OCl is nof subsegquently reclassified to profit or loss.

Write-Off Policy

Loans and debd securities are writien off when the Bank has no reasonable expactations of recovering the nancial
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This & the case when the Bank detenmines thal the bormower does not
have assels or sources ol ncome that could generale sufficient cash flows 1o repay the amounts subjec! to the
write-off, A write-off consfitutes a derecognition event, The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial
assels written off. Recoveries resulting from the Bank's enforcement activities will result in impairment gains, which
will be presanted in ‘net impairment loss on financial assets' in the statement of profi or loss.

The Bank writes off a financial asset when there iz information indicaling that the deblor is i severs financial
difficulty and thers is no realistic prospect of recovery, .0., when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of rade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets wnitten off may still be subject to enforcement
activilies under the Bank's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice wherne appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognized in profil of loss.

ThaEmhdar&mgnlmsafmndﬂamtuﬂuﬁnhmmﬂnﬂmmﬂmmﬂhu!mhamm
expire, or when it Iransfers the financial assel and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Bank naeither fransfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
cwnership and continues o control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained itenest in the assel
and an associaled (ability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank ratains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the financial assel and
also recognizes a colateralized bommowing for the procaeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured al amordized cost, the difference between the asset's camying
amound and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized i profit or loss, In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FYTOCH, the cumulative gain or lss
praviousty accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on
derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the Bank has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FYTOC!, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation resenve
is not reclassified to profit or loss but is transfemed 1o retained eamings.

lﬂwaﬂmh‘EEL E&Mlﬂﬂﬁ!ﬁt&ﬂﬂlﬂfhﬂﬂ:ﬂtﬂﬂhmaﬁrﬂm
= For financial assets measured al amortized cost, a5 a deduction from the gross camying amount of he
assats

—  For debt instruments measured at FVTOC, no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of
financial position as the camying amount is af fair value. However, the loss allowance is incduded as
part of the revalualion amount in the investments revaluation reserse in the equity poartion of the
statement of financial position.

Fingncial Lighill  Equi
Slassificati Dbt or Egu

Debt and equity mstruments are classified as esther financaal liabifities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the confractual amangements and the definitions of a financial liabdity and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afier deducting
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all of its abiliies. Equity instruments ssued by the Bank are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. Repurchase of the Bank's own equity instruments s recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain of loss is recognized in profd or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancallation of the Bank's own equity
msfruments,

Finangial | ahii
All financial liabilities are measured subsaquently at amortized cost using the effective interest method or &t
FVTPL. However, financial liabdies that asise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecogniton or whan the continuing involvement approach appses, and financial guaraniee contracts Esusd
by the Bank, are maasured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set oul below.

Financial Lia FVTPL
Financial liabilities are clagsified as at FYTPL whene the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acqurer in a business combination, (W) hetd for trading or (iii) designated as at FVTPL.

A financial Fability is classified as held for trading if: (a) it has baan acquired principally for the purpesa of
repurchasing il i the near term; or (b) on inilial recagnition it is pan of a portfolio of identified financial
nstruments fhat the Bank manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-ierm profl-takang; or (c) it
&5 a derivalive, excepl for a derivative that is a financial quarantes contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

& financial Fability other than a financial liability held fior trading or confingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as al FVTPL upon initial recognition if: (1) such designation
eliminates or significanily reduces a measuremant or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
i2) the financial lisbility forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabi#fies or both, which is managed,
and ils performance & evaluated on a fair value basis, in acoondance with the Bank’s documented risk
managament or investment slrategy, and information about the grouping is provided intamally on that basis; o
{3} it forms. part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract 1o be designated as al FVTPL.

Financial liabiities al FVTPL are measured al fair value, with any gains or kosses arising on changes in fair
value recognized in profit or koss to the extent that they ane not part of a designated hedging relationship. The
mat gain or koss recognized in prafit or loss incorporates any intarest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘application faas and other income’ line item (Mole 15) in profil or loss.

However, bor financial liabdities that are designated as al FYTPL, the amoun of change in the (i valee of the
firancial liabsdity that s attnbutable 1o changes in the credil sk of that liabidity is recognized in other comprehansive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changess in the Eabilly's credil nsk in other comprebensive income
would craate or enlarge an acoounting mismatch in profit or koss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
of liability is recognized in profil or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial Eabilty's credit fsk thal are
recognized in olher comprehensive income are nol subsequently reclassified to profil or loss; instead, they ane
fransfemed fo retained eamings upon derecognition of the fnancial iability.

Gains or losses on financial quaranty contracts issued by the Bank thal are designated by the Bank as al
FVTPL are recognized in profit or loss.

Flnmd Imbiﬂumatau mi}cnnmgantcnnsrdaraﬁnn nTan acguarer in a business combination, (1) held for
trading, or (i) dasignaled as al FYTPL, are measured subsequently al amortized cost using the effectve
inferest method.

The effectve interest method is a method of calculating the amontized cost of a financial liabiity and of
aliocating interest expense over the relevant pesiod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
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estimaled fufure cash payments (incheding all fees and points paid or recaivad that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and ofher premiums or discownts) throwgh the expected e of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorer parod, to the amorized cost of a financial liabdity,

Tha Bank dnranugnl Ilahﬂus when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the camying amount of the financial liabilty derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized n profit or loss.

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lander one debl instrument inlo another one with the substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabiity and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Simdardy, the Bank accounts for substantial modification of kerms of an
existing kability or pan of it as an extinguizhment of the oniginal financial liability and the recognition of a new
Eability, It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new lerms, imcluding any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective rate is at least 10 pancant differant from the discounted present value of the remaining cash fows of
the original financial Eability, If the modification is not substantial, the difference betwean: (1) the camying
amount of the Eability before the modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is
recognized in profit or loss as the modification gain or knss within other gains and losses.

Eﬂnk pfﬁmaes fumlh.lre ﬁmﬁ arH:I eql.upmentmeaamad 8t cost bess accumulaled depreciation and any
impaarment losses. The cost of an assel comprises its purchase price and directly attrbutable costs of bringing
the asset 1o working condition for its intended wse, Such a cost includes the cost of replacing part of such bank
praméses, fumiture, fxtures and equipment when that cost i incumed, if the recognition criteria are met.
Expenditures for addiions, major improvements and renewals are capilalized while expenditures for repairs and
maintanance ara charged 1o expanse as incurred. Interests incured on bomowed funds used to finance the
construction of properies during the construction penod are capitalized. Other bomowing costs ane expensed,

Depreciation iz compuied on the skrasght-Ene mathod over the estimated uzeful lves of the assets as follows:

{a) Buildings, 25 years;

{b) Fumniture, fures and equipment, 5 to 10 years;

() Transportation equipment, 3 ko 7 years; and

{d} Leasshold improvements, over the estimated useful Fves of the Improvements o the lerm of the
lease, whichever is sharler,

(e} Land is not depreciated.

An item of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment derecognized upon dispasal or when no future
economic benafs are expected from its use or disposal. Any gan or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(caculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statemant of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

The carrying values of bank premises, fumiture, fitures and equipment ane reviewed for impairment whan
changes in circumstances indicate the camying value may not be recoverable. I any such indication exists and
where the camrying values excead the eslimated recoverable amount, the assels are writlen down (o their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of bank premises, fumniture, fixtures and equipment is the greater
of net salling price and value in use. The net salling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assel in
an afm's-length transaction.

[nvestment Properties
The Bank's investment properties partain 1o real and other properiies acguined (ROPA], which are real and
ofher praperties, other than those used for banking purposes or held for investiment. These properties were
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acquered by the Bank in sefflement of loans through foreckosune or dation i paymeant andfor for other reasons,
whaosa camying amount will be recovered principally throwgh a sabe iransaction.

ROPAs are booked inifially at the carrying amount of the koan (i.e., outstanding loan balance adjusied for any
unamariized premium or discownt less allowance for credi! losses computed based on PFRS 9 provisioning
requirements, which take into account the fair value of the collateral) plus booked accrued interest less
allowance for credit losses (computed based on PFRS 9 provisioning requirements) plus transaction costs
mcumed upon acquisition {such as non-refundable capital gains tax and documentary stamg tax paid in
connection with the foreclosure/purchase of the acquired real estate property). If the carrying amount of ROPA
exceeds B5.0 million, the appraisal of the foradosed/purchased asset should be conductad by an indepeandent
appraiser acceptable io the BSP.

The carrying amount of ROPA are aBiocated to land, building, other non-financial assats and financial assets
{e.g., receivables from third party or equity interest in an entity) based on their fair values, which allocaled
carmying amounts shall become ihedr initial costs.

The non-financial assets portion of ROPA shall remain in ROPA and shall be accounted for as follows:
(1) Land and buildings are accounted for using the cost model under PASILAS 40 Invesiment Progerty,

[2) Odher non-financial assels are accounied for using the cost model under PAS/AS 16 Property Plant
and Equipmant,

(3) Buildings and other non-financial assets are depreciated over the remaining useful Be of the assets,
which shall not exceed ten (10) years and three (3} years from the date of acquisition, respectively; and

{4) Land, buldings and other non-financial assels are subject to the impaiment provisions of PASIAS 36
Impairmant of Aszels.

Expenditures incurmed after the invesiment properties have been put into operation, such as repairs and
mainienance, security maintenance and other holding costs are narmally charged o income in the period in
which the cosls are incurred.

Invesiment properties are derecognized when they have esther been disposed of or when the invesiment
properties are parmanently withdrawn from usa and no future benafil is expectad from thesr disposal. Any gain
or boss on derecognition of an investiment property is recognized in the stalement of profit or loss in the year of
derecognibion.

Other Assels

Ofher assets pertain to assets controlled by the Bank as a result of past events, Thesa are recognized in the
fingncial siatements when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the asset has
a co2l or value that can be measurad reliably.

i
Al each reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amownds of its non-financial asseds to detenming whethar
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indicalion exists, then the assel's recoverable amount is
estimated, For impairment testing, assets are grouped logether into the smallest group of assals that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely ndependent of the cash inflows of other assets. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value kess costs to sell. Value in use
is based on the estimaled future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects cument marked assessments of the time valee of money and the risks specific to the assel. An
impasrment loss is recognized if the carmying amount of an assat exoeeds its recoverabla amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the exient that the
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assel’s camying amount does not excaad the canmying amount that would have been defermined, net of
depreciabion or amartization, if o impairment loss had been recognized.

Shareholders” Equily

Share capital represents the nominal value of the ondinary and preference shares that have been isswed.
Surplus resanves comprise mainly of the appropriation from surplus and undivided profits (retained earmings) for
the retirement of preference shares to provide fior the reacquisition and cancellation of a Bank's preferred stock,
Upon comiplete retirement of the preference shares, the account will cease fo exist. Any excess of reirement
premium not fully absorbed by the paid-in capital accounts will be charged surpdus and undivided profits.
Surplus and undivided profits include all current and pricr period results of operations as disclosed in the
statement of profil or loss, less appropriated surplus and dividends declared.

vgnue and
The Bank's revanue is deved substantially from banking business and related activities and comprises net
interest income and non-interast income. Income is recognized on an accrual basis in the pericd in which it
accrues. Managemant has determined that the revenue Trom interest on loans ane within the scope of PFRS 9
whila the incoma from non-interest related activities are within the scope of PFRS 15,

The following specific criteria are the bases used in recognizing revenue:

Under PERS 9

ig) Interestincome and interest expense are recognized in profit or loss for all financial assets or lisbilities
using the effective interest method on the basis of the cost of the individual financial instrument. The
effective interest mathod is a method of calculating the amortized costs of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allecating fhe interast income or interest expense over the relevant pericd., The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recaipts
through the expected Be of the financial instrumeant or, when appropriate, a shortar period b the ned
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial lability,

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash fiows considaring all contractual
terms of the financial instrement but does nol consider future credit losses, The calcutation includes al
fees and points. paid or received between parties to the confract that are an integral part of the
effective inlerest rale, ransaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Once a fnancial assel or
a group of similar financial assets has bean written down as a result of an impairment loss, intenest
income is recognized using the rate of inerest used 1o discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measurning the impairment loss,

(b) Interast expense on deposit liabiities are recognized based en the accrual meathad of accounting,
using the effective inferest mathod which is the rate that exacily discounts esfimated future cash flows
throwgh the expected e of the interest-bearing financial instrurments to the net carrying amount of the
financial liability.

(e} Income from invesiments in debt secunities held o colect contraciuad cash flows (rather than bo sell the
instrument prior to its contraclual maturity to realize its fair value changes) are recognized al amortized
cost, with merest income recognized at the effective inferest rate,

Under PERS 15
The Bank recagnizes revenue from contracts with custormers at an amount that reflects the consideration to

which the Bank is expected to be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services io @ customer,
For each contract with a customer, the Bank:

(1) Identifies the contract with a customer;
(2) Identifies the perormanca obligations in the contract:
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(3 Determines the fransaction price which takes inlo account estimates of vanable consideration
and the time value of money;

(4) Allocates the transaction price fo the saparale performance obligations on the basis of the
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and

(3) Recognizes revenue when or &5 each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner thal
depicts the transfer 10 the customer of the goods or Senices promised.

Variable consideration within the irensaction pnce, if any, reflects concessions provided fo the customer such
as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the cusiomer and any other
contingent events. Such estimates ane determined using either the "axpecied value' or 'most Ekely amount’
method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject 10 a constraining panciple whersby revenue
will ordy be recognized fo the exdent thal it is highly probable that a significand reversal in the amount of
cumulative revanue recognized will not accur. The measurement constraint continwas untl the uncenainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved, Amounts receved that are subject to the
constraining principke ane initially recognized as deferad revenus in the form of a separate refund ability.

The Bank recognizes income from other sources as follows;

(a) Application fees and commissions are generally recognized when the relaled services are performed.
Other non-finance charges on loans and penalties on delinquent accounts are racagnized as the
related services are performed,

(b} Income from assats sold or exchanged is recognized when the bile to the assats s transfarred bo the
buyer or when collectability of the entire sales price is reasonably assured. This is included in profit ar
loss as part of Application Fees and Other Incoms.

Cosl and Expensas

Costs and expensas are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when a decrease in future economic
benefits related io a decrease in an assel or an increase in a liability has arisen, which can be measured
reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in the staterment of profit or loss: i) on the basis of a direct
association between the cost incurred and the eamings of specific items of income; ii) on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expecied to anse over saveral
acoounting peniods and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly debermined; or i)
immediately when an expenditura produces no fulure aconomic banefits or when, and 1o the extent that,
future economic benefits do not quailfy, or cease lo qualify, for recognition in the statement of financial
position as an assel.

Operating expenses include administrative and ather operating expenses reprasenting the costs diractly
associated with the generation of revenue and cost of administering the business, and fhese are expensed
as incurred.

Emplovee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Bank in exchange for services rendered by
employees or for the termination of thair ermployment in the Bank. The Bank recognizes: (a) a liability when an
employes has provided senice in exchange for employee benefits to be paid in the fulure; and (b) an expanse
when the Bank consumes the economic benefit arising from the service provided by an employes in exchange
for amployes benefils. The following reprasent the accounting Tollowed by the Bank for all types of employes
benafits, axcept share-based payment, to which thera i nona,

*  Shon-Tenn Employes Benefits
Short-lerm empioves benefits are Ihose expected o be setted whally before twetve months aflar the
end of the annual reporting peniod dunng which employee services ane renderad, bul do nol include
lermination benefits. These benefits include wages, salanes, profit-sharing and bonuses (if there are

O



-6 -

any) and non-monelary benefits paid to current employees. Thesa ane recognized when the employes
has rendered the service and are measured af the undscounted number of benafits expected 1o be
paid in exchange for thal service,

The benefits also include compensaled absences, which ane recognized fior the number of paid leave
days (ncluding holiday entitlement) remaining at the reporting date. The expectad cost of short-term
compensated absences is recognized as the employees render service thal increases their enfitiement
or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absences occur, and includes any additional
amounts the Bank expects io pay as a resull of tnused enlidements al the and of the perod. Tha
amounts recognized are included in the Other Liabilities account in the statement of financial position
3t the undscounted amouwnt that the Bank expects to pay a5 a result of the unused enlemant,

P ing and Pa if An

The Bank recognizes the expacied cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments when, and only when, i
has a legal or consiructive obligation bo make such payments as a resull of past events and & reliable
estimate of the expected obligation can be made. Profil-sharing agreements are normally coverad
during the hiring of sarvices of selected officers and are based on certain condilions and paramelars
that are measurable, Such agreements are nomally approved and suthorized by the Board of
Directors. On the other hand, declarations of bonuses to officers and employesas are the sole
rasponsibdity of the Board of Directors. As a matier of policy, the Bank does nol declare and accrue
bonuses unless approved and authorized for release by the Board of Directors,

Posi-Empioyment Bemalit Plans

Post-emplayment benefit plans that are provided to employees only cover their retirement benefils,
which are paid in lump suem payments &l the fime of their retirements, The retinement benedits are
provided 1o employees through a defined benefit plan, A defined benefit plan is a retirement plan that
defines an amount of retirament banefit an amployee will recaive on ratirerent, usually dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of senvice and salary. The legal obligation for the benefits of
the retirernent plan remains with the Bank, even if plan assels for funding the defined benefit plan have
bean acquired. Plan assels may include assets specifically designated to a long-term banefit fund, as
well 35 qualifying insurance policies. The Bank's defined benefil retirement plan covers all regular full-
time employees.

Tanmination Banef
Termination benefits are payable when employment is lerminated by the Bank before the normal
refirement date, or whenever an employee acoepds voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benafits. The Bank recognizes termination banefits when il is demonstrably committad to either: (a)
farminating the employment of current employeeas according fo a detaded formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or (b) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the statement of financial
pasilion date are discounted 1o present value.

Refirement Banefits

The Bank operates a defined benefil retirement plan which requires a contrbution to be made to a separately
adrminislared fund. The nel defined benefil kability or assal is the aggregate of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assels (if any), adjusted for any effect of
lirmiting a net defined benefil asset to the asset ceiling. The assed ceding is the present value of any economic
benafits available in the Torm of refunds from the plan or reductions in fulure contributions 10 the plan.

The cost of providing benefts wnder the defined benef plans is actuarially determined using the projgected wnit
crodit method. The dafined benafit costs comprisa the following: (a) servica cost; (b) nel interes! on the net
defined benefil kability or assat, and (¢) remeasuremeants of nat defined benefit liability or assel.
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Service oosts, which include curment service costs, past service costs and gains or Ipsses on non-noutine
seftements are recognized as expense in the statement of profil or loss. Past service costs are recognized when
plan amandment or curtailment occurs. Thesa amounls are calculated peniodically by the Consulting Actuary,

Met inferest on the net defined benefd lability or asset is the change during the period in the net defined benefit
Eability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount rate based
on government bonds to the net defined benefit liabiity or asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liabdity
or &ssel is recognized as expense of income in the statement of Income,

Remeasurements comprising actuanal gains and losses, ratum on plan assats and any change in the effect of
the asset ceiling (exchuding net interest on defined benefit Rability) are recognized immediately in ofher
comprehensive imcome (OCH) in the periad in which they anse. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
statement of income in subseguent parods,

Plan assets are assets that are held by a trustee bank intendad for refirement. Plan assels are not available to the
craditors of the Bank, nor can they be paid directly to the Bank. Fair value of plan assets is based on marked price
nfiormation, When no market prce is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by dscounting expacied
future cash fows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assels and the maturity
of expacied disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the setemeant of
the refated obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is highar than the presant value of the defined benefit
obligation, the maasurement of the resulting defined benafit assat is limited to the present value of economic
benefits avatable in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in fulure contnbutions ko the plan.

Leases — The Bank as Lessee
The Bank's leases substaniially fvvolve the use of offics spaceas thal are used for s branch officas, The Bank

assasses whether a contract Is or conlains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Bank recognizes a right-of-
use assel and a corresponding lease Eability with respect 1o all lease arrangernents in which it is the lessee,
except for shor-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assats. For these low value leases, the Bank recognizes: the lease payments as an operating expense on a
stralght=line baszes over the term of the lease unless another syslemabc basis s more represantative of the time
patiern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease Eability is initially measurad at the present value of the lease payments that are nod paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the laase. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate. For the purpose of discounting, the Bank is using the
average bomowing rade of its bills payable and ime deposits.

The incramental barowing rate dapands on the term, currancy and start dale of the lease and is detarmined
based on a senes of inpuls including: the risk-free rate based on Government bond rates; a country-specific risk
adjusimeant; a credit sk adustment based on bond yields; and an entity-specific adjustment when the risk
profile of tha antity that enlers inlo the laase is different to thal of the Bank and the lease does nol banef from a
guarantee from the Bank. For the purpose of discounting, the Bank is using the average bomowing rale of its
bills payable and time deposits.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease kability compnse:

*  Fixed lease payments (inchuding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

«  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date;

*  The amount expecied to be paid by the lessee under residual vaiue guarantess,

v The axercise price of purchase options, if the lesses is reazonably certain 1o exercise the options; and

«  Payment of panalties for lerminating the lease if the lease larm reflects the exercise of an opbion 1o
lerminate the lease.
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The lease Eability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. The lease liabiity is
subsequently measured by increasing the camying amount 1o reflect interest on the lease liability (using
effeciive inlarest mathed) and by reducing the carrying amount |0 reflect the lease payments made.

The Bank remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment fo the retated right-of-uss
assat) whenever:

*  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstancas resulting in a
change in the assessmenl of axarcise of a purchase oplion, in which case the lease liabiity is
remeasured by discounting the revised laase payments using a revised discount rate,

*  The lease payments change due fo changes in an index or rate or a change in expeched payment
under a guaranbeed residual value, in which cases the laase ability s remaasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
io a change in a fioating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rale s used).

* A lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate leasa, in
which case the lease Eability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified leass by
discournting the revised lease payments using a revised dizcount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The right-of-use assels comprise the nifial measurement of the cormesponding lease liabilly, kease payments
made at or bafore the commancement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They
ara subsaquently measured al cost less accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Bank incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset, restone the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognized and measured under PASIAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-
of-use assel, the costs are incduded in the related right-of-use asset, unless those cosits are incumed to produce
invenlories.

Right=of-use assets are depreciaied over the shorier penod of lease term and usedul Iife of the undertying asset.
If a lease transfers ownarship of the undedying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Bank
expects lo exercise a purchase option, the refated right-of-use assal is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the kease.

The Bank applies PASAS 36 1o determine whather a right-of-use assel iz impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixiures and Egugment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are nol included in the measurement the lease liability and
the night-of-usa assal. The related payments are recognized as an expanse in the paniod in which the avenl or
condition that triggers thase payments accurs and are included in the line ‘Rent’ in the statement of prof or loss.

Az a practical expedient, PFRS 16 permils a lessee not to separate non-lease components and instead
accounls for any lease and associaled non-lease components as a single arrangamend, The Bank has nol used
ihis practical expedient. For confracts that contain a kease componeant and ane or mone addetional lease or non-
lease components, the Bank allocates the consideration in the confract to each lease component on the bases
of the retative stand-alone price of the lzase component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
Components.

Leases — The Bank as L essor
The Bank is not a lassor of properties.
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Income Taxgtion
The income tax expensa represents the swem of the tax currently payable and defemed.

Current Tax

The tax cumently payable i based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reparted
in profit or loss because i excludes dems of income o expensa thal ane taxable or deductible in ofher years
and i further excluges items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's liabdity for cument tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substanfively enacted by the end of the reporting penod.

A provision is recognized for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain, bul it is consaderad
probable that there will be a future outfiow of funds 1o a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the bast
estimate of the amoun expectad io become: payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of the Chief
Accounting Officer of the Bank supporied by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain
casas based on specialist independent tax advice.

Deferrad Tax

Deferred tax is the tax expacted to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assats and liabilities in the financial statemants and the corresponding tax basas used in the computation of
fanable profit. It is accounted for using the Eability method.

Defarred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all faxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are
recognized to the exient that it is probable that taxabde profits will be available against which deductible
lemporary differences can be ulilized. Such assats and habilites are nol recognized if the lamporary differance
ariges from the inial recognition {other than in a busmess combination) of other assels and liabilites in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profil nor the accounting profil. In addition, a deferred fax liability is
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Defarred tax liabilties are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: (a) where the defered tax
Eability arises from the inifial recognition of goodwill or of an assel or Eability in a fransaction thal is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neithar the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or boss; and (b) in respect of taxable lemparary differences associalad with investments in subsidiarias,
associates and inderests in joint ventures, whene the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difierences will not reverse in the foreseaable fubure.

The camying amount of deferred tax assats is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no konger probable that suffickent taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets (o be
fecovaned,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that ane expected to apply to the period when the
assal is realized or the liabiity is settled, based on tax rale (and tax kaws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. Income lax refabng 1o Rems recognized direclly
in equity s recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. The measurement of defemed tax
Eabilities and assets reflects the fax consequences that would follow from the manners in which the Bank
expects, a the and of the reporting period, to recaver or satfla the carmying amount of its assels and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when fhere is a legally enforceabla right bo sat off cument tax assels
agains! current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authornty and the
Bank intends 1o seftle its current tax assels and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet Eability method, on all termporary differences at the
statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cammying amounts
for financial reporting pumoses.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and canry forward of unused tax
credils from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will ba available against which the deductible lemporary diffarences and the camy forward of unused tax credits
can be utilized except: (a) whare the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognifion of an asset or Eability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss: and (b) in respect of
deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianies, associales and interests in ot
venlures, deferred fax assets are recognized only fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will revierse in the foreseeable fulure and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utdized,

The carrying amount of defermed lax assats is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced
1o the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable peofit will be avadable 1o allow all or part of the
dieferred tax assed to be uliized, Unrecognized deferred tax assets are raassessed al each statement of
financial position dele and ane recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit wil
allow the defermed 12 assel ko be reovvensd,

Eamings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the profit for the year atiribulable to common
shareholders (el income for the period less dividends on convertible redeemable praferred shares) by the
weighted average number of comman shares issued and outstanding duning the year and adjusted 1o give
retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared duning the period.

Diluled EPS is compuled by dividing the nel income fior the year attribulable to common shareholders by the
weighied average number of common shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of dilutive
converible redeemable preferred shares, Diluled EPS assumes the corversion of the oulstanding prefemed
shanes. When the effect of the conversion of such prefenred shares is anti-diutive, no diluted EPS s presarted.

Confingengies

A contingency arises when thene is a situation for which tha outcoma i uncertasn, and which should be resohed
in the fulure, possibly creating a loss. The acocounting for a contingency is essentially 1o recognize only those
losses that are probable and for which a koss amount can be reasonably estimated. Confingent assats are not
recognized in the financial statements but are dsclozed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilites are not recognized either, but these ane generally disclosed untess the possibility of an
outflow of resowrces is remole,

Provisions and Confingent Liahdities

Provisions are recognized whan the Bank has a prasent abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
even, it is probable thal the Bank will be required to selile that obligation and a reliable estimate can ba made
of the amount of the obligation. The amaount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to saflla the presant oblgation al the raporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation, Where & provision is measured using the cash lows estimated to setile the present
chligation, its camying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
maoney s material). When some or all of the econamic banefits required to seftle a provision are expectad 1o be
recovered from a third party, a recevabile is recognized as an asset i it is virtually cerain that reimbursament
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measwned reliably,

Events After Reparting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Bank's position &t statement of financial
jposition date (adjusting events), are reflecied in the fnancial statements. Posl year-end events that are not
adjusting avents are disclosed in the noles to financial stalements when matarial.
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Note 4
nificant Accoun Jud and Sou of Estimation Uncertain

In applying the Bank's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, Summary of Matenal accounting
policy informalion, the management of the Bank are required to make judgements (obher than those imolving
estirations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized and 1o make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimaies and associaied assumptions are based on historical expenence and other fackors thal are considered
in be relevant. Actual resulis may differ from these estimales. The estimates and undedying assumptions ane
rewiewed on an ongaing basis. Revisons to accounting estimatas ane recognized in the pariod in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that penod, or in the pariod of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both cumrent and future penods,

'Ifhe I'n!uu-.mg areihe mhaahudgermnla apartirum 1|'H:tﬂ-ﬂ lml'wng estimations [which are presented
separalely below), that the management of the Bank have made in the process of applying the acoouning
policies and that have the mos! significant effect on the ameounts recognized in the financial statements.

Glaas;ﬂmhm aﬁmasummantnfﬁnanna% assals depends on the results of the Sclely Payments of Principal
and Interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Bank determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of fimancial assets are managed logether o achieve a particular business objective. This
assassment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence inclsding how the performance of the assels is
evalualed and their performance measuned, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these
are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated,

The Bank moniors financial assats measured al amontized cost or faer value through other comprehensive
income that are derecognized peor 10 their maturity 1o understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the assel was held. Monitoring is part of the
Bank's continuous assessmant of whethar the business modal for which the remaining financial assets are held
conlinues 1o be appropriate and i it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model or a
prospective change to the classfication of those assels, No such changes were required during the penods
prazenied.

In in
Expected credit kbsses (ECL) are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
Idetime ECL for slage 2 or stage 3 assets. An assel moves to stage 2 when its credil risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. PFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant mcrease in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly mcreased the Bank takes info account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

‘I!ha h&]l assurrm{ms mmm 1ha fulure, and other key sourcas of esbimation uncerainty al the reporting
period that may have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustmant lo the carrying amounts of assets and
labilities within the next financial year, are discussed below,

Fair Value Measinemonis

Management uses valuabon tachniques 10 determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active
market quotes are nol avalable) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consiztent with how marke! participanis would price the instrumant. Managemant bases ils assemplions on
observable dala as far as possible; bul this is not always available, In thal case, management uses the best
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infonmation avadable, Estmated fair values may vary from the actual prices that woukd be achieved i an arm's
length transaction at the reparting date.

Calcutation of Loss Alowance

When measuring ECL the Bank uses reasonable and supportable foreand-kooking information, which is based
on assumpdions for the future movemeant of different economic drivers and how thesa deivers will affect each
ofher, Loss given default is an estimate of the loss ansing on default, It is based on the differance between the
contracieal cash flows due and those thal the lender would expect to receive, taking info account cash flows
from collateral and inbegral credst enhancements. Probability of default constitutes a key inpul in measuring
ECL. Probability of defaull is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of fulure conditions.

The Bank reviews annually the estimaled usaful lives of its bank premises, fumitura, fixtures and equipment
based on expecied asset uiilization. i is possible that fufune results of operations could be matesially aflected by
changes in thesa eslimates. A reduction in the estimated usaiul lives of these properties would increase
recorded depraciation and amortization expanse and decraasa the related assal acoounts.

The Bank mm Inma]rrr.ﬁﬂl of its non-financial assats whanever evants of changas in crcumsiances
indicate thal the carmying amount of the &sset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever the carmying amount of an assel exceeds is recoverable amount, Recoverable amounts are
estimated for individueal assets o, if it is not possible, for the cash-genarating unit to which the assel belongs.
For impairment loss on specific assel, the recoverable amount represents the net salling prica, In delarmining the
present value of estimated fulure cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assels, the
Bank is required 1o make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the Bank's financial statements.

Retirement Benefits

The determination of the Bank's obbigation and cost for pension and oiher employees” benefits is dependent on
iha sedection of certamn assumptions used by management in calculating such amounts. While tha Bank
believes that the assumptions used are reasonable and approprate, significant differences in the actual
expenence or sagnificant changes in assumpfions may materially affect employes benefit obligations,

a i Tax A
The Bank reviews its deferred tax assels at the end of each reporting period and reduces the carmying amount
o the extend that i is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avadiable to allow & or part of the
defemed lax assel to be utiized.

Provisions snd Confingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policies on
recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of contingencies ara discussed in Nole 2.

Note 5

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of the folowing:

Docamber 31, 2024 2023
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Plipinas R83,629.216 #113.508,483
Due from other banks 54T 492,744 599,049 558
Cash and other cash items 68,785,661 72058 238

R699.907 621 BT84 617 289
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Due from other banks eam annual interest rate at 0.125% in 2024 and 2023, Short-tlerm deposits are made for
varying periods up (o three months depending on the immediale cash requirements of the Bank and earming
inkerest ranging from 5.00% to 6.00% in 2024 and 2023, Interast income from bank deposits amounted o
F27,.307,138 and F2,779,763 in 2024 and 2023, respectively,

Due from other banks inchudes restrcted time deposit with Philippine National Bank amaourting to B166,147
held as security for redemption of preferred share,

Note &

Loans and Other Receivables

The loans and other recaivables congest of the following:

Docembar 31, 2024 M

Loans receivable R2,349,135301  BZ2.213671.140

Other recaivables 59,050,701 54,722 622

Total 2,408.186,002 2,768 393,762

Allowance for expected credil lossas (260,216,370) (253,277.722)
Uneamed inferest and discounts (44,760,100] (44 412 726)
Metl 2.103,209,532  #1,970.703.314

Breakdown of Loans Receivable

Degermbar 31, 2024 e 2023 %

Agricultural W52,404,078 3 P173.330,074 8

Commarcial 2296676035 98 2040285554 &2

thers 55188 o 55,512 0

Total 2349135301 100 2213671140 100

Alowance for expected credit losses (241,652,556) (12)  (229.589.759) (12)
Uneamad interest and discounts (44,760,100 (2 (44,412.726) (2]
et B2.062,722.645 BE 1 930 GGE.GSS B85

These loans bear annual interest rates ranging from 6.50% to 21.57% per annurm collectible over a period of &
maonkhs 1o 5 years. Inferes! on loans recognized in the statement of profil or loss amounted B343 930,667 in 2024
and P330,481,043 in 2023,

Dacamiber 31, 2024 " 2023 %

Maturity Profie of | Receivabi

Due more than 12 months 832,012,877 82 B 827 312,065 72

Due within 12 months 417,122 424 16 386350075 28
R2,349,135,301 100 B2 313,671,140 100

Breakdown by Type of Securty

Unsecured loans 1,787, 506,230 T8 BTTT. 731,585 o
Secured loans

Real estale 433,460,086 18 368,523,811 i7

Chatiel 107,162,322 § 37,108,084 2

Dthers 21,006,663 1 H)_X07 660 1

561,629,071 24 435,939 555 20

P2349. 135301 100 B2 23671140 100




Ereakgown of Unsecyred [ogng
December 31, 2004 % 2023 %
APDS BT16,337930 40 BEOT 751,348 39
MNon-APDS 949,421,660 53 1042111492 59
Enterprise Loans 121691466 7 43813247 2
Microfinance 55174 0 G408 O
P1,787.506,230 100 F1.777.731.5685 100
Breakdown by Concentration of Credit
Dacambear 31, 2024 . 2023 %
Salary Consumption Loans P1,638,383921 69.74 F1585084616 7160
Wholesale & Retail Trade, Repair of MV 191,080,388 8.13 205258515 927
Real Estate Activities 169,239,589 7.20 137928898 623
Construction 137,257,365 5.84 87 733754 442
Auto Loans 5361733 228 11,110,310  0.50
Agriculiure, Forestry and Fishing 44274561 1.88 536688034 243
Manufacluring 37274479 158 40420679 183
Transportation And Storage 28,168,151 1.20 10112698 048
Admin. and Support Service Activities 11,793 024 0.50 20,758,743 094
Accommodation and Food Servica Activities B244 575 0.35 4047162 0.18
Electricity, Gas, Steam & Aircon Supply E815617T 0.29 2000001 009
Professicnal, Scientific and Technical 5820314 025 12410962 058
Other Service Activities 17,147,983 0.73 33,107,768 150

P2,349,135301 100,00 R2.213.671,140 100.00

The BSP conssders thal concentration of cradil exists whan lotal lnan exposung to a parlicular industry or
economic sector exceads 30% of total loan portfolio.

Breaxdown by Age of Accoun(s

Ducerber 31, 2024 Curent Past Due Totsl
Agricultural 19,602,772 32,801,306 F52,404,078
Commercial 2,009,489, 216 287 186,819  2.296.676,035
Others - 55,188 55,188
F2029.001.968  R320.043.313 2349135301
BE% 14% 100°%

December 31, 2023
Agricultural F140 509 941 FI25E0 033 PT3.330,074
Commerczal 1,791,353 408 2a93r 146 2040 5554
Others - 55512 55512
Pi7.087.838 281507791 F2.213671.140
B 13% 1008

A portion of the past due accounts are covered with real estate morigages, which could be foreciosed to reducs

possible losses from non-collection,

ing [

Non-Performing Loans

The non-perfiorming loans as defined under Section 304 of the MORB amounted F302 024,268 in 2024 and
F264, 419,953 in 2023, Under banking regulations, loan accounts shall be considened non-perfiorming, even
wilhout any missed contractual paymants, whan they are considered impaired under existing accounting
standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in ifigation, andlor there is evidence that full repayment of principal or
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nterest is uniikely without foreclosure of collateral, if any, AN ofher loans, even il nol considered impaired, shall be
considared non-perfonming if any principal andor inlenest are unpald for mone than 30 days from conbractual dus
date, or accrued interasts for more than 20 days have been capitalized, refinanced, or dalayed by agreament.

Restructured loans shall be considened non-performing. However, if prior fo restructusing, the lans were
categorized as performing, such classification shall be retained, Moreover, NPLs shall remain classified as such
until; () there is sufficient evidence 1o support that full collection of prancipal and inferests is probable and
payments of inlerest and'or principal are received for at least 6 months; or (b) writlen off.

Restruciured loans amount o B116 million in 2024 and B110 million in 2023,

The related allowance for credil loss of such loans amounted to PB4 million in 2024 and FES million in 2023,

Dagember 31, 2024 : Parfming ; Non-Perdoming % Totsl Y

Agricultural F715,851 4  P320B5455 11 P3IZB0N306 10
Commencial (SME) 17,303,195 95 260683624 B9 287,186,819 90
Others=personal consumplion - - 55,188 - 55,188 =
18,019,046 100 R302024.267 100 W320,043,313 100
Degember 1. 3073
Agricultural #1,076,189 6  F31,443934 12 F32520,033 i2
Commaercaal (SME) 16,011,639 04 232.020,507 8 248932146 83
(thars—personal consumplion - - b5 612 - 55,512 -

B1949251, 187 100  M264.415853 100 R2A1507.791 100

Past Due Ratio on Tolal Loans s 14% in 2024 and 12% in 2023,

Tha mm'r.rafe s.mj&:lad o Impalrmanttaﬁjng uging thix loan loss estimaton mathodology, provisioning
and allowance for cradit losses prescribed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.

Rol-Forward Analyses of the Allowancs for ECL

Docavabar 1, 2024 2023
Opening balances, as originally staled R229.589.759  P346.325104
Add additional allowance (See restatement paragraph below) - 15919318
Opening balances, as restaled 229,589,759 362,244 420
Additional provisions for the year 10,562 801 -
Write-off of Inans (4 (131,255,196)
Reclassification 1,500,000 {1,399 465)
Clasing balances, as restaled P241,652,556  P229.589.750

Rostatemant of 2022 and Priov Years” Allowance for impairment Losses

In 2023, the Bank restated the 2022 and prior years' allowance for ECL on loans to record additiona] provision
iior loan losses amounting to #135.919,316, representing portion of under provision in prior years. As a result, the
beginning balances of sunplus and undivided profits and the defermed tax assats for the year 2022 ware adusied
by R11,939 487 and 3,979,829 (R15,918,316 x 26%), respectively. The additional provision for expected cradil
losses in prior years tofalng F15,919,316 was recorded against surplus since said provisions were gedermined
and represented expecied credit losses of prior years.
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Delails of Qiher Recoivabl
Docernber 31, 2024 23
Accrued interest income on loans receivable #10,564,113 Fi0972.811
Accounts recaivable (See tabd bakow. | 38,117 548 34,308,799
Sales eonlract receivable 10,369,040 8 441,002
Total 59,050,701 54,722 22
Allowance for expected credil bosses (See tabi bekw ) (18,563,814} (23,687 963)
Het R40,486 88T 31,034,659
Dvarmber 31 2024 2023
Receivable from DEP-ED P19,923,472 14,308,543
Barrowers under litigation 14,938 817 6,646 66T
Receivable from resigned employees 1,291,343 10,472 583
Matured investment debt security with Land Bank of the Philippines 875,200 §75.200
Advances io contractors 413,766 1,113,768
Advances to 558 matemity/sickness 357,578 479 208
Advances to officers and employeas 137,552 2573
(her receivables 179,820 70,259
R38,117,548 F34,308,799

l wmanﬂlj&t:lad Inlmpalm}ant tﬁhﬁgulm expecied credil loss model by considenng
possible defaults for the next 12 months (12-month ECL) and expected credit losses for the antire remaining life

of the receivables (fetime ECL).

The mosements of the allowance for expected credil lbssas ane as follows:

Dogivaber 31, 2024 A
Opening balances, as oniginally sialed R23,66T,963 P24, 009 659
Add additional allowancn [See rstatement paragranh bakw) - 238 000
Opening balances, as restatsd 23,687,063 24 267 650
Provision for impairment lossas E00,711 -
Wite-off for the year (4,224 B60) (1,979,161)
Reclassification (1,500,000} 1,389 465
Closing balances, as restaled P18,563,814 23,687,963

The reclassification of allvwance from loans to other receivables is the overstated allowance provided in ECL

laans in 2024 and 2023,

Restatormant of 2022 and Priov Years” Allowance lor Impadimend Logses

In 2023, the Bank restated the 2022 and pnor years' allowance for ECL of other recenvables o recond additional
provision amounting io F238.000, As a resull, the beginning balances of sunplus and undivided profits and the
deferred tax assets for the year 2022 were adjusted by B178,500 and 59,500 (R238,000 x 25%), respectively.

The Bank recorded Ihe adwstment o the beginning defici in 2022,
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Note 7
Investments in Debl Securities - At Amortized Cost

This account consists of the following:

Dacember 3, 2024 2023
Retail reasury bonds, at discounts on their faca value RIT1,493,253  R157.410681
IRetail reasury bonds, al face value - 23,000, 000

R371,403,253 180,410,691

Imvestment income eamad amounted 1o B19,579, 142 in 2024 and #15,582,529 in 2023. Management has
datermined that these nvestments have not been impaired during the year,

Relai Treasury Bomds, at Discounis on thelr Face Value

The treasury bonds represent 91 days to S-year retad treasury bonds which are issued at discount and pramium
on its face value with inferest rates ranging from 5.015% 1o 6.445% per annum payable quarterly, The bond will
mature on vanous dates,

Analysis of the Relal Treasury Bonds

Dacember 31, 024 2023
Face value R36B9TE 108  Ri157.037.374
Net discount 2,517,145 13317
Camying Amount B371,483,253 F157, 410,691

A=LE LM 0Nd3, 8l FHCE ValUg
The retail treasury bonds purchased through Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP), totaking #23 000,000, have
coupon rales ranging from 3.500°% 1o 6.125% and already maturad in 2024 and no longer ranewad,

This account consists of the foliowing:

Dby 37, 2024 2023
LLand FG,479,850 F5, 479890
Building 12,425,582 12,299,500
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 114,017,597 103,011,967
Transportation equipment 44,348 488 39,445 406
Leazehald improvements 16,392,979 15445573
Tolal 193,664,536 176,682 336
Accumulated depreciation (118,291,430 (108,647,200)
Met Book Value R75,373,106 58,035,136

The Bank disposed cerain property and recognized gain on sale theraof amounting to 201,180 in 2024 and
270,690 i 2023, treabed as part of other income. [See Note 15.)

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the land and building have estimated market values of B15 million.
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Dacember 31, 2024

-18.

Cost
Land PE,479,890 F- B 6,479,800
Building 12,299,500 126,082 - 12,425,562
Fumétura, Titures and equipment 103,011,967 14,309,505 {3,303 875} 114,017,597
Transportation equipment 38,445,406 6,827 062 (1,824,000 44,348 488
Leasehold improvements 15,445 573 84T 406 - 16,392,979
Total 176,682,336 2220075 (5,227 BTS) 193,664,536
Building B,951,057 {469,898) (BETT) {9,429,632)
Fuméture, fixtures and equipment B4 520 984 (6,426,775) 3,300,041 (87,656,718
Transportation equipment 9,824,712 {5,031,861) 759,843 (14,096,730)
Leasehold improvements 5,341 447 {1,775,580) 8,677 (7,108,350
Total 108,647,200 (13,704,114) 4,059,984 (118,291,430
Net Book Value RE5E,035,136 #8.505.061 (B1,167 991) R75,373,106
Depermber 31 2071
Cost
Land PE,479,890 B - F6.470,800
Building 17,062,518 405 016 5,258,934 12,204 500
Fumiture, futures and equipmant a7 520,365 5,571,532 79,930 103,011,067
Transporation equipment 20,742,619 21,191,588 2,488,801 39,445 406
Leasehold improvements 10,883,135 3342141 (1,220,297} 15445573
Total 152,688,527 20801177 6,607,368 176,662,336
! ated D al
Building 12,387 335 535,623 3,992,103 8,951,057
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 77,096,429 7471.880 38,335 4,520,984
Trensporiation equipment TATT AT7 4.033,039 1,685,804 9,624,712
Leasehold improvements 4,070,374 1,317,608 46,535 5,341,447
Total 101,031,615 13,378,362 5762777 108,647,200
Nif Book Valug ®51,656,912 R17 222 615 Fa44 591 #6:8.035,136
Note 8
Right-of-Use Asset
This account consists of the following:
Dpoevmbar IT, 2024 223
Right-of-use assats R100,704,220 #103.306.586
Accumulated deprecaation {31,120,307) {26,860, 347)
Net Book Value R69,583.913 R76,426.239

The Bank has leases for buildings and spaces occupied by s branches digpersed in siralegic lacations within
Mindanao and Visayas. With the exceplion of short-term leasas and leases of low value #ssats, the leases are
reflected on the statement of financial position collectvely as right-of-use assets and lease Eabilites. Varable

lease payments which do not depand on an index of a rate are excluded from tha initial measuremant of the

lease liabdties and assats,
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The Bank discounted the Riture lease payments at 5.78% per annum, the ncremental borrowing rate (IBR)
based on the exisling average bomowing rate valuation in the Philippene. The obeervable rate was no longer
adjusted for credit risk and other factors as managemeant determined that any adusiments are immateral. The
Bank apphed a single discount rate to the portfolio of leasas as it considers the leases similar in class of
underlying assets in a siméar economic environment.

During 2023, the Bank remeasured ils right-of-use assets at 103,306,586, and recognized lease ligbiity of
F83,192,992, interest expense of 4,036,953 and depreciation expense of F12, 700,276, Total lease payments
{inchuding mterest) amountad B15 413,514 in 2024 and B15,416,641 in 2023. During 2024, the Bank na-
measurad its ight-ol-use assels al F100.704,220 and ils lease kabilibes al BT8,536.577.

[ Ligbilt
Leasa liablites ane prasanted in the statemant of inancal positon as folkows:

Docavibar I1, 2024 223
Cument #13,050,959 F13,955.872
Mon-cument 65,465,618 69,237 120

R78.536,577 Fa3,192.992

Interast incurrad on kease labities amounted R4 954 196 m 2024 and B4.036 953 in 2023,

Each leasa imposes a restriction that, unless there is & written approval of the lessor o sublel the asset o anofher
party, the rght-al-use assal can only be usad by the Bank. The lease contains an oplion 1o exiand the lease for a
further term under such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by the parbies. The Bank is
prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as secunty.

For leases over office spaces premises, the Bank must keep the properties in good state of repair and retum
ihe properties in their original condition at the end of the lease, Further, the Bank mus! inswne ilems of property
and equipment and incur maintenance fees on such fems in accordance with the lease contracts.

R dation of Canying A :
Dacember A1, MM Halsncas Aungitions -' Balamoes
Right-of-use assel R 103,306,566 k- (F2 602 368)  R00,704,220
Lass accumulated depraciation {26,880.347) (12,645,224} 8405 269 (31,120,307)
Nel Book Value FT8.426,230 EH!E.E-!-ELE_EEII 5,802,903 lﬂlﬁ"ﬂiﬂ
December 31, 2023

Right-of-use aszets RI01.924, 757 1381 829 B 103,306, 585
Less accumulated depraciation (24,701,753) (13,622 660) 11,444,066 (26,880,347)
Het Book Value BIT 223,004 (12 240 831} B11,444 066 F76.426 235
Mote 10

Details of Investment Properties

Dacamber 31, 2024 2023
Cost

Opening balances P120.531,726  P126,021. 580
Additions 26,001,729 29,508 497
Disposals/reclassification (24,532,003) {25,808, 360)
Closing balances 131,081, 452 129,531,726
JCarmed Fonvead |




{Browght Fonvard |

Darember 31, 2024 2021
! jted D a

Opening balances (14,394,296) {14,225,994)
Additions (4.898,349) (4,590 464)
Disposals/adjustments 817,048 4422 162
Closing balancas (18,475,597) {14,384 298)
Alowance for [mpaimment Losses

Opening balances. as angnally stated (2,123,677) (1,981,677)
Add additional allowance [See motatement pavagraph bekow) - {142 000)
Opening balances, as restated (2.123,677) (2,123 677)
Provision for impairment lossas - -
Closing balances (2,123,677) (2123677
Nel Book Value 110,492,178 F113.013,753

This account regresents land and buldings which were acguired in settiement of loans and ane held for capital
appreciabion. The land consists of saveral peces of lots localed within Mindanao and in Visayas recorded m the
books at the: total loan oulsianding at the tme of acquisition. These properties have esfimated market values of
F240.90 million al the end of 2024 and F291.6 million al the end of 2023,

Income from assets acquired recognized in the statements of profits or loss amounted fo P0,285,068 in 2024
and 8,733,585 in 2023. Total depreciation charged to operations amounted 1o B4,858 349 and B4, 590 464 for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and Decamber 31, 2023, respectively. The Bank management believes
the investment properties were not further impaired as of December 31, 2024.

nt af 2022 and Prior Years” Allowance for L
During the year in 2023, the Bank restated the 2022 and prior years' allowance for ECL on investment
propertes to record additional provision amounting 1o F142,000, As a resull, the beginning balances of surplus
and undivided profits and the defemed tax assets for the year 2022 were adjusted by B106,500.

Note 11

Other Assels

The composition of this acoount is shown below:

Dacember 31, 2024 2083
Investment in debt securities - Restricted P123,502,%90 F-
Deferred tax assels (Nole 18) £0,917,569 77.960.235
Prepaid axpenses 17,969,191 18,699,901
Sacurity and rental deposits 6,155,300 6,518,768
Goodwill {Notes 1 and 2} 2,349,039 2,949,039
Stationery and office supplies 2,451,522 1211313
CHher aszels 2,537,520 4,188 130

R236,573,131 #111,588, 386

As of December 31, 2024, the Company holds imvestments in debl securities representing restrictad long-tarm
governmeni treasury bonds. These investments are subject fo vanous restricions and are not available for general
banking purpases. The restriciions apply to the fllowing purposes: (1) depasits for future subscription, (2)
retiramant fund reserves, (3) sinking funds related io prefered shares, and (4) redemption of prefemed shares.
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The treasury bonds held have matuities ranging from 324 days o 10 years and were acquened at both dscounts
and premiums relative o their face value. These msinements bear intenest rates ranging from 0.13% to 6.20% per
annum, with intarest payable on perodic terms as specified in the bond agreements. Tha bands are classified as
restricted long-term nvestments under non-current assets due to the nature of their restrictions. Matunty dates
vary and align with the specific obligations for which the funds are designated. As of December 31, 20124, the total
carrying amount of these restricted ewvestiments ts B 2T 276,981, measured at B123 758 970,

The deferred tax assels have been subjected to impairment kesting and the accordingly reduced by the
cormesponding tax benefits of the accounts wiillen-off duning the year. (Sea Kote 18.) Prepaid expenses
represent expensas such as: PDIC nsurance, prepaid rentals, employees' uniforms, and other expenses. paid
in advance but are fo be consumed within one year. Subsaquently, these are charged o profit or loss as they
are consumed in operafions or exping with the passage of lime.

Note 12

Deposit Liabilities

This account is composed of the following:

Dacember 31, 2024 2083
Savings and demand deposits F1,130,761,549  F1,081,897 801
Time deposits 1,833,631,731 1,641.473.057

R2.064,303,280 2.723,370,858

The deposit lisbiities eam annual fixed interest of 0.10% for savings accounts, and from: 1.00% to 7.00% for
time depogils.

Total interest incumed amounted ¥111,841 259 in 2024 and PO2,025,202 in 2023,

Marturity Profihe of Timme Deposils

Decewmbar 31, 2024 2023

Six months 1o one year P1,046,033275  B1,322.183.016

Mare than one year 786,698,456 319,290,041
F.833.631.731  F1.841.473.057

Note 13

Other Liabilitias

These liabilities consist of the Bollowing:

Dacermber 31, 2024 2023

Redeamabla preference sharas Note 14) R114,799,100 #114.799,100

Deposit for future subscription 73,548,800 37,348,800

Accounts payable (See table below.) 39,382,813 23 502 255

Retirament benefit obligation (Noke 16) 25,294,331 22,370,841

Accrued expanses 18,267,940 22,580,727

Accrued interest payable (More 12) 15,848,372 14,016,951

Income tax pavable (hote 16 491,798 -

Other pavables 1,326,967

P288.980.121  P234 618674




Ereahgown of Ageounts Payable

Decernber 31, 2024 23

Payable 1o Bancnat P23,905,813 #12,053.357

Payable to clients 7,134,342 5831415

Deposits from borrewers for payment for morgages 1,862 407 493 T4

Documentary stamps 1414016 1,298,356

Payable to separated employees 1,363,672 737 824

Accounts payabile - supplers 715,153 296 546

Payable to appraisers 650,720 107 673

Payable to collecting agency 540,053 353,240

Payable to inswrance 362,738 213275

Payable 10 employees 288,245 17434

555 pension and remitiances 206,610 206,609

Iterms in Itigation 114,901 114501

Payable 1o Merchant Partners E1,6B6 22 581

Payable 1o ROPA account - 372,949

Others 742 457 1,282,354

R30,382.813 F23.502 255

Accounts and other payables are non=inlerest bearing are on a 30 to B0-day term.

Note 14

Share Capital

Detais of Sharg Capital

Dacarmbar 31, 2024 2023

Preference Shares A - F100 par value

Govemment = non-voling and converiible, cumulative

Authorized = 251,353 shares

Issued and outstanding — shares R B

Preference Shares B - B100 par value (Mote 13)

Privaie = redeamable non-voling and convertible

Authorized - 1,150,000 shares

Issued and outstanding - 1,147,991 in 2024 and 2023 - =

COrdinary (Common) Shares - F100 par value

Authorized - 4,000,000 shares

Issued and cutstanding — 4,000.000 in 2024 and 2023 _ 400,000,000 400,000,000
R400,000,000  F400,000,000

Nature of the Preference Shares

{8} Preference Shares A" are issued only against government investment in the capital stock of the Bank. The
ghares are non-voting, convertibée [o common shares and shall share in the dividend distributed from the
date of issuanca of the rate provided under Section 8 R.A. No. 7353 which dividend shall be cumulative,
The shares have preference over commaon shares in the assats of the Bank in the event of liquidation, Per
Mermorandum of Agreement executed in 1992 between the Bank and government stockholder, the Bank
has fixed obiigation 1o redesm the shares on or bafore tha 15° year from the date of conversion tha

prefarred sharas of stock still hedd by the governmant stockholder,
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{b) Preference Shares “B" shall be issued only, after the creation of sinking fund for s redemplion to qualified
private persons, natural or junidical, and shall have preference over common stocks in the assets of the
Bank in the event of liquidation and which sinking fund shall be affected by the ransfer of free surplus lo
restricted surplus account and shall not be available for dividends, The shares are redeemable anytime at
the oplion of the Bank after five years from dale of issuance, non-voling and convertible and shall have
preference as to dividends only as may be set by the Bank’s BOD, but which should not however be in the
absence of sufficient undivided profits, free surplus and approval of the BSP,

Prasentalion of Redeemabie Preference Shans as Financial L iahiliies

The Bank's preference shares ara prasenty held by the Government and private sharsholders, amounting 1o
#114,799,100 in 2024 and 2023, and are presented as part of 'Other Lisbilites™, (See Nole 13.)

The preference shares generally have the following features; (1) the holders of prefemed shares have no woling
rghts but are granted prefemed claim states afer creditors’ claims and other statutory prafenence claims on the
liguidating assats of the Bank over tha common shareholders, and (2) the holders of preferred shares are
granted prefered dvidend rights over common shareholders with & fed dividend rate of nine percent (9%) net
of tax payable yearly on a monthly basis, cumulative,

In mmm Circudar Hu 1151 Series of 2022, and the Minimum Reguired Capital under the Manual of
Requiations for Banks (MORB), the Bank's minimum capital raquiremant i pagged at F200 million, grven its
location in a first-class city and its natwork of twenty-eight (28) branches and twa (2) branch-lite units. As of
2024, the Bank has complied with this capéializabon requiremeant,

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory requirements and
rakios is based on the amound of the Bank’s unimpaired capilal (regulatory ned worth) reporied to the BSP,
detemmined on the basis of requlatory acoowniing policies. which difier from PFRSs in some aspect.

The Bank's unimpaired capital incledes its (i) paid-up ordinary (common shares), (i) surplus and undivided
profils, minus any (il unbooked waluation resenves and other capital adjustments as may be requined by the
BSP; (iv) total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations 1o directors, officers, shareholders and related
interests (DOSRI); (v) deferrad tax assal or liability; and (vi) other regulatory deductions,

The BSP determinegs the minimum level of capital 1o be held by the Bank against its market risks, in addition o
ils credil isk. Secton 127 of the MORE defines risk-based capital adequacy ratio as a percentage of quakfying
capital to risk-weighled assets which shall not be less ten percent (10.00%) for solo basis banks (head office
and branches), Risk assels consist of total assets afler exclusion of cash on hand, dee from BSP, loans
covared by hold-out or assignment of deposits, loans o acceptance under laters of credit to the extent covenad
by margin deposits. and other non-risk ilems a5 determined by the Monetary Board,

Capital Management Obigctives, Policies and Procedures

BSP, as the Bank's lead regulalor, sels and monilors capilal requirements for the Bank In implamanting curment
capital requirements, the B3P requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed rafio of qualfing capital bo risk-
weighied assels, The Bank's policy is o maintain a strong capital base fo maintain stockholders, creditors and
markat confidence and o sustain the fulure development of the business. The impact of the kevel of capital on
shareholders retum is also recognized and the Bank recognizes the need to mainiain a balance between the
higher ratums that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and sacurity afforded by a sound
capilal posifion.

Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be less fhan an
amount equal to ten percent of its risk assets. Risk assets consist of otal assets after exclusion of cash on
Mand, due from BSP, loans covenad by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans or accaptances undar
latters of credil to the extent covered by margin deposits, and other non-risk tems as delermmed by the
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Monetary Board of the BSP. The amount of sunplus funds available for dividend declaration is determined also
on the basis of regulatory net worth after considening certain adjustments.

The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of determining the capital-io-nsk assets ratio to tolal equity
excluding: (a) unboaked valuation reserves and other capital adjsiments as may be required by the BSP; (b)
iotal cukstanding unsecured credit acoommodations to DOSRI; (o) defermed tax asset or liability; (d) sinking fund
for redemption of redeemable preferred shares; and () other regulatory deductions.

Significant Financial Raling
In compliance with the requirements of Saction 174 of the MORB, the financial ratios of the Bank for the yaars
2024 and 2023 are presented as additional disclosures in the notes to the audied financial statements, as follows:

{Please soe table next page.)

December 31, 2024 2023
Raturn on Average Equity 23.TT% 10.97%
Return on Average Assats 2.04% 0.86%
Net Interest Marngin 9.6T% 10.52%
Capital-lo-Risk Assets Ratio 13.99% 12.20%
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy 10.93% 10.19%
Tier 1 Capital P248,657.201 P135,652,049
Tier 2 Capial #134,.860,293 ®133.887.173
Total Qualifying Capital R383.517,584 319,539,222
Total Risk-Weighted Assets F3,507,856,340  P3,135.402.79%
Tier 1 Ratio 7.00% 395%
Leverage Ratio 7.06% ST5%
Minimum Liquidity Ratia 21.01% 25.80%

Gogring Rl
Gaaring (otherwise known a5 “leverage”) measures the proportion of assets invested in a business that are
financed by long-term borrowing. In theory, the higher the level of borrowing (gearing) the highar are the risks o
a business since the payment of interest and repayment of debls are nol "oplional” in the same way as
dividends to shareholders, However, gearing can be a financially sound part of a business's capital sirecture
particularly if the business has strong, predictable cash fows.

The Bank will strive to reduce is gearing ratio by reducing working capital through increasing the speed of loans
receivable collections andior lengihening the days requined to pay accounts payable, thereby producing cash
that can be used o pay down borrowings. It will also try to increase profits through a combination of increase in
markat share and control of varable costs 5o that the Bank can generata more cash with which to pay down
borrowings.

The Bank's Gearing Ralios computed at the end of each year are as follows:

Docambar 31, 2024 2023
Borrowings (total liab#ities) 3331909978  P3041,182524
Less cash and cash equivalents 698,907 621 TR4 617288
Net Detit 2632,002,357  2.256.565.235
Total equity 334,722 756 263,614,264
Equity and Net Dabt P2,066,725113 F2.520,177.519
Gearing Ratio (Net DebtEquity and Net Debt) 89% 0%
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Debi o Equity Rabo
Capital for the reporting periods under review is summarized as follows:

Deevber 31 2024 2023
Total Liabilities R3.331.500.978 3041182524
Total Equity 334 722 756 263,612,284
Overall financing H1.666,632,734 B3.204,794.808
Debt-to-Equity Rafio 885:1 11.54 1

.ﬁsat[}ﬁmrﬂmh mimﬂﬂankhasamtﬁnfﬁd shamh{:ki&rsmhm shareholders owning 100 or mone

shanes each of the Bank's share capial,

2024 23
Application fees R76,187 942 F66,980 435
Income from assels acquined Mok 10) 9,285,068 8,733,585
Overmight charges 6,786,047 7043115
Incorme from ATM opesation 6,384,049 6,420,524
Recovery on charged-off assels 2,406,401 6,382,780
Bank charges 2,122,267 2283408
Inter-branch transaction fees 1,720,737 1,526,868
Check book fee 850,799 1,021,838
Income on POS B40, 528 12.540
(Gain on sale from bank premises fictures, fumitue'egupment ol 6 201,190 270,650
Income from remittance and other senices 3,200 977,785
Miscefaneous 6,138,159 4,588 325
F112,954 387 #107.541.913
HNota 16
Details of Compensation
Years Emvad Decambar 31, 2024 2043
Short-4erm employees’ benefits R105,661,221 R101,731.436
Post-employment benefits 3,425,664 3,164 453
109,107,085 104,895,929
Posl-Empioyment Banefis

In 2018, the Bank maintained a lax-qualified, noncontribidory retirament plan that was being administerad by a
trustee (Insurance Company) covering all regular full-iime employees. However, beginning in 2019, the Bank
decided not ko continue the retinement plan from the Insurance Company and just to maintain and invest the

allocated funds for retirement benefit with the treasury bonds with Land Bank of the Philippines.

The Bank has an unfunded, non-contributary defined benefit reirement plan which provides a retirement
benefd, an amount egual 1o 75% on one (1) month final salary for every year of service mulliplied by the number
of years of senices. Benefits are dependent on the years of senice and the respective amployes’s
compensation. If the employee voluntarily resigns from the Bank, he shall ba entilled to receive all or portion of

his accrued retirement benefits in-accordance with the terms of the plan.
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The amount of refirement benefit obligation as of Decamber 31, 2024 and 2023 presented under Ciher
Liabilittes in Mole 14, recognized in the statement of fnancial position is determéned as shown below.

Dacevnbar 31 2024 223
Opening balances, onginally stated R22.370,641 R16, 106,781
Add additional provision (See reststement pavagraph below) - 3,202, 344
Opening balances, as restated 22,370,841 19,209,105
Opening balances, as restated 22,370,841 19,309,105
Additional provision for the year 3,425,664 3,164,493
Actual retirernent paymends for the year (302,374) -
Actuarial gain - (102,757)
Retirement benefit obligation (Mo 13) R25294, 331 F22.370.841
Principal Actuanial Assumptions Used

The foliowing principal actuanal assemptions used in datermining plan obligations as of December 31, 2024 i
basad and 2023 are based on the aciuarial valuation report oblained from an independent actuary as of December
31, 2023 and 2020, Thene were no plan amendments or curtailment, recognized as of December 31, 2024,

The amounts of retirement benefils expansa recognized per actuanal valuation report are as follows:

¥aars Ended December 1. 2024 2023
Currant service cost B1,B62, 142 #1807 905
Interest cost on benefil obligation 1,563,722 1,356,588

R3.425,864 F3,164,493

Currenl service costs and infenes! costs on defined benefl oblgations are charged 1o retirement benefit obligations
established fior the purpose of covering any shortfalls in the required defined benefits payabde. (See Mote 13.)

f Rafi { Banafi izad i
Dacamber 31 2024 2023
Opening balances PE,146,610 P, 069,542
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation - 102,757
Defarred incoms fax (Mo 18] - [25,685)
Closing balances FE, 146,610 BG, 146,610
Movaments in Presen! Vaiue of the Retimment Banefit Obligation from Actuanal Valuation Rapart
Decevnbar 31, 2024 2023
Opening balances R22.370,841 F19,309.105
Actuarial (gain) loss - (102,757)
Cumeni senvice cost 1,662,142 1,807 505
Imterast cost 1,563,722 1,356,588
Benafits paid by the plan (502,374 =
Closing balances R25,204 331 F22, 370,841
For the defermination of the retirement benefit obligation, the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Docember 31 2024 2023
Discount rate B.99% 6.95%
Salary increasa rale 3.00% 3.000%
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Assumptions regarding future mongity ane based on the 197 3-1078 Phiippine Intercompany Mortality Table Basic,
with the Accidental Death Rabe at 10% of Mortality Rate.

The sensifivity analysis in the following page has been determined based on reasonable possible changes of
each significant assumption on the defined benefit obfigation as of December 31, 2023, assuming all other
assumptions were held constant.

Paramster Change in Assumplon Revsed PVBO i {Dec) nPVEOD
Discount Rale 1% P21.456,079 (P814.762)
1% 23,361,252 990,411
Salary Increase Rate % 23,166,032 795,191
A% 71,623,048 (747,793)
Martality Rate 120% of PIC (Basic) 22425713 54 872
BO0% of PIC (Basic) 22,315,497 {55,344)

The average duration of the defined banafit obligation at the end of the reporting date ks 6.17 years. Shown
below is the expected twenty-year banafit cash fow:

Amount Amount
2024 ®5,863,289 2027 B4, 163,025
2025 4,352 363 2028 5115911
2028 4,263,409 2029 and onwarnds 25,030,339

Restatement of 2022 Ratirement Banefit Obligation

During 2023, the Bank restated the 2022 on retirement banafit obligation to record additional provision
amounting lo #3,202,344 as the deficit of the acluarially-computed retirement benafit obligabon al the end of
2022, As a result, the begnning balances of surplus and undivided profits and the deferred tax assels for the
year 2023 were adjusied by B3 202 344 and 300 536 (B3 202 344 » 25%), respectively. The Bank recorded
the adjustment 1o the current operalion in 2022

2024 2023
Insurance R10,554,677 F3,861,159
Communications 6.ET9.407 6,377,000
Power, light and water 6,413,767 7,253,381
Information and technology expenses 5,611,110 3,206,645
Fuel, oil and lubricanis 5432511 3,658,152
Imterest on kease Habdities Mot 5 4,954,196 4,036,953
Reprasentation and enfertainment 4,920,252 5,689,102
Rent (Note & 3,977,742 2,874 090
Siationery and suppbes used 3,875,996 4,954, 193
Repairs and mantenance 3,863,023 5,039,830
Litigation of assel acquired 3,191,435 1,418,995
Commission 2,805,127 2,841,455
Management and ofher professional fees 1,537,539 1,353,267
Banking fees 1,184,332 640,633
Fines, penalfies and charges 126,564 10,250,802
Colection fee charges - 6,235,448
Miscallaneous 3,895.497 4,839,212

PE9.242.175 B79.530.331




Note 18
Com on of Incorme Tax nse
Companents of Income Tax Expense

The income tax expenses for the years 2024 and 2023 were based on e MCIT rate which proved to be higher
ihan thi reqular rate as shown in tha following tablas:

Delais of ncome Tax Expense

Years Envad Decambar 31, 2024 2023

Cumen!

Corporate Lax at MCIT R3,161,604 B2 302 325

Final tax at 20% 9,377,256 3,708,305
Total 12,538,860 6,011,630

Defarred

Unused 25% deferred lax assat on witten-olf accounts (Nete 2) 1,181,609 33,308,589

Defarred 25% tax on provision for impairment on loan lossas (Noiv 5 (2,640,700 -

Deferred 25% tax on prov. for impairment on other receivables (Note 5 [150,178) -

Daferred 25% Lax on provision for retiremant benefils (Mo 15) (856, 466) (791,123)

Deferred axcess of MCIT against RCIT (3,161,604 (2,302,325
Total (5,627,139 30,215,141

PEIILTZ 36,226,771

Vs Ended Dacambar 31, ‘ ) . 2024 2023

Profit before income fax expensa B7T8,022,193 F62.799,444
Add {deduct) reconcling ilems from permanent differences:
Interast income on bank deposits already subject to final tax (46,886.280) {18,362.292)
Mon-allowable interest axpensa 9,377,256 3672 458
Add (dedudt) reconciing items from temporary differences:
Interast on lease liabilities 4,954,196 4,036,953
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 12,645,229 13,622,660
Rant axpense (15,413,514) {15,416,839)
Provision for impairment loan losses (Nof 6 11,163,512 -
Write-0ff of loans receivabile jNote & {4 (131,255198)
Wirite-off of other receivables (Nore & (4,224,860} {1,879, 161)
Actual refirement payment (Mode 18] (502,374) -
Prowigion for retirement benefits (Nole 16) 3,425 864 3,164 493
Taxable income 52,561,218 (79,717 480)
Net Profit Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) in 2023 (79,717 480} ok
Met Prodil Operaling Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (27,156,262) {79,717 480)
Multiply by tax rale 25% 25%
Tax Due at RCIT R B

In pursuance of the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives Enterprises Act ([CREATE) and REMC No. 63-
2023, the rake of minimum corporate income L (MCIT) for domestic and resident fonelgn corporations,
including offshore banking units and regional operating headquarters, shall now rever 1o bwo percant (2%)
based on the gross income of such comporations, effective July 1, 2023, Thus, the Bank used the MCIT average
rate at 1.50% to compule for the MCIT for 2023,
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MCIT Rate of 2,00% in 2024 and 1.50% in 2023
Yeaws Ended Decambar 31, 2024 23
n
Interest on kans receivable R343,030,667 330,481,043
Mon-deductible inlarast axponse 9,377,256 3672458
Other income 112,954,387 107541913
Total Gross Revenue 468,262,310 441.695.414
Cast of Senices
Interest expense 111,841,259 92925474
Salaries 64,185,125 61.658.432
Dapreciation axpense 11,161,478 10,781,296
Other expenses 120,994,237 122,841,916
Total Cost of Services 308,182,089 Z88.207.118
Gross Profit 158,080,211 153,488,296
Tax rale 2.00% 1.50%
Tax Due at MCIT P31, 161,604 2,302,355
Computation of Net income Tax Payable
Docaviter 21, 2024 A
Regular Corporate income Tax of MCIT whichever is higher B3,161,604 F2.302.325
Less : Tax Credis
Excess paymenl in par year 2,365,090 3,586,348
BIR Form No. 1506 - 1.081,086
BIR Form Mo, 2307 304,715
Excess payable R491,789 F2,365,049

The MCIT amounted F3,161,604 in 2024 and F2, 302 325 in 2023, can be claimed as e creds against regular

laos due until 2027 and 2026, respactively.

2024 A3
Opening balances, originally stated RTT.960,235  F105.627.975
Add restatements:

25% deferred assel on prov. for impairment [0sses (Note 6 - 4 074 829
__25% deferred assel on provision for retirement (Note 763 800,586
Opening balances, as restated 77,960,235 110,503,390
iOrigination of temporary differences anising from:

Manimuem Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) 3,161,604 2300 325

Provision for impairment loan losses (Note & 2,640,700 -

Provision for impairment losses on other recaivable (ot 6 150,178 -

Prowigion for retirement benefits (Moles 15 B56 466 ™1.123

Actual retirement payment Mede 18) (125,593) -

Writtan-off loans raceivables (Note £ (1) (32,813,799)

Written-off of accounts recaivable (Noe 8) (1,056,215) 1494, 790)

Application of excess paymend in 2022 (2, 365,0:94) (2,302 325)

Re-reasurement of actuanal gasn (Nede 15) - (25,689

Application of prepaid withholding lax (304,715) =
Closing balances RB0,917,569 FT7.960.235
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As of December 31, 2024, the Bank did not recognize defemed 1ax assets on the temporary difference of the
2023 NOLCO, amounting to ®27,156.262 (net of B52, 561,218 taxable income in 2024); instead, the Bank
infends to claim it a5 deduction against the taxable reguiar income for the nexd three (3} consacutive taxable

years unil 2026, pursuant to BIR RR 14-2021.

Management has determined that the remaining deferrad tax assets have not been impaired at the end of the
year and thal its anticipated future prafits can benefit from the deferred tax assels.

Current Tax Expanse = Fingl

This represents the fnal withholding of taxes on inferest income on bank deposits and invesiments.

2024 223
Business Taxes
Gross Receipt Tax R26,203,729 23,620,407
Business and realty tax, wehicles registration & others 18,836,854 19,069,366
Sub-Tokal 45,040,583 42,689,773
Cither Taxes Paid
Compensation and Expanded withnolding taxes 5,293,910 4 697301
Documentary slamp taxes 17,045,552 16,483,304
Fingl taxes 11,524,295 9519715
Sub-Tokal 33.BE3, 757 30,700,410
Total RTE 204,340 F73,290.183
Note 19
Earnings Per Share
Yeavs Enved Decambar 31, 2024 2013
Bagic
Profit for the year B71,110,472 F26,572673
Weighled avarage number of ordinary {common) sharas 4,000,000 3,983,172
Baszic Earnings per Share R17.78 RE.G7
Dhiluted
Prafit for the year F71,110,472 P26,572 673
Weighled average number of ordinary and polential ordinary shares 4,000,000 3,983,172
Diluted Eamings per Share R17.78 FE.G7

Note 20
Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of frade or business, the Bank has transactions with refated paries. Parties are
considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making nancial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject io common control or common significant influence, None of the
transactions with related parties incorporate special ferms and conditions and no guarandee is given of
received, Outstanding balances are usually setfled in cash, The significant redated party transactions are

summarnized as follows:

(a) Inthe ordinary course of busingss, the Bank has loan fransactions with DOSRIL. Under the Bank's policy,
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these loans and other fransaclions are to be made substantially on the same lerms and conditions as
with other indviduals and businesses of comparable risks. Under the General Banking Acl and BSP
requlations, the amount of direc! credil accommodations {o each of the Bank's directors, officars and
stockholders, of which 70% must be secured should not exceed the amount of theair respective deposits
and book value of ther respeciive imvestments in the Bank. In addifion, the aggregate DOSRI koans
ganerally should not exceed the Bank's capital funds or 15% of the Bank's loan portfolio, whichever is
lower, As of December 31, 2024, the Bank is in compliance with these reguiations.

The followsng ane the information refated 1o DOSRI and Cther Refated Parties:

Dacernber 31 2024 23
Total Qutstanding DOSRI loans R22,302,734 P24 575813
Parcent of DOSR loans 1o fotal loans 0.89% 1.127%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of past-due DOSRI loans lo todal DOSRI loans 0.00% 0.00%
Perceni of non=periorming DIOSRI loans to fotal DOSRI lnans 0.00% 0.00%
Total Outstanding loans 1o refated parties other than DOSRI 0.00% 0.0
Percent of other related party (ORP) loans o total loans 0.00%: 0.00%
Perceni of unsecured ORP loans fo kolal ORP koans 0.00% 0.0
Percent of past-due ORP loans Io total ORP loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of non-performing ORP loans to lotal ORP loans 0.00% 0.00%

(b) The Bank atso exiends advances subject 1o iquidation Io its officers and employess. Tolal advances io
ofiicers and employees amounted to B137 552 in 2024 and B30 573 in 2023, (Sea Note 6.)

ic) The key management compensalion consists of the following:

Years Ended Decamber 21, 2024 2023
Short-term employees’ benefits #10,329,402 #9,507,003
Post-employment banefits E51.416 457 {34
10,590,818 B9 G54 41
Note 21
Eair Value Measurement

Financral Instrumeants Measured al Amarized Cosd for which Fair Value is Disciosad

The table in the following page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Bank's fingncial assels and financial
Eabilities which are not measured at fair value in the 2024 and 2023 staternent of financial position but for which
fair value & disclosed.

Dptember 31, 2024 Level Loved 2 Lizvel Tiafal
Fi
Cash and cash equivalents MNoke 5§ R699 907 621 B - W599,907621
Loans and other receivables (Nata 6] 2103205 532 2.103,209,532
Imvestmants in debt securties ot 7) 371,483,253 371,493,253
PE99.007.621 B-  F2474.702.785 P3.174,610,406
Financial ifa
Deposil kabilities hote 12) P2 964 393,280 o B—  P2964 393,280
Other libiities jNote 13) 288,980,121 288,980,121
Lease liatadiies (Nore 5 78,536,577 78,536,577
#3,.331,909.978 B- B- PR3 331,900,978
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Dacember 312023 Level 1 Lavel 2 Lewval 3 Tatal
Financial assels
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5 PT84 617 289 R F—  BT7B4 617,289
Loans and other receivables (Nofe §) 1970703314  1.970,703,314
Investiments in debl secunfies Mo 7 180,410,681 180,410,691
FTa4 617 289 B F2A51,114005 W2 935,731,294
Deposit kabilities (Note 12 F2.723.370.858 B- F- PZ723,370,858
(ther Habdties Note 13) 23618674 234 618 674
Lease liabdities (vote 5) 83.192 602 83,192,992
3,041,182 524 B- F—  ®3041,182524

For financial assets and fnancial liabilities with fair values included in Level 1, managemeant considars that the
camying amaounts of thoss short-teemn financial instruments equal Their fair values., The fair values of the financial
assels and financial liabilities included in Level 3 above which are not traded in an active market is determined by
using generally acceplable pricing models and valsation lechniques or by referance 1o the current market value of
another ingtrument which & substanally the same after considering the related credit rsk of countesparties or is
calcutated based on the expecied cash flows of the wndedying net asset base of te instrument. When the Bank
u=es valuation lechmique, & maxdmizes the use of observable market data whene i is avadable and rely as lilthe as
possible on entity specific estmates, If all significant inputs required lo determme the fair value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is includad in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

Eair - {
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets measured at far value on a
racuiming basis as of December 31, 2024 and A23.

December 312024 Lvel 1 Lovel Leval 3 Total
Bank prems, e ROUA Nt & - B B75.373.106 R75,373,106
Imvestment properties (Note 10y - - 110,462,178 110,492,178
Other 855815 [Note 11) ZIBSTIAN - - 236,573,131
P236.573,131 F-  P1B5.885.284  M422 438 415
Decernber J1, 2023
Bark prerns, alc ROUA Nobe & [ B P68, 035,136 PE8,035,136
Irvestment properties (Nofe 100 - - 113,013,753 113,013,753
Oher assels fNode 11) 111,588,386 - - 111,588,386
Fi11,508, 386 F- F181,048 B89 B202 637,275

The Level 3 fair value of the land and buildings and improvements induded under the bank premises, fumnitura,
fohures and equipmant acoount was detarmined using the cost approach that raflects the cost o a manket
participant o construct an asset of comparable usage, construction standards. design and layout, adjusted for
obsolescence. The more significant mputs used in the valuation mcludee direct and indirect costs of construclion
such as but not Bmiled to, labor and contraciors profit, materials and equipment, surseying and permit costs,
electricity and wtility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees. These inputs were
darived from various supplers and contractor's quotes, price catalogues, and construclion price indices. Under
ihis approach, higher estimated costs used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of the properiies,

Note 22
Risk Mana ant Objectives and Policles

The Bank is exposed toa variety of inancial risks in perfonming its activities. The main types of risks il is facing
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are market rigk, credd risk and Bquidity risk, The Board of Directors has overall responsibalties for the Bank’s
financial risk management, whach includes the establishment and approval of risk strategies, policies and limits.
The main objective of the financial risk management of the Bank is to minimize the adverse impact of financial
risks on the Bank's financial performance and fnancial position.

Credil Risk Analysis

The Bank is mostly exposed 1o credit isk. Credit risk is the risk that one party 10 a financial instrument will fail to
dizcharge an obligation and cawse the other party to incur & financial koss. Generally, the maximum credit risk
exposune of inancial assats is the carrying amouni of the financial assats as shown on the face of the
slatesment of inancial position. Credil risk therefore i only disclosed in crcumstances whare the maximum
potential loss differs significantly from the carmying amount of the financial assets, The Bank manages the level
of credit rigk by aciively monitoring its portiolio to avoid significant concentrations of credit.

As at December 31, 2024, the Bank’s financial assels are composed of the following:

Haiher Past Dus Paal s Bul

Decemter 31, 2024 Nocimpaied Mol inpaied Total
Cash and cash equivalants Nols 5 RES0.907 621 LS PG99, 907 621
Loans and other receivables (Noie fl 2,103,209,532 - 2,103,208,532
Irvesiments in debl secunlies Mot 7) 371,493 253 - 371,493,253

#3.174.610, 406 B~ #3,174,610,406
The Bank manages: ihe bevel of credit risk by actively monitoring all its receivables to awoid significant delinguency.
Markat Risk Analfysi

Market risk is the possibility that changes in equity prices or interest rates will adversely affect the value of the
Bank's assats, Eabilibes or expected fulure cash flows. The Bank has no exposure ansing from comphex
investments since it is nol engaging in high risk invastments, forward contracts, hedging, and the like, whether
local or foreign transactions,

fa) Price risk
The Bank has no exposune to prica risks as i has no investment in quated equity and debt secunties.

(b) Interest rate risk,
The Bank's primary business moded is 1o collect deposils and use thase funds 1o provide boans and
ofher funding products and debt instruments o is customers. Interest rate nsk is the impact that
changes in interest rates could have on the Bank's margins, profil or koss, and equity. Interest risk
arises from the mismatch of interest payable on the Bank's liabdities and the interes! eamed on ils
financial assets, The Bank's assedliability profile is such that interest on its financial assets has shor
term maturities while interest rates on its bills payable and its fime deposits are primarily fixed. The
Bank’s Inan portfolio is primarily of fixed rates instrements. As a part of the Bank's risk management
strategy, the Board established limits on the non-trading interes! rate gaps for the inferest rate
sensitivities. These limits are consistent with the Bank's enterprise risk appetite and the Bank aligns ifs
accounting objectives 1o keep exposures within those limils.

intomst v it i
The sensifivity analysis below has been delermined based on the exposure to inlerest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the reporting date. For Eabilites with varable interest rates, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of the liability culstanding a1 the and of tha reporting period was
cutstanding for the whole year.

Tha following table demonstralas the sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in inferast ralas, with
all other variables held constant, of the Bank's income befora income tax,
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2024
2023

in infarest Rate
+0.05%
0.05%
+05%
0.05%

Effact oo
B1.482.197
{1.482,197)
1351685
11,361,685)

Ly Kk Akt
The Bank is likewize exposed bo liguidity risk, the nsk that it will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations as
they become due without incurring unaccaptable losses or costs. The Bank's objectives to manage its quidity
profile are: (a) to ensure that adequate funding is avaiable at all imes; (b) to mesl commitments as they anse
wilhoul incuming unnecessany costs; and (c) to be able to acoess funding when needed al the least possible cosh
The Bank manages its liquidity by carefully monitoring its scheduled debt servicing payments fior long-lenm

financial liabilities as well a5 its cash fiows due on ils day-to-day business.

Analysis of A and (bt

Docember 31, 2024 Within One Year  Beyond One Year Toi
Finangial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5 RED0, 007 621 F- RG99, 907, 621
Loans and othar raceivables (Noe § 1,991,063 578 112,145954  2,103,209,532
Investments in debl secunties (Note 7 371,493,253 371,493,253
il A
Bank prems, eic. (Node B 78,373,106 15,373,106
Right-of-use agsat (ere 5 60,583,913 69,583,913
irmvesimant properties Mvore 105 110492178 110,452,178
Oher assels jMote 11) 236,573,131 236,573,131
Tolal Assets F2O7 544330  R739088.404  M3.666.632.734
o
Daposit kabilibes Noie 12) B2 177 694 824 RTBG, 98 456  W2.964,393 280
Other lizbilties (Note 13 263 685,790 263,695,790
Lease lizbiifies (Mote & TR536,57T 78,536,577
Noo-financial Ligbl
Relirameant benefit obligation (Noks 1.3 snd 15] 25,294 331 25,204 31
Total Liabilities 2519917181 Ba11.992 787  B3,331,909.978
Recambar 31 37
Fingncial Assel
iCash and cash equivabents ihoie 5 FTE4.617 289 = FT84.617 289
Loans and other recefvables (N 6) 1,682 034,667 BB 668 62T 1.870,703,314
Investments in debt secunties (o 7 180,410,681 180 410,691
Non-fingngial Assets
Bank prems, etc ROUA (Note & BB, 035,136 54,035,136
Bank prems, aic. (Note 8) 76,426,239 76,426 239
Righl-of-use assat vote 5 113,013,753 113,013,753
Dihar gssels (Mode 11) 111 588 386 111,588 386
Tolal Assets FLTTE.240362  P526554446 3,304 794 808
Financial Linhii
Deposit kabilities ot 12) F2.404,080,817 F318.200,041  #2,723.370,858
1Ofher ligbilities voie 13 212,247 B33 212247 833
Leaze liabdifies Mo & B3 192 062 83,192,992

(Carmed Fonvand |




Forward |
Dacember A1, 2043 Wimin One Yaar One Year Taral

Non al Liahilitis
Relirement benefit cbligation (Nales 13 and 16) 22,370,841 22,370,841

Total Liabilities P2659.521642  P341660832  P3.041,182.524

Note 23
Commitments and Contingencies

I Ehe normal course of its operations, the Bank makes vanous commitments and incurs certain contingent
kabilities, which are not reflectad i the accomparying financial staterments. Management anticipates na
malerial losses, it any, that may arise from these commitments and contingancies,

Note 24
no a

The Bank's financial statements as of and for the yaar ended December 31, 2024, wene authorizad for issue by
ihe Bank's President on Apnil 10, 2025,
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SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
[Enterprise Bank, Inc, (A Rural Bank)

Annex |, Page 1 of 1

Dacember 3, 2024 2053
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS

OPENING BALANCES, AS ORIGINALLY STATED (F170,964,753) (P82 911,180)
ADJUSTMENT TO RESTATE BEGINNING BALANCES - {14,626 248)
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS

OPENING BALANCES AS RESTATED (170,964,753) (197,537 .426)
NET INCOME ACTUALLY EARNED/REALIZED DURING THE YEAR 71,110,472 26572673
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS, AS ADJUSTED (99,854 281) {170,964, 753)
ADD (DEDUCT)
Dividends declared during the fiscal year
Appropriations of Retained Eamings during the fiscal year - -
Reversals of appropriation during the fiscal year - -
Deferred tax assets (SEC MG No. 16, s, 2023) (80,917,569) (77,960,235)

80,917 569) (77,960,235)

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION (R180,771,850)  (P248.924 588)
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BSP
Enterprise Bank, Inc. (A Rural Bank)

The following supplementary information ae required by the BSP under Section 174 |Appendix 55) of the BSP
Manual of Requlations for Banks (MORE) Io be disciosed as part of the notes 1o financial stalements basad on
BSP Circular 1074, Amendments fo Requiabions on Fmancisl Audi of Banks,

{a) Selected Financial Performance Indicators
]

Decombar 31, 2024 2023
Reburn on avarage equity™

(Met Profit/Average Total Capital Accounts) .TT% 10.97%
Retum on average assels”;

[Met ProfitlAverage Tolal Resources) 2.04% 0.B5%
Met interest masgin®;

(Net Interest Income/Average Inlerest Eamings Resources) 9.67% 10.52%

" Averags dizel capdal, snd mferesl-aaming asbeli ane computed oF the Smpls swirags of cutsfanding balince of asels, capils)
dnd inkiviElgarmang azsefs al December 3T, 2004 and December J1, 2037, (2 cats poinfs|

(b) Capital Ingtruments Issued
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Bank has only two classes of capital slock, which are common

and preferance shares. The Bank consider s common stock and prefared stock as capital instruments
eligible a5 Tier 1 and Tier 2 capitals.

(e] Significant Cradit Expasures for Loans
The Bank's contentration of credil as to industry for its recaivables from customers gross of allowance for
ECL below are disclesed in Note 6.

Decamber 31, 2024 % 053 %
Salary Consumpton Loans P1,638383921 60.74 P1585084616 7160
Wholesale & Retad Trade, Repair of MY 191,089,388  B.13 05258515 927
Real Estate Activites 169,239,589 T.20 13758888 523
Construction 137,257 365 584 7. 73374 442
Auto Loans 53617334 228 11,110.310 050
Agriculture, Foresiry and Fishing 44,274,561 1.88 88034 243
Manufacturing 37,274 479 1.53 4044068 183
Transportation And Storage 26,168,151  1.20 10,112688 046
Admin. and Support Service Aclivities 11,793,024 050 20758743 04
Accommadaton and Food Service Activilies B2445T5 035 4047762 018
Electricity, Gas, Steam & Aircon Supply 6815617 0.29 2000001 009
Professional, Scientific and Technical 5829314 025 12419962 056
Dther Senvice Activities 17,147 983 0.73 33107768 1.50

P2,345,135301 100.00 R2.213.671.140 100.00

The B3P considers that concentration of credit exists when tofal loan exposure 1o a particular industry or
aconomic seclor excesds 30.00% of total koan portiolio except Tor thelt banks.

O
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{d) Breakdown of Loans
The follewing table shows information relating bo receivables from customers by collateral, gross of

uneamed discounts and capitalzed interest:

Decambar 31, 2024 % 23 ]
Unsecured loans #1,787,506,230 76 P1TT7.731,565
Secured loans
Real estale 433 460,086 18 68 523 811 iT
Chatbel 107,162 322 & 37,108,084 2
Others 21,006,663 1 30,307 660 1
561,620,071 24 435 935 555 20
2 340 135,301 100 B2 213,671,140 100
O 3 2024 % 2023 %
APDE FT1G33T.830 40 51,751,348 39
Moa-APDS 949 421,660 53 1.042 111492 58
Enterprise Loans 121601466 7 3813247 2
Microfinanca 55174 1] 554948 1]
ML TETS06230 100 W1777 031585 1)
Breakgown a5 l0 Status of Loans (P ing and Fast Due Man-Performing
Decembar 31, 2024 Performing % MonPerdorming % Total %
Agricultural FT15,651 4 PI2085455 11 F3B01,306 10
Commercial (SME) 1730318 06 265883624 A9 M7 186819 90
Others—personal consumption - - 55,188 - 55188 2 -
R18.019.046 100 R302.024 267 100 R320.043.313 100
Decembar 21, 23
Agricultural 1,076,159 6 #31,443934 12 F325H00.13 12
Commarcial (SME} 16011638 94 232920507 BRE 24843146 88
Others—pearsonal consumplion - - 56,512 - 85 512 -
PITOB7 RIS 100 P254.419.953 100 F281.507.791 100

Non-Performing Loans
The: non-parforming loans as defined under Section 304 of the MORE amounted F302,024 267 in 2024

and

Decamber 31 2024 2023
Tofal Quistanding DOSRI loans F22.302,734 F24.275.813
Percent of DOSRI loans to tolal loans 0.60% 1.12%
Percant of unsecured DOSRI bans 1o lotal DOSRI loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percant of past-due DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of non-performang DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 0.00% .00
Total Outstanding loans o related parties other than DOSRI 0.00% 0,007
Percent of olher related party {ORP) loans o okal loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percant of unsecured ORP leans to total ORP loans 0.00% 0.007%
Percent of past-due ORP koans to total ORP loans 0.00% (.00
Percant of non-parforming ORP loans 1o total ORP loans 0.00% 0.00%

O
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D'Lrnng 21‘.]24 and EIII-EB 111-3 ir:ln'mng |x-a mmarfnf mnung-mmasm [:EHHI’MN&H[‘-S ariging from off-
balance sheet ibams:

December 31, 2024 2023
Late deposits/payment received P1,042 654 R15,261
liems held a5 collaterals 8738 407

1,952,392 23,758
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

FEE-RELATED INFORMATION
Enterprise Bank, Inc, (A Rural Bank)

Years Ended Decambar 31, [Kesywords)

:
g

Tolal Audit Fees (See Moles balow | BE500,000 R300.000

Won-Audit Service Fees
(her assurance senices

Tax services
Al sther sardces

Total Non-Audil Fees (See Mobes bakow |

Total Audit and Non-Audit Fees F500,000 P500,000

Notes
(1) The Bank's external audifars for the years 2024 and 2023 were the Quifab & Garswula, CPAs, with Head

Office in Cagayan de Oro City and Branch Office in General Sanfos City.
(2] The feas disclosed harein exciuded out-of-pockel expenses and the relsied VAT hereon.
{3 The Bank has no relaled ently over which i has direct confral ithersfore the said Exiemal Adiors were

audifing oy the Rural Bank a3 a sfand-alone enlity prepaning and isswng stand-alone francial
slatarments,

{4} We undersfand thal ihe amoun of audit fees peid to owr External Auditors camnol be considened &5 faling
under tha Tee depandancy sifuaton’.
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